
  
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov  

Planning Commission 
  
 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Date:   9/9/2024 
Time:  7:00 p.m. 
Location:  Zoom.us/join – ID# 858 7073 1001 and  
  City Council Chambers 
  751 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 
 

Members of the public can listen to the meeting and participate using the following methods. 
 
How to participate in the meeting 

• Access the live meeting, in-person, at the City Council Chambers   
• Access the meeting real-time online at:  

zoom.us/join – Meeting ID# 858 7073 1001 
• Access the meeting real-time via telephone (listen only mode) at:  

(669) 900-6833 
Regular Meeting ID # 858 7073 1001 
Press *9 to raise hand to speak 

• Submit a written comment online up to 1-hour before the meeting start time: 
planning.commission@menlopark.gov* 
Please include the agenda item number related to your comment. 

 
*Written comments are accepted up to 1 hour before the meeting start time. Written messages are 
provided to the Planning Commission at the appropriate time in their meeting.  

Subject to change: The format of this meeting may be altered or the meeting may be canceled. You may 
check on the status of the meeting by visiting the city website menlopark.gov. The instructions for logging on 
to the webinar and/or the access code is subject to change. If you have difficulty accessing the webinar, 
please check the latest online edition of the posted agenda for updated information 
(menlopark.gov/agendas). 
  

  

https://zoom.us/join
https://zoom.us/join
http://menlopark.gov/
http://menlopark.gov/agendas


Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda 
September 9, 2024 
Page 2 
 

  
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov  

Regular Meeting 
 
A. Call To Order 

 
B. Roll Call 

 
C. Reports and Announcements 

 
D.  Public Comment  

 Under “Public Comment,” the public may address the Commission on any subject not listed on the 
agenda. Each speaker may address the Commission once under public comment for a limit of three 
minutes. You are not required to provide your name or City of residence, but it is helpful. The 
Commission cannot act on items not listed on the agenda and, therefore, the Commission cannot 
respond to non-agenda issues brought up under Public Comment other than to provide general 
information. 
 

E.  Consent Calendar 

E.1 Approval of minutes from the August 12, 2024 Planning Commission meeting (Attachment) 

F.  Public Hearing 

F1. Use Permit/Ali Zadeh/734-736 Partridge Ave.:  
Consider and adopt a resolution to approve a use permit to demolish an existing one-story duplex 
and construct two new two-story, single-family residences and one detached garage on a 
substandard lot with regard to minimum lot width in the R-2 (Low Density Apartment) district. Each 
proposed residence includes an attached accessory dwelling unit (ADU), which is a permitted use 
and not subject to discretionary review. The project also includes one development-related 
heritage tree removal which was reviewed and conditionally approved by the City Arborist; 
determine this action is categorically exempt under CEQA Guidelines Section 15303’s Class 3 
exemption for new construction or conversion of small structures. (Staff Report #24-038-PC) 
 

G Informational Items 

G1. Future Planning Commission Meeting Schedule – The upcoming Planning Commission meetings 
are listed here, for reference. No action will be taken on the meeting schedule, although individual 
Commissioners may notify staff of planned absences. 

 
• Regular Meeting: September 23, 2024 
• Regular Meeting: October 7, 2024 

 
H.  Adjournment 
 

At every regular meeting of the Planning Commission, in addition to the public comment period 
where the public shall have the right to address the Planning Commission on any matters of public 
interest not listed on the agenda, members of the public have the right to directly address the 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda 
September 9, 2024 
Page 3 

 

  
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov  

Planning Commission on any item listed on the agenda at a time designated by the chair, either 
before or during the Planning Commission’s consideration of the item. 
 
At every special meeting of the Planning Commission, members of the public have the right to 
directly address the Planning Commission on any item listed on the agenda at a time designated by 
the chair, either before or during consideration of the item. For appeal hearings, appellant and 
applicant shall each have 10 minutes for presentations.  
 
If you challenge any of the items listed on this agenda in court, you may be limited to raising only 
those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written 
correspondence delivered to the City of Menlo Park at, or before, the public hearing. 
 
Any writing that is distributed to a majority of the Planning Commission by any person in connection 
with an agenda item is a public record (subject to any exemption under the Public Records Act) and 
is available by request by emailing the city clerk at jaherren@menlopark.gov. Persons with 
disabilities, who require auxiliary aids or services in attending or participating in Planning 
Commission meetings, may call the City Clerk’s Office at 650-330-6620. 
 
Agendas are posted in accordance with Cal. Gov. Code §54954.2(a) or §54956. Members of the 
public can view electronic agendas and staff reports by accessing the city website at 
menlopark.gov/agendas and can receive email notifications of agenda postings by subscribing at 
menlopark.gov/subscribe. Agendas and staff reports may also be obtained by contacting City Clerk 
at 650-330-6620. (Posted: 9/4/2024) 

mailto:jaherren@menlopark.gov
https://menlopark.gov/agendas
https://menlopark.gov/susbscribe


  
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov  

Planning Commission 
  
 
REGULAR MEETING DRAFT MINUTES 

Date:   8/12/2024 
Time:  7:00 p.m. 
Location:  Zoom.us/join – ID# 858 7073 1001 and  
  City Council Chambers 
  751 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 
 

A. Call To Order 
 
Chair Jennifer Schindler called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 
 

B. Roll Call  
 
Present: Jennifer Schindler (Chair), Andrew Ehrich (Vice Chair), Katie Behroozi, Katie Ferrick, Misha 
Silin 
 
Absent: Ross Silverstein 
 
Staff: Kyle Perata, Assistant Community Development Director; Matt Pruter, Associate Planner; 
Corinna Sandmeier, Principal Planner 
 

C. Reports and Announcements 
  
Assistant Community Development Director Kyle Perata announced that the Environmental Justice 
and Safety Elements review and recommendation by the Planning Commission was scheduled for 
the August 26, 2024 meeting agenda. He said the meeting would be held at the Belle Haven 
Community Campus.  
 

D. Public Comment  
  

None  
 

E.  Consent Calendar 
 
 Chair Schindler pulled items E.1 and E.2 from the consent calendar. 
  

The Planning Commission voted first on the consent calendar consisting of Item E.3. 
 

E1. Approval of minutes and court reporter transcript from the July 22, 2024 Planning Commission 
meeting. (Attachment) 

 
 Chair Schindler noted a modification she recommended to staff for clarification which staff presented 

visually to modify page 9 of the minutes for July 22, 2024 within Mr. Murray’s response about public 
use of amenities to read: “He said the much smaller area originally proposed as a freestanding 
building was now proposed to be in the podium of the affordable housing Residential 3 building.” 

  
 Chair Schindler opened public comment and closed public comment as no persons requested to 

  

https://zoom.us/join


Planning Commission Regular Meeting Draft Minutes 
August 12, 2024 
Page 2 
 

  
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov  

speak. 
 
 ACTION: Motion and second (Ehrich/Do) to approve the minutes and court reporter transcript from 

the July 22, 2024 Planning Commission meeting with the modification specified; passes 5-0 with 
Commissioner Behroozi abstaining and Commissioner Silverstein absent. 

 
E2. Artwork Lighting Review/Christopher Baxter/2 Meta Way: 
 Consider and adopt a resolution to approve the lighting design of the façade-mounted artwork 

associated with the existing citizenM hotel located on the Meta West Campus in the O (Office) 
zoning district. The artwork is located on the northwest elevation of the building, facing Chilco Street, 
adjacent to an exterior red staircase, and the lighting would consist of two fixtures, directly above 
and beneath the artwork, to avoid light spillover; determine this action is categorically exempt under 
CEQA Guidelines Section 15301’s Class 1 exemption for existing facilities. Per condition 15.2.1 of 
the conditional development permit for the site, Planning Commission review is required for the 
lighting specifications for the artwork. (Staff Report #24-032-PC) 

  
 Planner Pruter said a comment letter was received over the weekend that was shared with the 

applicant and Planning Commission; and that the project description letter was updated as a result 
of the comment letter.  

 
 Naomi Maki, representing CitizenM Hotels, spoke on behalf of the item, and said Christopher Baxter, 

project architect, was available online for questions. 
 
 Chair Schindler opened public comment. 
  
 Public Comment: 
 

• Eileen McLaughlin, Citizens’ Committee to Complete the Refuge, expressed appreciation to the 
City, its Planning Commission and the CitizenM applicant team for working to address the 
concerns of lighting impacts to wildlife in the area. She requested the Commission approve the 
most recent lighting changes to the artwork for the project. 
 

 ACTION: Motion and second (Silin/Ferrick) to adopt a resolution approving the artwork lighting for 2 
Meta Way as presented; passes 6-0 with Commissioner Silverstein absent. 

 
E3. Architectural Control/Daniel Cunningham/2882-2884 Sand Hill Rd.:  

Consider and adopt a resolution to approve architectural control for modifications to an existing 
office campus including hardscaping and landscaping modifications and the addition of two outdoor 
shade structures and exterior office building modifications in the C-1-C (Administrative, Professional 
and Research District, Restrictive) zoning district. The project includes five development-related 
heritage tree removals which were reviewed and conditionally approved by the City Arborist; 
determine this action is categorically exempt under CEQA Guidelines Section 15301’s Class 1 
exemption for existing facilities and Section 15303’s Class 3 exemption for new construction or : 
conversion of small structures (Staff Report #24-033-PC) 

  
 Chair Schindler opened public comment and closed public comment as no persons requested to 

speak. 
 
 ACTION: Motion and second (Do/Ehrich) to approve the consent calendar consisting of adopting a 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Draft Minutes 
August 12, 2024 
Page 3 
 

  
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov  

resolution approving architectural control for 2882-2884 Sand Hill Road as submitted; passes 6-0 
with Commissioner Silverstein absent. 

 
F.  Public Hearing 
 
F1. Use Permit/Hong Wei/595 Hobart St.:  

Consider and adopt a resolution to approve a use permit to demolish an existing single-story, single-
family residence and construct a new two-story, single-family residence with a basement on a 
substandard lot with regard to minimum lot width in the R-1-S (Single Family Suburban Residential) 
zoning district, determine this action is categorically exempt under CEQA Guidelines Section 
15303’s Class 3 exemption for new construction or conversion of small structures. The proposal also 
includes a detached accessory dwelling unit (ADU) and associated heritage tree removals which are 
permitted and not subject to discretionary review. (Staff Report #24-034-PC) 

 
 Planner Sandmeier said staff had no updates to the project. 
 
 Chair Schindler opened the public hearing and closed the public hearing as no persons requested to 

speak. 
 
 Mark Godby, project architect, spoke on behalf of the project.  
 
 Commission discussion included favorable comments on the integration of the proposed home with 

the neighborhood, the generous number of replacement trees proposed and the retention of 
numerous existing mature heritage trees.  

 
 ACTION: Motion and second (Do/Behroozi) to adopt a resolution approving the use permit for 595 

Hobart Street as submitted; passes 6-0 with Commissioner Silverstein absent.  
 

F2. Use Permit/Robert Harrison/805 Evergreen St.:  
Consider and adopt a resolution to approve a use permit to demolish an existing two-story, single-
family residence and detached accessory structure and construct a new two-story, single-family 
residence with a basement on a substandard lot with regard to minimum lot width in the R-1-S 
(Single Family Suburban Residential) zoning district at 805 Evergreen Street; determine this action 
is categorically exempt under CEQA Guidelines Section 15303’s Class 3 exemption for new 
construction or conversion of small structures. (Staff Report #24-035-PC) 

 
 Planner Sandmeier said two emails that the applicant forwarded in support of the project were sent 

earlier in the day to the Planning Commission and were available for the public this evening. 
  
 Kendra Rosenberg, project architect, spoke on behalf of the project.  
 
 Chair Schindler opened the public hearing and closed the public hearing as no persons requested to 

speak. 
  
 Commission discussion confirmed that the project would have a landscape plan and landscape 

screening for neighbors and expressed appreciation for the redesign in response to neighbors’ 
concerns. 

 
 ACTION: Motion and second (Do/Silin) to adopt a resolution approving a use permit for 805 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Draft Minutes 
August 12, 2024 
Page 4 
 

  
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov  

Evergreen Street; passes 6-0 with Commissioner Silverstein absent.  
 
F3. Use Permit/Lea Redmond and Samantha Hamlin/1925 Menalto Ave.:  

Consider and adopt a resolution to approve a use permit to change the use of a tenant suite from a 
salon to a restaurant within an existing commercial building in the C-MU (Neighborhood Mixed Use) 
zoning district. The subject property is substandard with regard to the minimum parking requirement 
in the C-MU zoning district and requires a use permit for a change of use. The proposed project also 
includes a use permit request for a Type 41 license from the State Department of Alcoholic 
Beverage Control (ABC) for onsite alcohol service (beer and wine only) associated with a full-service 
restaurant, and a use permit for outdoor seating in the rear of the property and to allow the outdoor 
consumption of beer and wine within the outdoor seating. As part of the review, the Planning 
Commission will need to determine whether the on-sale of alcohol at this location serves a public 
convenience or necessity, in accordance with the requirements of the Menlo Park Municipal Code; 
determine this action is categorically exempt under CEQA Guidelines Section 15301’s Class 1 
exemption for existing facilities. (Staff Report #24-036-PC) 

 
 Planner Pruter said staff had no updates to the written report. 
 
 Lea Redmond and Samantha Hamlin, applicant team, spoke on behalf of the project. 
 
 Chair Schindler opened the public hearing and closed the public hearing as no persons requested to 

speak. 
 
 Commission discussion addressed with the applicants a safety concern raised, which subsequently 

was clarified did not occur in the applicants’ business parking area and expressed support for local 
neighborhood serving commercial space while suggesting potential consideration of safety barriers 
for the outdoor dining space.  

 
 Commissioner Ferrick moved to approve the item as submitted. 
 
 Commissioner Ehrich said for the record (minutes) that he wanted to highlight the high level of 

support for the project that the staff report section on correspondence outlined and express his 
support for not requiring more parking. He then seconded Commissioner Ferrick’s motion.  

  
 ACTION: Motion and second (Ferrick/Ehrich) to adopt a resolution approving the item for 1925 

Menalto Avenue as submitted; passes 6-0 with Commissioner Silverstein absent.  
 
G. Informational Items 
 
G1. Future Planning Commission Meeting Schedule 
 

• Regular Meeting: August 26, 2024 
 

Mr. Perata restated that the Environmental Justice and Safety Elements review and 
recommendation by the Planning Commission would be on the August 26, 2024 meeting agenda 
and the meeting would be held at the Belle Haven Community Campus.  

 
• Regular Meeting: September 9, 2024 
 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Draft Minutes 
August 12, 2024 
Page 5 
 

  
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov  

No items confirmed yet for the September 9, 2024 meeting. 
 

H.  Adjournment  
 
 Chair Schindler adjourned the meeting at 8:16 p.m. 
  

Staff Liaison: Kyle Perata, Assistant Community Development Director 
 
Recording Secretary: Brenda Bennett 
 



Community Development 

 

   

 
 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

Planning Commission    
Meeting Date:   9/9/2024 
Staff Report Number:  24-038-PC 
 
Public Hearing:  Consider and adopt a resolution to approve a use 

permit to demolish an existing one-story duplex and 
construct two new two-story residences and one 
detached garage on a substandard lot with regard 
to minimum lot width in the R-2 (Low Density 
Apartment) zoning district and determine this action 
is categorically exempt under CEQA Guidelines 
Section 15303’s Class 3 exemption for new 
construction or conversion of small structures. The 
proposal also includes one attached accessory 
dwelling unit (ADU) for each residence, which are 
permitted and not subject to discretionary review. 
As part of the proposal, one heritage oak tree is 
proposed to be removed.    

 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission adopt a resolution to approve a use permit to demolish an 
existing one-story duplex and construct two new two-story, single-family residences and a detached side-
loading, one-car garage on a substandard lot with respect to lot width in the R-2 (Low Density Apartment) 
zoning district, at 734-736 Partridge Avenue (Attachment A).  

 

Policy Issues 
Each use permit request is considered individually. The Planning Commission should consider whether the 
required use permit findings can be made for the proposed project.  

 

Background 

Site location 
The subject property is located at 734-736 Partridge Avenue, in the Allied Arts neighborhood. Using 
Partridge Avenue in the east-west orientation, the subject property is located on the northern side of 
Partridge Avenue, between El Camino Real and University Drive. A location map is included as Attachment 
B. 
 
The property is located in the R-2 district and is developed with a one-story duplex. The properties along the 
majority of Partridge Avenue adjacent to the subject property are also in the R-2 zoning district and are 
developed with a mixture of one-story duplexes and two-story, two-unit developments. Residences along 
Partridge Avenue vary in architectural style, from older, ranch styles to newer craftsman and Spanish revival 
residences. Properties to the rear of the subject property, along College Avenue, are in the R-1-U (Single 
Family Urban Residential) zoning district and are developed with a mix of one- and two-story, single-family 



Staff Report #: 24-038-PC 
Page 2 

 

   

 
 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

homes.         

 

Analysis 

Project description 
The subject site is currently developed with a one-story duplex and a detached two-car garage. The 
property is substandard with regard to lot width. The applicant is proposing to demolish all existing 
structures and construct two new two-story, single-family homes and a detached, side-loading, one-car 
garage on the site. The property is located within one-half mile of a major transit corridor and is therefore 
subject to the provisions of Assembly Bill 2097 which precludes the City from requiring a minimum parking 
requirement in this location for both the main units and the ADUs. However, each residence would have one 
dedicated covered parking space for a total of two off-street parking spaces. Parking for the front house 
would be provided in the detached garage. One parking space for the rear house would be provided in an 
attached, front-loading garage. A new driveway would be constructed to access the parking spaces, 
however, the driveway would be located generally in the same location as the existing driveway and would 
use a new curb cut similar in width as the existing curb cut. Since the project requires joint trenching for 
utility connections which would damage the street, the applicant would be required to slurry seal the 
frontage upon completion of the project (included as condition 2.b). A data table summarizing parcel and 
project attributes is included as Attachment C. The project plans and the applicant’s project description 
letter are included as Attachment A Exhibits A and B, respectively. 
 
The two residences would vary slightly in design and layout. The front house (Unit #1) would be a four-bed-
room, 3.5-bathroom residence and the rear house (Unit #2) would be a three-bedroom, 2.5-bathroom 
residence with an attached garage. Each residence would have an attached accessory dwelling unit (ADU) 
located on the first floor. Both residences would also feature covered front porches and rear patios.  
 
Of note with regard to Zoning Ordinance development standards: 
• The project would adhere to the R-2 requirements for minimum landscaping with 40.6 percent proposed 

where 40 percent is required. 
• Both houses would be well below the maximum height in the R-2 district with 24.9 feet and 26.5 feet 

proposed for Units #1 and #2, respectively, where 28 feet is the maximum permitted height. 
• The main residences and detached garage would comply with the maximum floor area ratio with 3,499.6 

square feet where 3,756 square feet is the maximum permitted. Each residence would have an attached 
ADU which are each allowed up to an additional 800 square feet of floor area and building coverage 
under state law. The total square footage of the residences and ADUs would be 5,069.9 square feet.  

• The total square footage of second stories would be at the maximum permitted with 1,407.5 square feet 
proposed where 1,408 square feet is the maximum  

• Each unit would have one covered parking space where the project is exempt from providing any parking 
under AB 2097.  

 
Under state law, a single-family dwelling unit is entitled to an ADU up to 800 square feet, which may exceed 
the maximum floor area limit. In multi-family districts where two or more single-family dwellings (i.e. 
detached single-family residences) are proposed, each residence is entitled to an ADU, each of which may 
exceed the maximum floor area limit or floor area ratio by up to 800 square feet. Since the proposed project 
is comprised of two detached single-family residences, each is entitled to an ADU of up to 800 square feet, 
for a total of 1,570.3 square feet of ADU space. The ADUs exceed the maximum floor area limit by 1,313.9 
square feet, which is permitted.    



Staff Report #: 24-038-PC 
Page 3 

 

   

 
 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

    
Site layout 
The site would be accessed off of Partridge Avenue by a new driveway along the right edge of the property. 
The new driveway would be in generally the same location as the existing driveway. Unit #1 would be built 
to the required 20-foot front setback. The attached ADU for Unit #1 would be on the left side of the 
residence and would have a left side setback of four feet, six inches. There would be a separate exterior 
entrance on the left side of the ADU which would be accessed by a pathway along the left side property 
line. The driveway would wrap around Unit #1 and would lead to a detached garage near the center of the 
property. The driveway is designed as a “Hollywood driveway” and contains a landscape strip is in the 
center of the driveway to reduce the amount of paving on the property. The side-loading garage has been 
reviewed by the Transportation and Planning Divisions and the configuration demonstrates an adequate 
turning radius for a car turning into the detached garage. Unit #2 would be constructed behind the detached 
garage and would be constructed 22 feet, 11 inches from the rear property line. The attached ADU for Unit 
#2 would be located on the left side of the residence, would extend four feet past the rear of the main 
residence, and would be accessed prom a pathway extending from the driveway and along the left side of 
the property. The ADU would have a rear setback of 18 feet, 11 inches and a left side setback of four feet, 
six inches.   
 
Tentative parcel map 
The applicant is also requesting approval of a tentative map for a minor subdivision to create two residential 
condominium units. The minor subdivision can be reviewed and approved administratively by the Public 
Works Department, if the Planning Commission approves the use permit request. The tentative parcel map 
would be subject to separate conditions of approval when the Public Works department acts on the project.     
  

Design and materials 
The new residences would each be designed with a transitional architectural style. Both houses and the 
detached garage would feature smooth stucco siding, asphalt shingle roofing, and painted fiber cement 
corbel and fascia. Unit #1 would have a decorative stone veneer on a portion of the front elevation to add 
visual interest. The windows would have aluminum trim and simulated true divided lites with interior and 
exterior muntins with spacer bars between the panes. Two windows on the front of Unit #1 and one window 
on the front of Unit #2 would have arched decorative aluminum paneling above the windows. Both garage 
doors would have wood finishes, and the front door of each residence would be wood stained a dark brown 
color to match the garage doors.     
 
All upper floor windows would have minimum sill heights of three feet. The proposed stairwell window for 
Unit #1 would have a sill height of four feet, seven inches from the stair landing and would face toward the 
right property line. This window would be set back from the right side property line by 13 feet, six inches 
where the minimum side setback is five feet. Staff believes that although the stairwell window would have a 
sill height of less than five feet, the window is adequately set back from the property line to alleviate 
potential privacy concerns. The stairwell window in Unit #2 would have a sill height of approximately nine 
feet, two inches, which staff believes is sufficient to alleviate potential privacy concerns.    
 
Massing would be similar to other two-unit, two-story developments on Partridge Avenue. The second-story, 
step-backs and modulation on the front façade help to break up an otherwise boxy massing design. The 
front unit also features a decorative wall to provide some variation of the design as seen from the street.    
 

Trees and landscaping 
The applicant has submitted an arborist report (Attachment A Exhibit C) detailing the species, size, and 



Staff Report #: 24-038-PC 
Page 4 

 

   

 
 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

conditions of the trees on or near the site. The report discusses the impacts of the proposed improvements 
and provides recommendations for tree maintenance and protection. As part of the project review process, 
the City Arborist reviewed the report and determined the measures in the report would adequately protect 
existing trees.  
 
There are five trees located on or adjacent to the property, three of which are heritage trees. Only two of 
these trees (trees #4H and #5) are located on the subject property. Tree #1 is located in the public right-of-
way in front of the property, tree #2H is located on the neighboring property to the right, and tree #3H is a 
shared tree which straddles the right side property line. Table 1 below details the trees and their proposed 
disposition.  
 

Table 1: Tree summary and disposition 

Tree number Species Size (DBH, in 
inches) Disposition Notes 

1* Southern magnolia 3 Retain Non-heritage 

2H** Orange 16 Retain Heritage 

3H** Coast live oak 41 Retain Heritage 

4H Coast live oak 26.5 Remove Heritage 

5 Crabapple 10 Remove Non-heritage 

*Denotes street tree 
**Denotes neighboring and shared trees 

 
 
The project site would be landscaped with a mixture of trees and low ground cover. The City arborist 
approved a heritage tree removal permit to remove one heritage coast live oak tree (Tree #4H). One non-
heritage crabapple tree (Tree #5) would also be removed. The applicant would be required to replace the 
value of the removed heritage tree. The heritage tree replacement plan includes three 36-inch box Saratoga 
laurel trees, two 36-inch box Catalina ironwood trees, and one 36-inch box Chinese pistache tree. Two of 
the laurel trees and one of the ironwood trees would be planted along the rear property line. The Chinese 
pistache and third laurel tree would be planted near the middle of the left and right property lines, 
respectively, and the second ironwood tree would be planted on the left side near the front of the property. 
the proposed replacement trees do not fully cover the value of the heritage tree proposed for removal, so 
the applicant is required to pay an additional $5,900 is in-lieu fees. Additionally, the Public Works 
department requires one new 24-inch box Persian ironwood tree to be planted in the City right-of-way in 
front of the property which would be maintained by the City as a street tree. Planting of the street tree is 
included as project-specific condition 2.a. To protect the heritage trees to remain all recommended tree 
protection measures identified in the arborist report would be implemented and ensured as part of standard 
condition of approval 1.h.  
 

Correspondence  
Staff has not received any correspondence on the project as of the publication of the staff report. 
 

Conclusion 



Staff Report #: 24-038-PC 
Page 5 

 

   

 
 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

Staff believes that the scale, materials, and style of the proposed residences are compatible with those of 
the overall neighborhood. The height of the buildings would be limited relative to the R-2 maximums. Step-
backs and material variation would vary the perception of massing and add visual interest to the project. 
Onsite circulation would meet all Transportation Division requirements for covered and uncovered parking. 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve the use permit for proposed project. Approval of 
the use permit would allow the Public Works department to administratively act on the tentative parcel map. 

 

Impact on City Resources 
The project sponsor is required to pay Planning, Building and Public Works permit fees, based on the City’s 
Master Fee Schedule, to fully cover the cost of staff time spent on the review of the project. 

 

Environmental Review 
The project is categorically exempt under Class 3 (Section 15303, “New Construction or Conversion of 
Small Structures”) of the current California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines. 

 

Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. Public notification also consisted of publishing a notice in the local newspaper 
and notification by mail of owners and occupants within a 300-foot radius of the subject property.  
 

Appeal Period 
The Planning Commission action on the use permit will be effective after 15 days unless the action is 
appealed to the City Council, in which case the outcome of the application shall be determined by the City 
Council.  

 

Attachments 
A. Draft Planning Commission Resolution approving the use permit 

Exhibits to Attachment A 
A. Project Plans 
B. Project Description letter 
C. Arborist Report  
D. Conditions of Approval  

B. Location Map 
C. Data Table 
 
Report prepared by: 
Chris Turner, Senior Planner 
 
Report reviewed by: 
Corinna Sandmeier, Principal Planner 



Resolution No. 2024-XX 

1 

PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 2024-XX 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
MENLO PARK APPROVING A USE PERMIT TO DEMOLISH AN 
EXISTING ONE-STORY DUPLEX AND DETACHED GARAGE, AND 
CONSTRUCT TWO NEW TWO-STORY, SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCES 
ON A SUBSTANDARD LOT WITH REGARD TO MINIMUM LOT WIDTH 
IN THE R-2 (LOW DENSITY APARTMENT) ZONING DISTRICT  

 WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park (“City”) received an application requesting a use 
permit to demolish an existing one-story duplex and detached garage, and construct two 
new two-story, single-family residences with attached accessory dwelling units (“ADU”) and 
a detached garage on a substandard lot with regard to minimum lot width in the R-2 (Low 
Density Apartment) zoning district (“Project”) from Ali Zadeh (“Applicant” and “Owner”) 
located at 734-736 Partridge Avenue (APN 071-412-370) (“Property”). The Project use 
permit is depicted in and subject to the development plans and project description letter, 
which are attached hereto as Exhibit A and Exhibit B, respectively, and incorporated herein 
by this reference; and 

WHEREAS, the Property is located in the Low Density Apartment (R-2) district. The 
R-2 district supports single-family and multi-family residential uses; and 

WHEREAS, the existing parcel is substandard with regard to the minimum lot width; 
and 

WHEREAS, the proposed Project would construct two new two-story residences on 
a substandard lot which requires the granting of a use permit; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed Project would include two ADUs, which are a permitted 
use; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed project would comply with all objective standards of the R-
2 district; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed Project was reviewed by the Engineering Division and 
found to be in compliance with City standards; and 

WHEREAS, the Applicant submitted an arborist report prepared by Bo Firestone 
Trees & Gardens, incorporated herein as Exhibit C, which was reviewed by the City Arborist 
and found to be in compliance with the Heritage Tree Ordinance, and proposes mitigation 
measures to adequately protect heritage trees in the vicinity of the project; and 

WHEREAS, the City Arborist approved a heritage tree removal permit to remove one 
heritage coast live oak tree, which was not appealed; and 

A1



Resolution No. 2024-XX 

2 

WHEREAS, the Applicant would be required to replace the value of the heritage tree 
to be removed with replacement trees on site; and  

WHEREAS, the City Arborist reviewed and approved a heritage tree replacement 
plan to comply with the replacement requirement of the Heritage Tree Ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, the Project, requires discretionary actions by the City as summarized 
above, and therefore the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA,” Public Resources 
Code Section §21000 et seq.) and CEQA Guidelines (Cal. Code of Regulations, Title 14, 
§15000 et seq.) require analysis and a determination regarding the Project’s environmental 
impacts; and  

WHEREAS, the City is the lead agency, as defined by CEQA and the CEQA 
Guidelines, and is therefore responsible for the preparation, consideration, certification, and 
approval of environmental documents for the Project; and  

WHEREAS, the Project is categorically except from environmental review pursuant 
to Cal. Code of Regulations, Title 14, §15303 et seq. (new construction or conversion of 
small structures); and 

WHEREAS, all required public notices and public hearings were duly given and held 
according to law; and 

WHEREAS, at a duly and properly noticed public hearing held on September 9, 
2024, the Planning Commission fully reviewed, considered, and evaluated the whole of the 
record including all public and written comments, pertinent information, documents and 
plans, prior to taking action regarding the Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE MENLO PARK PLANNING COMMISSION HEREBY 
RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  Recitals.  The Planning Commission has considered the full record before it, 
which may include but is not limited to such things as the staff report, public testimony, and 
other materials and evidence submitted or provided, and the Planning Commission finds the 
foregoing recitals are true and correct, and they are hereby incorporated by reference into 
this Resolution. 

Section 2.  Conditional Use Permit Findings.  The Planning Commission of the City of Menlo 
Park does hereby make the following Findings:   

The approval of the use permit for the construction of two two-story residences on a 
substandard lot with regard to minimum lot width is granted based on the following findings, 
which are made pursuant to Menlo Park Municipal Code Section 16.82.030: 

1. That the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the use applied for will, under 
the circumstance of the particular case, not be detrimental to the health, safety, 
morals, comfort and general welfare of the persons residing in the neighborhood of 

A2



Resolution No. 2024-XX 

3 

such proposed use, or injurious or detrimental to property and improvements in the 
neighborhood or the general welfare of the city because: 

a. Consideration and due regard were given to the nature and condition of all 
adjacent uses and structures, and to general plans for the area in question 
and surrounding areas, and impact of the application hereon; in that, the 
proposed use permit is consistent with the R-2 zoning district and the 
General Plan because two-story residences are permitted to be constructed 
upon substandard lots subject to the granting of a use permit, the project 
would comply with required setbacks, and the project conforms to applicable 
zoning standards, including, but not limited to, maximum floor area limit and 
maximum building coverage. 

b. The proposed project would replace the existing number of housing units 
and add two additional housing units through the inclusion of two ADUs, 
increasing the City’s housing stock, and helping to achieve the City’s goals 
set forth in the Housing Element.  

c. The proposed residences and ADUs would not be required to provide 
parking spaces pursuant to Assembly Bill 2097, but would include one 
covered parking space per primary dwelling unit for a total of two off-street 
parking spaces.  

d. The proposed Project is designed to meet all the applicable codes and 
ordinances of the City of Menlo Park Municipal Code and the Commission 
concludes that the Project would not be detrimental to the health, safety, and 
welfare of the surrounding community as the proposed residences would be 
located in a multi-family neighborhood and have been designed in a way to 
complement the existing scale and design of the surrounding homes as the 
proposed residences would be designed in a transitional architectural style 
which is generally compatible with other developments in the vicinity. 

 
Section 3. Conditional Use Permit.  The Planning Commission approves Use Permit No. 
PLN2023-00046, which use permit is depicted in and subject to the development plans 
and project description letter, which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference as Exhibit A and Exhibit B, respectively.  The Use Permit is conditioned in 
conformance with the conditions attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference 
as Exhibit D.   
 
Section 4.  ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW.  The Planning Commission makes the following 
findings, based on its independent judgment after considering the Project, and having reviewed 
and taken into consideration all written and oral information submitted in this matter: 

 
1. The Project is categorically exempt from environmental review pursuant to Cal. 

Code of Regulations, Title 14, §15303 et seq. (new construction or conversion of 
small structures) 

 

Section 7.  SEVERABILITY  

A3



Resolution No. 2024-XX 

4 

If any term, provision, or portion of these findings or the application of these findings to a 
particular situation is held by a court to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining 
provisions of these findings, or their application to other actions related to the Project, shall 
continue in full force and effect unless amended or modified by the City. 

I, Kyle Perata, Assistant Community Development Director of the City of Menlo Park, do 
hereby certify that the above and foregoing Planning Commission Resolution was duly and 
regularly passed and adopted at a meeting by said Planning Commission on September 9, 
2024, by the following votes: 

AYES:   

NOES:   

ABSENT:   

ABSTAIN:   
 
 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of said 
City on this ___ day of September, 2024 
 
PC Liaison Signature 
 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Kyle Perata 
Assistant Community Development Director  
City of Menlo Park 
 
 
Exhibits 

A. Project plans  
B. Project description letter 
C. Arborist Report  
D. Conditions of approval 

A4



LOCATION  MAP

PROJECT TEAMSHEET INDEX

COVER SHEET

A0.0

ASSESSOR'S PARCEL  MAP

DEMOLITION OF EXISTING 2112 SQUARE FOOT ONE STORY DUPLEX AND
CONSTRUCTION OF TWO SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCES ON A 9392 SQUARE FOOT LOT:

THE FRONT RESIDENCE WILL FEATURE A LIVING AREA OF 1,636.0 SQUARE FEET,
COMPRISING 4 BEDROOMS AND 3.5 BATHROOMS. ADDITIONALLY, THERE WILL BE A
DETACHED GARAGE WITH AN AREA OF 217.8 SQUARE FEET. THE TOTAL SQUARE
FOOTAGE OF THE FRONT RESIDENCE WILL BE 1853.8 SQUARE FEET, WITH AN
ADDITIONAL ATTACHED ADU OF 774.9 SQUARE FEET.

THE REAR RESIDENCE WILL HAVE A LIVING AREA OF 1,419.5 SQUARE FEET,
CONSISTING OF 3 BEDROOMS AND 2.5 BATHROOMS. IT WILL ALSO INCLUDE AN
ATTACHED GARAGE WITH AN AREA OF 226.3 SQUARE FEET. THE TOTAL SQUARE
FOOTAGE OF THE REAR RESIDENCE, WILL BE 1645.8 SQUARE FEET WITH AN
ADDITIONAL ATTACHED ADU OF 795.4 SQUARE FEET.

ARCHITECTURAL
A0.0 COVER SHEET
A0.2 FLOOR AREA CALCULATION
A0.2a LANDSCAPE AREA CALCULATION
A0.3 STREET  CONTEXT
A0.4 PHOTOS OF THE EXISTING  HOUSE
A1.0 AREA PLAN
A1.0a SITE PLAN & DEMO SITE PLAN
A2.1a FRONT HOUSE FIRST FLOOR PLAN
A2.1b FRONT HOUSE SECOND FLOOR PLAN
A2.1c REAR HOUSE FIRST FLOOR PLAN
A2.1d REAR HOUSE SECOND FLOOR PLAN
A2.2a FRONT HOUSE LOWER ROOF PLAN
A2.2b FRONT HOUSE UPPER ROOF PLAN
A2.2c REAR HOUSE LOWER ROOF PLAN
A2.2d REAR HOUSE UPPER ROOF PLAN
A2.2e DETACHED GARAGE ROOF PLAN
A3.0 LOT  RECAP
A3.1 UNIT 1 EXTERIOR  ELEVATIONS
A3.2 UNIT 1 EXTERIOR  ELEVATIONS
A3.3 DETACHED  GARAGE  ELEVATIONS  

AND SECTIONS
A3.4 UNIT 2 EXTERIOR  ELEVATIONS
A3.5 UNIT 2 EXTERIOR  ELEVATIONS
A3.6 EXTERIOR  PERSPECTIVES
A3.7 EXTERIOR  PERSPECTIVES
A3.8 EXTERIOR  PERSPECTIVES
A3.9 MATERIAL BOARD
A4.0 WINDOW&DOOR SCHEDULE
A5.0 UNIT 1 SECTIONS
A5.1 UNIT 2 SECTIONS
FI-1 FIRE DEPARTMENT COA

CIVIL
T-1 BOUNDARY AND TOPO SURVEY
TM-1 TENTATIVE MAP
TM-2 GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLAN
TM-3 UTILITY PLAN
TM-4 STORM WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN
TM-5 STORM WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN
TM-6 CONSTRUCTION BMP'S

LANDSCAPE
L-1 TREE REPLACEMENT PLAN

ARBORIST REPORT

AR-1 ARBORIST REPORT
AR-2 ARBORIST REPORT
AR-3 ARBORIST REPORT
AR-4 ARBORIST REPORT
AR-5 ARBORIST REPORT

APPLICABLE CODES

PROJECT SUMMARY

APPLICABLE CODES (with Menlo Park Amendments)
-2022 CALIFORNIA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, CAC
-2022 CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE, CBC
-2022 CALIFORNIA RESIDENTIAL BUILDING CODE, CRC
-2022 CALIFORNIA ELECTRICAL CODE, CEC
-2022 CALIFORNIA MECHANICAL CODE, CMC
-2022 CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE, CPC
-2022 CALIFORNIA ENERGY CODE, CEnC
-2022 CALIFORNIA HISTORICAL CODE, CHC
-2022 CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE, CFC
-2022 CALIFORNIA EXISTING BUILDING CODE
-2022 CALIFORNIA GREEN BUILDING STANDARDS
-2022 CALIFORNIA REFERENCED STANDARDS
-SAN MATEO COUNTY STANDARD DETAIL

SCOPE OF WORK DEFERRED SUBMITTALS
1. FIRE SPRINKLERS IN ACCORDANCE WITH NFPA 13D AND STATE AND LOCAL

REQUIREMENTS--NOTE THAT PER CRC 313.3.7, A SIGN OR VALVE TAG SHALL BE
INSTALLED AT THE MAIN SHUTOFF VALVE TO THE WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM
STATING THE FOLLOWING: "WARNING, THE WATER SYSTEM FOR THIS HOME
SUPPLIES FIRE SPRINKLERS THAT REQUIRE CERTAIN FLOWS AND PRESSURES TO
FIGHT A FIRE. DEVICES THAT RESTRICT THE FLOW OR DECREASE THE PRESSURE
OR AUTOMATICALLY SHUT OFF THE WATER TO THE FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM,
SUCH AS WATER SOFTENERS, FILTRATION SYSTEMS AND AUTOMATIC SHUTOFF
VALVES, SHALL NOT BE ADDED TO THIS SYSTEM WITHOUT A REVIEW OF THE
FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM BY A FIRE PROTECTION SPECIALIST. DO NOT REMOVE
THIS SIGN"

2. STAIR GUARDRAIL SHOP DRAWINGS SIGNED AND STAMPED BY ENGINEER TO
BE SUBMITTED TO BUILDING DEPARTMENT FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL--NOTE
THAT SHOP DRAWINGS TO DEMONSTRATE GUARDRAIL DESIGN IS ADEQUATE
TO SUPPORT A SINGLE CONCENTRATED 200 POUND LOAD APPLIED IN ANY
DIRECTION AT ANY POINT ALONG THE TOP OF THE RAIL PER CRC TABLE 301.5
AND 301.5 FOOTNOTE D

3. SOLAR PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM TO BE UNDER A SEPARATE PERMIT
4. ROOF TRUSSES--TRUSS DESIGN PACKAGE AND ENGINEER OF RECORD REVIEW

LETTER TO BE SUBMITTED TO BUILDING DEPARTMENT FOR REVIEW AND
APPROVAL

O W N E R
Ali Zadeh and Maryam Sangleji
677 Live Oak Ave, Menlo Park, CA 94025
ph  805-252-3807
email DrAliZadeh@gmail.com

maaryaam@gmail.com

D E S I G N E R/A R C H I T E C T
Ardalan Djalali
1355 El Camino Real, Unit 527
Redwood City, CA  94025
attn Ardalan Djalali
ph  650-387-9272
email ardalan@adarchitectes.com

CIVIL ENGINEER
SMP Engineers
attn Saeid Razavi
email srazavi@smpengineers.com

A R B O R I S T
Bo Firestone Trees and Gardens
attn Kaitlyn Meyer
email info@bofirestone.com

L A N D S C A P E   A R C H I T E C T
Mara Young
attn Mara Young
email marayoung@gmail.com

THE FOLLOWING ARE REQUIRED TO BE SUBMITTED TO THE ARCHITECT FOR
APPROVAL/REVIEW:

1. WINDOW/DOOR PACKAGE
2. CABINET SHOP DRAWINGS AND FINISH SAMPLES
3. MECHANICAL DUCTING PLAN
4. STAIR AND RAIL SHOP DRAWINGS
5. MISC. STEEL SHOP DRAWINGS

NOTE:  SEE STRUCTURAL PLANS FOR ADDITIONAL REQUIRED SUBMITTALS FOR SHOP
DRAWINGS, ETC.

REQ'D CONTRACTOR SUBMITTALS TO BUILDING
DEPT. PRIOR TO PERMIT ISSUANCE

1. LICENSE NUMBER
2. INSURANCE AND WORKER'S COMP POLICIES
3. CONSTRUCTION STAGING PLAN
4. CONSTRUCTION WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN IN ACCORDANCE WITH

CALGREEN 4.408.2

REQ'D CONTRACTOR
SUBMITTALS TO ARCHITECT

SITE

SITE

734/736 Partridge Ave,
Menlo Park, CA 94025

Zadeh and Sangelaji 
Residences

Two Single Family Residence+Attached ADU

1355 El Camin Real, Unit 527
Redwood City, CA, 94063

650-387-9272

736 Partridge Ave
Menlo Park

Owner
Maryam Sangelaji &

Ali Zadeh

ADDRESS

Zadeh & Sangelaji
 Residence
NEW SINGLE FAMILY

RESIDENCE+ATTACCHED ADU

SIGNED BY

DRAWN BY
Ardalan Djalali

Ardalan Djalali

APN: XXX

A0.0000000000

All designs, drawings, and
specifications contained herein
are the exclusive property of
Ardalan Djalali. Unauthorized use
or reproduction in whole or in
part is strictly prohibited, and
legal action will be taken to
protect the intellectual property

rights of Ardalan Djalali.

RE
V

IS
IO

N

DATE DESCRIPTION 

SHEET TITLE

ARBORIST NOTES
1. PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF THE ASSOCIATED DEMOLITION AND BUILDING

PERMITS, A TREE PROTECTION VERIFICATION LETTER FROM THE PROJECT
ARBORIST IS REQUIRED. A. THE TREE PROTECTION MEASURES SHOULD BE
INSTALLED IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN THE ARBORIST
REPORT. B. THEN THE PROJECT ARBORIST SHOULD VISIT THE PROPERTY, VERIFY
THAT THE PROTECTION MEASURES ARE IN COMPLIANCE TAKE PHOTOS, AND
THEN PREPARE A BRIEF VERIFICATION LETTER FOR CITY ARBORIST REVIEW.

2. THE PROJECT ARBORIST MUST ALSO PROVIDE MONTHLY TREE PROTECTION
MONITORING INSPECTIONS. A. DURING THESE INSPECTIONS THE PROJECT
ARBORIST SHOULD MONITOR THE CONDITION OF THE TREES, VERIFY THE TREE
PROTECTION MEASURES ARE IN COMPLIANCE, PROVIDE
RECOMMENDATIONS FOR ANY NECESSARY MAINTENANCE AND IMPACT
MITIGATION, AND PREPARE MONTHLY REPORTS FOR CITY ARBORIST REVIEW.

3. FOLLOW THE INSTRUCTIONS NOTED ON PAGE 9-15 OF THE ARBORIST REPORT
FOR TREE PROTECTION AND IMPACT REDUCTION

2024.03.14
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

2024.06.05
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

HQ&�WH
�RcSZST/,dSZSZV�OVHIHQ&�WHIHIP

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li
rdardardardardardardardardardadardardadaaalan lan lanlanlan lan lanlan lan lan lan llan DjalDjalDjalDjalDjalDjalDjalDjalDjalDjalDjalDjaDjalalialialialialialialialialialialiaa

dddddd PSSSSSSSZVSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSEEEEEEEESSSSSSSSEEEEEESSSSSSIIIII DDDEEEEEEEEEEEEEENNN
rrArrrrrrrrrA

EXHIBIT A

A5



W/H

W/H

W/H

W/H

15'-3 1/2"

14
'-1

0"
2'-

3"
13

'-4
 1

/2
"

11
'-5

"

18'-2 1/2"

4'-
0"

17'-2"
3'-7"

6'-
10

"

14
'-4

 1
/2

"

25
'-3

"
4'-

5 
1/

2"
14

'-8
"

13
'-1

0 
1/

2"

5'-9 1/2" 12'-6 1/2"

11'-10" 3'-7"

20'-7"

10
'-7

"

4'-
0"

41
'-3

"
3'-

4"

14'-2 1/2" 7'-3 1/2" 19'-1"

22
'-6

 1
/2

"
2'-

4"
20

'-4
 1

/2
"

10'-8"17'-3 1/2"

8'-5" 3'-9 1/2" 6'-10 1/2"

11'-5 1/2" 8'-0 1/2"

13
'-9

 1
/2

"
22

'-1
1 

1/
2"

1'-3 1/2"
8'-0 1/2"

2'-3"1'-
6 

1/
2"

13
'-9

 1
/2

"
7'-

0"
14

'-5
"

19'-8"2'-1"

12
'-8

 1
/2

"
20

'-1
1"

4'-
1 

1/
2"

11'-11" 3'-1" 5'-8"

5'-
7 

1/
2"

6'-
0"

7'-
5 

1/
2"

14
'-6

 1
/2

"

5'-2"

1355 El Camin Real, Unit 527
Redwood City, CA, 94063

650-387-9272

736 Partridge Ave
Menlo Park

Owner
Maryam Sangelaji &

Ali Zadeh

ADDRESS

Zadeh & Sangelaji
 Residence
NEW SINGLE FAMILY

RESIDENCE+ATTACCHED ADU

SIGNED BY

DRAWN BY
Ardalan Djalali

Ardalan Djalali

APN: XXX

All designs, drawings, and
specifications contained herein
are the exclusive property of
Ardalan Djalali. Unauthorized use
or reproduction in whole or in
part is strictly prohibited, and
legal action will be taken to
protect the intellectual property

rights of Ardalan Djalali.

RE
V

IS
IO

N

DATE DESCRIPTION 

SHEET TITLE

FIRST FLOOR AREA CALCS 1/8" 1

FLOOR
AREA

CALCULATION

A0.2

NL# = NEW LIVING AREA

 FLOOR AREA LEGEND  -

NG# = NEW GARAGE AREA

NA# =  NEW ADU (NOT COUNTED TOWARD FAR AND LOT COVERAGE)

NP# = NEW PORCH AREA (COUNTED TOWARD LOT COVERAGE

feet
2 4 8 121

feet
2 4 8 121 2ND FLOOR AREA CALCS  1/8" 2

NL11NL12

NL9

NL8

NL7
AD7

AD9

AD8

AD10

NP2

NG1

AD6

AD5

AD4 AD3

AD1 AD2 NL1

NL2

NL5NL6

NL4

NL3

NL13

NL16

NL14

NL15

NL
17

NL18

FRONT HOUSE--FIRST FLOOR

REAR HOUSE--FIRST FLOOR

NL19

NL
20 NL21

NL23

NL
22

NG2

NP1

STAIR NOT
COUNTED IN 2ND

FLOOR

STAIR NOT
COUNTED IN 2ND

FLOOR

FRONT HOUSE --GARAGE

REAR HOUSE--SECOND FLOOR

FRONT UNIT--SECOND FLOOR

NL10NG3

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

HQ&�WH
�RcSZST/,dSZSZV�OVHIHQ&�WHIHIP

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li
ArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArA lan lan lan lanlan lan lanan lan an lana DjalDjalDjalDjalDjaDjalDjalDjalDjalDjaDjalDjaa aaaaaaaaaaaa

dddSSSSSSZVSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS EEEEEEEEEEESSSSSSSSSSSSEEEEEEEESSSSGGGGGGSSSSSSSSSSGGGGGGGGSSSSSSSS EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEDDDGGGGGGGGNNN

2024.03.14
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

2024.06.05
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

A6



R7'-7 1/2"

R7
'-6

 1/
2"

R2
'-2

 1
/2

"
R2

'-2
 1

/2
"

3'-
10

"

18'-4"

17
'-3

"

12'-5 1/2"

3'-
0"

17
'-0

"
14

'-5
"

46
'-6

 1
/2

"
12

'-1
1"

10
'-7

 1
/2

"

14'-2 1/2" 15'-2 1/2"

3'-
0"

10'-8" 5'-0"

4'-0" 4'-5 1/2" 4'-0"

18'-5 1/2"6'-0 1/2"

15
'-9

 1
/2

"

4'-
0"

17'-3 1/2"

6'-
1 

1/
2"

12'-10 1/2"

LANDSCAPE AREA CALCS 3/32" 1feet
2 4 8 121

LANDSCAPE
AREA

CALCULATION

A0.2a

PA1

PA2

PA3

PA4

PA5
PA6

DR1

DR2

DR3

DR4

DR5

DR6

DR7

DR8

DR9

DR10

DR11

9.2 S.F.

BL1

BL3

BL2

LANDSCAPE AREA LEGEND AND CALCS  -

BL# = BUILDING AREA

PA# = PORCH AND PATIO AREA

DR# = DRIVEWAY AREA

LS# = LANDSCAPE AREA

1355 El Camin Real, Unit 527
Redwood City, CA, 94063

650-387-9272

736 Partridge Ave
Menlo Park

Owner
Maryam Sangelaji &

Ali Zadeh

ADDRESS

Zadeh & Sangelaji
 Residence
NEW SINGLE FAMILY

RESIDENCE+ATTACCHED ADU

SIGNED BY

DRAWN BY
Ardalan Djalali

Ardalan Djalali

APN: XXX

A0.2a2

All designs, drawings, and
specifications contained herein
are the exclusive property of
Ardalan Djalali. Unauthorized use
or reproduction in whole or in
part is strictly prohibited, and
legal action will be taken to
protect the intellectual property

rights of Ardalan Djalali.

RE
V

IS
IO

N

DATE DESCRIPTION 

SHEET TITLE

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

HQ&�WH
�RcSZST/,dSZSZV�OVHIHQ&�WHIHIP

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li
ArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArA lan lan lan lanlan lan lanan lan an lana DjalDjalDjalDjalDjaDjalDjalDjalDjalDjaDjalDjaa aaaaaaaaaaaa

dddSSSSSSZVSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS EEEEEEEEEEESSSSSSSSSSSSEEEEEEEESSSSGGGGGGSSSSSSSSSSGGGGGGGGSSSSSSSS EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEDDDGGGGGGGGNNN

2024.03.14
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

2024.06.05
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

A7



��  !"#!$%&'(!)*%#+!,('-! ./
)*01220!$'-3+!$4+!5678�

8 79�:/95./.

4##!0*;'<(;+!0=%1'(<;+!%(0
;>*?'@'?%-'2(;!?2(-%'(*0!A*=*'(
%=*!-A*!*B?#C;'D*!>=2>*=-3!2@

4=0%#%(!EF%#%#'G!,(%C-A2='H*0!C;*
2=!=*>=20C?-'2(!'(!1A2#*!2=!'(
>%=-!';!;-='?-#3!>=2A'I'-*0+!%(0
#*<%#!%?-'2(!1'##!I*!-%J*(!-2

>=2-*?-!-A*!'(-*##*?-C%#!>=2>*=-3
='<A-;!2@!4=0%#%(!EF%#%#'G

�� !"#$%$&'()!*+)
,)-./ !"#$01!2*!34567

89-)$
,#$:#;!<#-().#=&!>!

*.&!?#')@

*AABC<<

<DEFCA!GH

AB*I F!GH
*$'#.#-!A=#.#.&

*$'#.#-!A=#.#.&

*"FJKKK!

A*LC

<MCCL!LDLNC

?#')@!#-'!<#-().#=&!
B)O ')-P )

BC
Q
D<
D8
F

LI 8!FCI !<DFENC!R *, DNH
BC<DACF2CS*LL*2MCA!*AT

 

A*LC AC<2BD"LD8F

 

<LBCCL!
28FLCUL

*5V�

�� �!"#$%#%&'()*%+,'-,)'. '/0 ,1 %+

2+,&&,$'',)*%+,'-,

"*BLBDAEC!*QCV

SW X34VY Z
L8"!8R !LMC!BDAEC

SW X[[V�6Z
L8"!8R !LMC!BDAEC

SW X36V43Z
L8"!8R !LMC!BDAEC

<DLC

�45W �4[� 5W �  

�47W �7Y�7�

� 5W �  �45W �4[ ��4W �� 

�64W �6 �Y[

�Y3 �Y�

��4W �� 

�64W �6 

�Y[ �6� �47W �7Y �7�

�Y3 �Y�

�6�

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

HQ&�WH
�RcSZST/,dSZSZV�OVHIHQ&�WHIHIP

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li
*$'#*$'#**$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#* .#-.#-.#-.#-.#-#-#-.#-.#-#-.#-#-.#- A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#...A=#.#.&#.#.&#.&#.&#.&#.#.&#.&#.&#.&#.&

dddSSSSSSZVSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS ���WWSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSIISSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS
DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDNNNNNNNNN

2024.03.14
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

2024.06.05
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

A8



��  !"#!$%&'(!)*%#+!,('-! ./
)*01220!$'-3+!$4+!5678�

8 79�:/95./.

4##!0*;'<(;+!0=%1'(<;+!%(0
;>*?'@'?%-'2(;!?2(-%'(*0!A*=*'(
%=*!-A*!*B?#C;'D*!>=2>*=-3!2@

4=0%#%(!EF%#%#'G!,(%C-A2='H*0!C;*
2=!=*>=20C?-'2(!'(!1A2#*!2=!'(
>%=-!';!;-='?-#3!>=2A'I'-*0+!%(0
#*<%#!%?-'2(!1'##!I*!-%J*(!-2

>=2-*?-!-A*!'(-*##*?-C%#!>=2>*=-3
='<A-;!2@!4=0%#%(!EF%#%#'G

�� !"#$%$&'()!*+)
,)-./ !"#$01!2*!34567

89-)$
,#$:#;!<#-().#=&!>!

*.&!?#')@

*AABC<<

<DEFCA!GH

AB*I F!GH
*$'#.#-!A=#.#.&

*$'#.#-!A=#.#.&

*"FJKKK!

A*LC

<MCCL!LDLNC

?#')@!#-'!<#-().#=&!
B)O ')-P )

BC
Q
D<
D8
F

LI 8!FCI !<DFENC!R *, DNH
BC<DACF2CS*LL*2MCA!*AT

 

A*LC AC<2BD"LD8F

 

*5V4

"M8L8<!8R
LMC

CUD<LDFE!
M8T<C

<LBCCL!QDCI G*2\!H*BA BC*B!CFLBH

ABDQCI *H ACL*2MCA!E*B*EC

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

HQ&�WH
�RcSZST/,dSZSZV�OVHIHQ&�WHIHIP

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li
*$'#*$'#**$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#* .#-.#-.#-.#-.#-#-#-.#-.#-#-.#-#-.#- A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#...A=#.#.&#.#.&#.&#.&#.&#.#.&#.&#.&#.&#.&

dddSSSSSSZVSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS ���WWSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSIISSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS
DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDNNNNNNNNN

2024.03.14
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

2024.06.05
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

A9



~17'-1"

~2
7'-

10
"

20
'-0

"

~1
22

'-3
 1

/2
"

~44'-9"

~1
22

'-1
 1

/2
"

~16'-7"

~26'-4"

~8
6'-

10
 1

/2
"

~9
6'-

11
"

~32'-11 1/2"

~20'-2 1/2"

~1
21

'-0
"~22'-7 1/2"

~2
1'-

3"

~9'-6"
~9'-11 1/2"

'

22

G
M

HE
AT

PU
M

P
HE

AT
PU

M
P

HE
AT

PU
M

P
HE

AT
PU

M
P

EM

4
2"2"2"2"2"2"2"2"2"2"2"

/2"2"2"2"2"22222
/2/2/2/22/2"22"22222
/2

1/2222"22"222"2"222"2"2"""2"2"2"2""

~22~20
~202
~20202222222222

2"2"2"2"2"
2 1/2/2"

/2/2/2/2/2/2/2/2/2
222222 1/111/2///

-222222 11
0 -222222222222
0 -2

~20
~20
~222222220 -2

0'0'
20022202

G
M

EM

1

4"4"

66""

202000 -2
0'0 -2-22 122 1/1/2

1

M
P

/2/2/

EA

2/2"
/2/2/2/222222"2"2"2"2"

UM
HE

99"

9'9'-99'-1111

M

EM

P
AT

M
P

HE
A

2~22'-72

M

~222

2"/2
"

/21/
3 

1
-3

 
2'-

3
22

'-
2212~1~

"0"-0
"

0'-
0

20
'

202

~9

1355 El Camin Real, Unit 527
Redwood City, CA, 94063

650-387-9272

736 Partridge Ave
Menlo Park

Owner
Maryam Sangelaji &

Ali Zadeh

ADDRESS

Zadeh & Sangelaji
 Residence
NEW SINGLE FAMILY

RESIDENCE+ATTACCHED ADU

SIGNED BY

DRAWN BY
Ardalan Djalali

Ardalan Djalali

APN: XXX

All designs, drawings, and
specifications contained herein
are the exclusive property of
Ardalan Djalali. Unauthorized use
or reproduction in whole or in
part is strictly prohibited, and
legal action will be taken to
protect the intellectual property

rights of Ardalan Djalali.

RE
V

IS
IO

N

DATE DESCRIPTION 

SHEET TITLE

AREA PLAN 1"=20' 1feet
2 4 8 121

AREA PLAN

A1.0

EXISTING BUILDING TO BE
REMOVED. TYP.

DR
IV

EW
AY

DR
IV

EW
AY

DR
IV

EW
AY

GARAGE

CARPORT

ACCESSORY
UNIT

NEW TREE

EXISTING TREE TO REMAIN

EXISTING TREE TO BE REMOVED

NEW LANDSCAPE AREA

NEW MAIN RESIDENCE

NEW ATTACHED ADU

NEW DETACHED GARAGE

AREA PLAN LEGEND - -

729

734746

748 736

729 723 715

2ND FLOOR
OUTLINE

2ND FLOOR
OUTLINE

ACCESSORY
UNIT

MAIN
RESIDENCE

MAIN
RESIDENCE

MAIN
RESIDENCE

MAIN
RESIDENCE

MAIN
RESIDENCE

MAIN
RESIDENCE

MAIN
RESIDENCE

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

HQ&�WH
�RcSZST/,dSZSZV�OVHIHQ&�WHIHIP

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li
ArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArA lan lan lan lanlan lan lanan lan an lana DjalDjalDjalDjalDjaDjalDjalDjalDjalDjaDjalDjaa aaaaaaaaaaaa

dddSSSSSSZVSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS EEEEEEEEEEESSSSSSSSSSSSEEEEEEEESSSSGGGGGGSSSSSSSSSSGGGGGGGGSSSSSSSS EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEDDDGGGGGGGGNNN

2024.03.14
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

2024.06.05
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

A10



11'-2"

1'-0"

12'-5 1/2"

24'-6"

G
M

HE
AT

PU
M

P
HE

AT
PU

M
P

HE
AT

PU
M

P
HE

AT
PU

M
P

EM

12
.0

9f
t

G
M

EM

M
PP

EA
UMM

HH

G

1'

M

0

EM

P
AT

M
P

HE
A

MM

4'-
0"

 A
DU

 R
EQ

UI
RE

D 
RE

AR
 S

ET
BA

C
K

18
'-1

1"
AD

U 
PR

O
PO

SE
D 

SE
TB

AC
K

5'-0" REQUIRED SIDE SETBACK
4'-0" ADU REQUIRED SIDE SETBACK

4'-6"ADU PROPOSED SIDE SETBACK

5'-0" MAIN RESIDENCE REQUIRED SIDE SETBACK

20
'-0

" R
EQ

UI
RE

D 
RE

AR
 M

AI
N 

RE
SID

EN
C

E 
SE

TB
AC

K
22

'-2
" P

RO
PO

SE
D 

M
AI

N 
RE

SID
EN

C
E 

RE
AR

 S
ET

BA
C

K

19
'-9

 1
/2

"
10

'-7
"

15
'-8

"

4'-0" ADU REQUIRED SIDE SETBACK

5'-0" MAIN RESIDENCE REQUIRED SIDE SETBACK

12'-6" DRIVE WAY

20
'-0

" R
EA

C
Q

UI
RE

D/
PR

O
PO

SE
D 

SE
TB

AC
K

3'-8" EAVE TO P.L.

3'-2" EAVE TO P.L.

3'-0" EAVE TO P.L.

4'-0 1/2"

10'-0"

16'-2" PROPOSED 2ND FLOOR SIDE SETBACK

11'-0 1/2"PROPOSED 2ND FLOOR SIDE SETBACK

25
'-0

" S
EC

O
ND

 F
LO

O
R 

SE
TB

AC
K

9'-8" PROPOSED 2ND FLOOR SIDE SETBACK

13'-6" PROPOSED 2ND FLOOR SIDE SETBACK

5'-0" PROPOSED DETACHED GARAGE
SIDE SETBACK

93
'-1

1"
 P

RO
PO

SE
D 

DE
TA

C
HE

D 
G

AR
AG

E 
SE

TB
AC

K
93

'-7
 1

/2
"

22
'-1

1"
 P

RO
PO

SE
D 

SE
C

O
ND

 F
LO

O
R 

RE
AR

 S
ET

BA
C

K

4'-
0"

 P
AT

IO
 E

NC
RO

AC
HM

EN
T T

O
 TH

E 
RE

AR
 S

ET
BA

C
K

1355 El Camin Real, Unit 527
Redwood City, CA, 94063

650-387-9272

736 Partridge Ave
Menlo Park

Owner
Maryam Sangelaji &

Ali Zadeh

ADDRESS

Zadeh & Sangelaji
 Residence
NEW SINGLE FAMILY

RESIDENCE+ATTACCHED ADU

SIGNED BY

DRAWN BY
Ardalan Djalali

Ardalan Djalali

APN: XXX

All designs, drawings, and
specifications contained herein
are the exclusive property of
Ardalan Djalali. Unauthorized use
or reproduction in whole or in
part is strictly prohibited, and
legal action will be taken to
protect the intellectual property

rights of Ardalan Djalali.

RE
V

IS
IO

N

DATE DESCRIPTION 

SHEET TITLE

SITE PLAN 3/32" 1feet
2 4 8 121

feet
2 4 8 121DEMO SITE PLAN 3/32" 2

SITE PLAN
&

DEMO SITE PLAN

A1.0a

(N) +/-68.92'
T.O.S. HOUSE (1)

(N) +/-68.90'
T.O.S. ADU

(N) +/-68.50'
T.O.S. GARAGE (1)

(N) +/-69.67'
T.O.S.ADU (2)

(N) +/-69.67'
T.O.S.HOUSE (2)

(N) +/-68.50'
T.O.S.GARAGE (2)

(N) +/-69.58'
T.O.S. PATIO

(N) +/-68.83'
T.O.S. PATIO

(N) +/-68.83'
T.O.S. PORCH

(N) +/-69.58'
T.O.S. PORCH

1

18 18

WM WM

3

4

5

6

7

9

9

9

9

11

11

11

13

14

9

15

15

15

15

15
15

15

16 15

17

17

2

22

2

7

1

3H

2H

7

3H

2H

7

11

20

21

22

19

19

23

23

23

23

23

10 TYP.

10
TYP.

12

8

8

4H

5

2

2

2 2

            = NUMBER TO KEY NOTE BELOW
1. EXISTING PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY--ANY CONSTRUCTION WITHIN THE CITY

RIGHT-OF-WAY MUST HAVE AN APPROVED "PERMIT FOR CONSTRUCTION IN
THE PUBLIC STREET" PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF THIS WORK. THE
PERFORMANCE OF THIS WORK IS NOT AUTHORIZED BY THE BUILDING PERMIT
ISSUANCE BUT SHOWN ON THE BUILDING PERMIT FOR INFORMATION ONLY

2. APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF NEIGHBORING STRUCTURE
3. (N) WATER METER--CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE (N) METER WITH LOCAL

WATER COMPANY IF REQUIRED BY INCREASED FIXTURE LOAD
4. (N) GAS METER LOCATION--INSTALL TWO 2" DIAMETER x 30" TALL STEEL PIPE

BOLLARDS EMBEDDED IN 2 FT DEEP CONCRETE FOOTINGS IF GAS METER IS
WITHIN 3 FEET OF DRIVEWAY

5. (N) ELECTRICAL METER LOCATION--CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE WITH
LOCAL ELECTRICAL COMPANY FOR UPGRADE (400 AMPS) TO (E) ELECTRICAL
SERVICE--INSTALL UFER GROUND CONNECTION PER CEC 250-52

6. (N) 4" SEWER LATERAL--CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY LOCATION IN
FIELD--PROVIDE CLEANOUT AT THE POINT OF CONNECTION BETWEEN THE
BUILDING SEWER AND THE MUNICIPAL LATERAL, USE AN APPROVED FITTING
TO BRING THE CLEANOUT RISER TO GRADE. WHERE SEWER CLEANOUTS ARE
TO BE CONNECTED TO EXISTING MUNICIPAL LATERALS, SUCH CONNECTIONS
SHALL BE ACCOMPLISHED BY USE OF AN APPROVED FITTING

7. (E) TREE(S) TO REMAIN- PROTECT AS REQUIRED DURING CONSTRUCTION - DO
NOT LEAVE MATERIALS OR EQUIPMENT IN ROOT AREAS FOR EXTENDED
PERIODS OF TIME. SEE ARBORIST REPORT (IF PROVIDED) FOR ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION

8. (E) TREE TO BE REMOVED--SEE ARBORIST REPORT
9. (N) SOFTSCAPE--PROVIDE DRIP IRRIGATION
10. (E) FENCE AND GATES TO BE REMOVED
11. (N) FENCE AND GATE--VERIFY FINAL DESIGN AND FINISH WITH--NEW FENCES

TO CONFORM TO JURISDICTION'S FENCE REGULATIONS
12. (E) DRIVEWAY TO BE REMOVED
13. (N) DRIVEWAY, PAVERS OVER 8" BASE ROCK AND 2" SAND PER GEOTECH

REPORT] -- VERIFY PAVER DESIGN WITH
14. (N) HARDSCAPE--SLOPE AWAY FROM HOUSE @ 2% MIN.
15. (N) 36" MIN. DEEP LEVEL LANDING PER CRC 311.3 W STEPS (MAX. 7.75" RISER)-

PROVIDE EQUAL RISERS IF MORE THAN 1 STEP
16. (N) PORCH OR TRELLIS COLUMNS
17. (N) HEATPUMP UNIT PAD(S)--PROVIDE ELECTRICAL TO THIS LOCATION AS

REQUIRED, VERIFY SIZE AND QUANTITY WITH HVAC CONTRACTOR. HEATPUMP
UNITS TO COMPLY WITH JURISDICTION'S NOISE ORDINANCE--SEE HVAC PLANS

18. (N) CURB CUT PER LOCAL JURISDICTION'S STANDARD DETAIL--SEE CIVIL PLANS
19. EXISTING BUILDING TO BE REMOVED
20. (E) WATER METER TO BE REMOVED/ UPGRADED
21. (E) ELECTRIC METER TO BE REMOVED
22. (E)GAS METER TO BE REMOVED
23. (E) HARDSCAPE TO BE REMOVED
24. (N) TREE--SEE LANDSCAPE PLAN FOR MORE INFO

#

SITE PLAN KEYNOTES  -

EXISTING BUILDING AREA

 SITE PLAN LEGEND  -

REQUIRED YARD SETBACK/EASEMENT

NOTES:
1. (E) WATER SUPPLY TO BE REPLACED FROM METER IN.
2. (E) SEWER LATERAL TO BE REPLACED FROM PROPERTY LINE IN.
3. SEE LS PLANS FOR ALL SITE CONCRETE AND HARDSCAPE

DETAILS--CO-ORDINATE WITH CIVL & GEOTECH. REQUIREMENTS

NEW BUILDING AREA

NEW DRIVEWAY

SPOT ELEVATION, SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS
FOR MORE INFOXX

+/-XX.XX'

PROPERTY LINE--SEE TOPO SURVEY FOR MORE INFO

1 TREE NUMBER--REFER TO ARBORIST REPORT FOR SPECIES
AND OTHER INFO

TREE PROTECTION FENCING--TREE PROTECTION
TO BE INSTALLED PRIOR TO START OF
CONSTRUCTION AND REMAIN IN PLACE TILL
COMPLETION--SEE ARBORIST REPORT FOR
ADDITIONAL INFO

NEW MAIN RESIDENCE

NEW ADU

NEW GARAGE

TREE TO BE RMOVED

NEW LANDSCAPE AREA--SEE LS AREA CALCS FOR MORE INFO

NEW FENCE AT PROPERTY LINE

15

14

TYP.

TYP.

4

5

24

24

24 24 24

24

New 24 inch box street tree
per city requirements --See
LS plans for more info

(N) +/-68.46'
T.O. LANDING

(N) +/-68.67'
T.O. STAIR

PROVIDE TRUNK WRAP
PER ARBORIST REPORT

Tree protection fencing requirements as required by the City of Menlo Park:
1) Establish tree protection fencing radius by installing six (6)-foot tall chain link fencing mounted on eight (8)-foot tall, 1.5-inch diameter galvanized posts,
driven 24 inches into the ground and spaced no more than 10 feet apart.
2) Post signs on the fencing (in English and Spanish) printed on 11”x17” yellow-colored paper (signage attached) with Project Arborist’s contact information.
Signage should be on each protection fence in a prominent location.
3) Movable barriers of chain link fencing secured to cement blocks may be substituted for fixed fencing if the Project Arborist and City Arborist agree that the fencing
 will have to be moved to ac-commodate certain phases of construction. The builder may not move the fence without authorization
from the Project Arborist or City Arborist.
4) Place a 6-inch layer of coarse mulch or woodchips covered with ¾-inch plywood or alternative
within the TPZ over bare ground prior to construction activity

 Establish standard TPZ fencing radius to five feet (5’), or to the
greatest extent possible as limited by the street and sidewalk.

Establish standard TPZ fencing radius to 15
feet, or to the greatest extent possible as
limited by the driveway.  along the driveway.
Place fence posts into the ground along the
existing hardscape.

Bare ground within the TPZ should have material applied over the ground to reduce
soil compaction and retain soil moisture.  This may be done by applying a six to
12-inch layer of wood chip mulch to the area.  With this method, mulch in excess of
four inches would have to be removed after work is completed.  As an alternative
method that would not require mulch removal, the contractor could place
plywood (>3/4-inch-thick) or road mats over a four-inch layer of mulch.  Mulch
should be spread manually so as not cause compaction or damage.

six to 12-inch layer of wood chip mulch
AREA

six to 12-inch layer of wood chip mulch
AREA

Establish standard TPZ fencing radius to 15
feet, or to the greatest extent possible as
limited by the driveway.  along the driveway.
Place fence posts into the ground along the
existing hardscape.

six to 12-inch layer of wood chip mulch
AREA

PROVIDE TRUNK WRAP
PER ARBORIST REPORT

six to 12-inch layer of wood chip mulch
AREA  Establish standard TPZ fencing radius to five feet (5’), or to the

greatest extent possible as limited by the street and sidewalk.

5

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

HQ&�WH
�RcSZST/,dSZSZV�OVHIHQ&�WHIHIP

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

ArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdArdArdaArdaArdalanlan lan an lanlan an lan an alan alan DjalDjalDjalDjalDjaDjaDjaDjalDjalDjalDjalDjalalalialialialialialialalialialialirdalananaanaan DjaDjaDjaDjaDDjaaaaalllldalanaaanaanaaa DjaDjaDDDDDDjaDjaDDaaa DDDDDDDDaaaa DDDDDDDDDaaa DDDD���WWDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDSSSSSIaaaaaaaSSSSSAAAAAAAAA
DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDNNNNNNNNNNNNN

AAAA

2024.03.14
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

2024.06.05
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

A11



9'
-0

"Unit 1 Garage

stacked
w

/d

br1/office

family/kitchen

adu--br1

adu-ba1

foyer

9'
x1

2'

63" Loveseat

18
"x

18
"

18
"x

18
"

18
"x

18
"

18
"x

18
"

36
" w

 c
of

fe
e

63" Loveseat

med.cab.

3'-6"

24
"

dw
24

"
tra

sh

48" ref - flush
inset

48"range

queen - 60x80

3'-0"

2'
-8

"

W/H

G
M

HE
AT

PU
M

P
HE

AT
PU

M
P

24" u.c.
ref

microwave hood

C
RAW

L

C
RAW

L

queen - 60x80

3'-0"

3'-0"

adu living

adu kitchen

w.i.c.
ba1

powder

1
A5.0

2
A5.0

2
A5.0

1

2
A3.1

1
A3.2

2
A3.2

1
A3.32

A3.3

4
A3.3

EM

PORCH

2'-8"

2'-8"

2'-8"

2'-8"
2'-8"

3'-0"

2'-8"

1'
-6

"
1'

-6
"

3'-0"3'-0"1'-0"

3'-0" 3'-0"3'-0"

2'
-6

"
2'

-1
0"

2'
-1

0"
2'

-1
0"

2'-8"
2'-8"

4'-8"

2'-8"
2'-8"

4'-8"

2'-0"

2'-6"
2'-0"

2'-0"

2'
-6

"

2'-0"
4'-0"

2'-6"

4'
-0

"

3'-0"
3

0
3

0
3

0

24" u.c.
ref

C
RAW

L

adu living

adu kkkkk

2'-8" 28 28

3'-0" 3'0" 3'0" 3'0"

3'-0"3 03 03 0 3'-0"3 03 03 03'-0"3 03 03 0

4'
-0

"
4

0
4

0

br1/office

chen

er

24
"

dw
24

"
tra

sh

48" ref - flush
inset

48"range

queen - 60x80

//
q

W/H

LL
C

RAW
L

C
RAWW

L
C

w.i.c.
ba1bb

2'-8"2 82 82 8 2'-8"2 82 82 8

2'-8"
2

8
2

8
2'-8"
2

8
2

8

3 03 03'-0"3 03 03 03 03'-0"3 03 01'-0"1 01 01 0

2'-0"
2

0
2

0

stacked
w

/d

family/kitc

adu--br1

adu-ba1

foye

2'//

63" Loveseat

18
"x

18
"

18
"x

18
"

18
"x

18
"

18
"x

18
"

of
fe

e

mm

63" Loveseat

3'-6"3 63 63 6

2'
-8

"
2

8
2

8

microwave hoo caeodo co

queen - 60x80
q

kitchen

powder 8"

2'-8"2 82 82 8

1'
-

1'
-

111111
--

1
---6

"
-6

"666""-

9'
-0

"Unit 1 Garageee

3'-0"

17'-5"

27
'-9

 1
/2

"
11

'-3
"

17
'-8

 1
/2

"

14'-8"

5'-0" 12'-5"

10
'-8

"
5'-

10
 1

/2
"

7'-
0"

16
'-2

"

14'-10"12'-4 1/2"
12

'-1
1 

1/
2"

5'-0 1/2"

27'-4 1/2"

14
'-4

 1
/2

"
11

'-3
"

6'-9" 3'-3 1/2"

4'-
2"

6'-
10

"
5'-

0"
12

'-5
"

5'-2" 5'-11"

11'-8 1/2"

3'-
6"

3'-
6"

20'-0"

10
'-0

"

feet
1 2 3 4 6 1ST FLOOR PLAN--FRONT HOUSE  1/4" 1

FRONT HOUSE
FIRST FLOOR

PLAN

A2.1a

1355 El Camin Real, Unit 527
Redwood City, CA, 94063

650-387-9272

736 Partridge Ave
Menlo Park

Owner
Maryam Sangelaji &

Ali Zadeh

ADDRESS

Zadeh & Sangelaji
 Residence
NEW SINGLE FAMILY

RESIDENCE+ATTACCHED ADU

SIGNED BY

DRAWN BY
Ardalan Djalali

Ardalan Djalali

APN: XXX

A2.1a1

All designs, drawings, and
specifications contained herein
are the exclusive property of
Ardalan Djalali. Unauthorized use
or reproduction in whole or in
part is strictly prohibited, and
legal action will be taken to
protect the intellectual property

rights of Ardalan Djalali.

RE
V

IS
IO

N

DATE DESCRIPTION 

SHEET TITLE

#

(N) WALL: EXTERIOR: 2x6 STUDS @16" O.C.; INTERIOR 2x4 STUDS
@16"O.C--SEE ELEVATIONS AND STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS FOR
EXTERIOR WALL MATERIAL ASSEMBLIES.  INSTALL 2 LAYERS OF
BUILDING PAPER (FOR STUCCO ONLY)/1 LAYER (MIN.) OF
WEATHER RESISTIVE BARRIER (TYVEK HOUSE WRAP OR EQ.) OVER
EXTERIOR WALLS SHEATHING PER CRC 703.2--INSTALL PER
MANUF. INSTRUCTIONS. PROVIDE 5/8" TYPE 'X' GYPSUM BOARD
EACH SIDE @ INTERIOR PARTITIONS.  PROVIDE CEMENT BOARD
OR TILE BACKER BOARD AT SHOWER/TUB LOCATIONS.   ALL
WALLS TO RECEIVE (N) PAINT FINISH.  ALL CEILINGS AT
TUB/SHOWERS TO BE M.R. BOARD

FLOOR PLAN LEGEND -

NOTE:
1. SEE 2/A0.1a FOR PLUMBING GENERAL NOTES
2. SEE 3/A0.1a FOR MECHANICAL GENERAL NOTES
3. SEE 4/A0.1a FOR ELECTRICAL GENERAL NOTES
4. SEE 5/A0.1a FOR PLAN AND INTERIOR GENERAL NOTES

FLOOR PLAN KEYNOTES -

1

2

3

4

5

6

8 9

10

11

12

13

14

7

16
UPPER WINDOW

EGRESS

TE
M

P

EGRESS

TE
M

P

TEMP

TEMP

TEMP

A

B

C

D

E

F

FEATURE WALL

DOOR BETWEEN THE ADU AND MAIN RESIDENCE
TO HAVE A DOUBLE LOCKING MECHANISM

FEATURE WALL--THERE IS NO FOUNDATION FOR
THE FEATURE WALL IN FRONT SETBACK AREA

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

HQ&�WH
�RcSZST/,dSZSZV�OVHIHQ&�WHIHIP

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li
ArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArA lan lan lan lanlan lan lanan lan an lana DjalDjalDjalDjalDjaDjalDjalDjalDjalDjaDjalDjaa aaaaaaaaaaaa

dddSSSSSSZVSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS EEEEEEEEEEESSSSSSSSSSSSEEEEEEEESSSSGGGGGGSSSSSSSSSSGGGGGGGGSSSSSSSS EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEDDDGGGGGGGGNNN

2024.03.14
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

2024.06.05
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

A12



king - 76x80

queen - 60x80

qu
ee

n 
- 6

0x
80

br2

br3

mbr

mba

ba2

W
34x27

D
34x27

2'
-8

"
2'

-4
"

2'
-6

"

1
A5.0

1
A5.0

2
A5.0

2
A5.0

2'-8"
2'-8"

2'
-6

"

2'-8"

2'-0" 3'-0" 3'-0"2'-0"
2'

-6
"

2'
-6

"
3'

-0
"

2'
-4

"
2'

-4
"

3'-0"3'-0"

2'
-4

"
2'

-4
"

3'-0"

2'-0"
4'-0"

2'-4" 2'-4"

4'-0"

4'-0"

king - 76x80
g

queen - 60x80 q

qu
ee

n 
- 6

0x
80

q

br2br2

br3

mbr

mba

ba2

W
34x27

D
34x27

2'
-8

"
2

8
2

8
2'

-4
"

2
4

2
4

2'
-6

"
2

6
2

6

2'-8"
2

8
2

8
2'-8"
2

8
2

8

2'
-6

"
2

6
2

6

2'-8" 28 28

2'
-4

"
2

4
2

4
2

4
2'

-4
"

2
4

2
4

2
4

3'-0"
3

0
3

0

2 42'-4"2 42 4 2'-4"2'-42 42 42 4

4'-0"4 04 0

4'-0"4 04 0

11'-0"

10
'-8

"
2'-

0"
11

'-0
 1

/2
"

12
'-3

"
12'-2 1/2" 6'-5"

4'-
3 

1/
2"

9'-
8 

1/
2"

11'-8 1/2"

7'-
0"

5'-2"

5'-
3"

5'-4"5'-9 1/2"
5'-

4"

4'-11"3'-3"

feet
1 2 3 4 6 2ND FLOOR PLAN--FRONT HOUSE  1/4" 1

FRONT HOUSE
SECOND FLOOR

PLAN

A2.1b

1355 El Camin Real, Unit 527
Redwood City, CA, 94063

650-387-9272

736 Partridge Ave
Menlo Park

Owner
Maryam Sangelaji &

Ali Zadeh

ADDRESS

Zadeh & Sangelaji
 Residence
NEW SINGLE FAMILY

RESIDENCE+ATTACCHED ADU

SIGNED BY

DRAWN BY
Ardalan Djalali

Ardalan Djalali

APN: XXX

A2.1b1bbbbbbbbbbbbbb

All designs, drawings, and
specifications contained herein
are the exclusive property of
Ardalan Djalali. Unauthorized use
or reproduction in whole or in
part is strictly prohibited, and
legal action will be taken to
protect the intellectual property

rights of Ardalan Djalali.

RE
V

IS
IO

N

DATE DESCRIPTION 

SHEET TITLE

#

(N) WALL: EXTERIOR: 2x6 STUDS @16" O.C.; INTERIOR 2x4 STUDS
@16"O.C--SEE ELEVATIONS AND STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS FOR
EXTERIOR WALL MATERIAL ASSEMBLIES.  INSTALL 2 LAYERS OF
BUILDING PAPER (FOR STUCCO ONLY)/1 LAYER (MIN.) OF
WEATHER RESISTIVE BARRIER (TYVEK HOUSE WRAP OR EQ.) OVER
EXTERIOR WALLS SHEATHING PER CRC 703.2--INSTALL PER
MANUF. INSTRUCTIONS. PROVIDE 5/8" TYPE 'X' GYPSUM BOARD
EACH SIDE @ INTERIOR PARTITIONS.  PROVIDE CEMENT BOARD
OR TILE BACKER BOARD AT SHOWER/TUB LOCATIONS.   ALL
WALLS TO RECEIVE (N) PAINT FINISH.  ALL CEILINGS AT
TUB/SHOWERS TO BE M.R. BOARD

FLOOR PLAN LEGEND -

NOTE:
1. SEE 2/A0.1a FOR PLUMBING GENERAL NOTES
2. SEE 3/A0.1a FOR MECHANICAL GENERAL NOTES
3. SEE 4/A0.1a FOR ELECTRICAL GENERAL NOTES
4. SEE 5/A0.1a FOR PLAN AND INTERIOR GENERAL NOTES

FLOOR PLAN KEYNOTES -1516

17

18

19

20

21

22
23 24

25

26

27

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

HQ&�WH
�RcSZST/,dSZSZV�OVHIHQ&�WHIHIP

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li
ArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArA lan lan lan lanlan lan lanan lan an lana DjalDjalDjalDjalDjaDjalDjalDjalDjalDjaDjalDjaa aaaaaaaaaaaa

dddSSSSSSZVSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS EEEEEEEEEEESSSSSSSSSSSSEEEEEEEESSSSGGGGGGSSSSSSSSSSGGGGGGGGSSSSSSSS EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEDDDGGGGGGGGNNN

2024.03.14
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

2024.06.05
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

A13



garage

9'-0"

3'-0"

3'
-0

"

qu
ee

n 
- 6

0x
80

adu office foyer
adu--br1

adu-ba1
ba1

2'
-1

0"

9'
x1

2'
63" Loveseat

18
"x

18
"

18
"x

18
"

18
"x

18
"

18
"x

18
"

36
" w

 c
of

fe
e

63" Loveseat

48" ref - flush
inset

48"range

powder

24"
dw

24"
trash

HE
AT

PU
M

P
HE

AT
PU

M
P

C
RAW

L

CRAWL

3'-0"

adu kitchen

adu living

family/ kitchen

1
A5.1

1
A5.1

2
A5.1

2
A5.1

3
A3.5

1
A3.4

2
A3.4

4
A3.5

2'-0"
2'-0"

2'-8"

2'-8"

2'-8"

2'-8"

2'-6"

2'-8"

2'-6"
2'-6"

2'-6"
2'-6"

1'-2 1/2"3'-0"3'-0"

2'
-4

"
2'

-4
"

3'-0"3'-0"

2'-4" 2'-4"3'-4"

2'
-4

"

4'-0"

7'-0"

9'-0"

3'-0"

3'
-0

"

G
M

EM

W/H

2'-6"

3'-0"

24" ref
column

3'
-0

"

W
34x27

D
34x27

mud room/laundry 

3'-0"

3'-0"

2'-0" 2'-0"

W/H

qu
ee

n 
- 6

0x
80

q

adu--br1

adu-ba1uuu

CRAWL

adu kitchen

adu living

2'-8" 28 28 2'-8"

2'-8"
2'8"
2'8"

2'-8"
2

8
2

8

2'-4"2 42 42 4 2'-4"2 42 42 43'-4"3 43 43 4

7'-0"7' 0"7' 0"

W/H

2'-6" 26 26

3'-0"
3

0
3

0

24" ref
column

3'-0"3 03 03 0

foyer

2'
-1

0"
2

10
2

10

48" ref - flush
inset

48"range

24"
dw

24"
trash

/ kitchen

2'-0"
2

0
2

0
2'-0"
2

0
2

0

1 2 1/21'-2 1/2"1 2 1/21 2 1/2

garage

3'
-0

"
3'

-0
"

W
34x27 34x27

D
34x27 34x27

mud room/laundry oo

3'-0"3' 0"3' 0"

2'0" 2'-0" 2'-0" 2'0" 2'0" 2'0"

W/H

3'
-0

"
3

0
3

0

adu office

ba1bbb

9'
x1

2'
63" Loveseat

18
"x

18
"

18
"x

18
"

18
"x

18
"

18
"x

18
"

w
 c

of
fe

e

63" Loveseat

powder

LL
C

RAW
L

C
RAW

CC

family//9a36
" w6"

2'-8" 28 28

2'-8"
2

2'-6"
2'6"
2'6"

3 03'-0"3 03 03'-0"3 03 03 0

4'-0"4' 0"4' 0"

13'-3 1/2" 25'-11"

16
'-9

 1
/2

"

14
'-5

"

7'-
0 

1/
2"

20
'-1

"

10'-1"17'-0"12'-2"

11
'-6

 1
/2

"
2'-

0"
5'-

0"
4'-

6"
15

'-1
1 

1/
2"

3'-
6"

3'-
6"

4'-8 1/2"

10
'-6

"
7'-

3 
1/

2"

3'-2"8'-6 1/2"

3'-5 1/2"

6'-
2 

1/
2"

4'-
1"

 P
AT

IO
 E

NC
RO

AC
HM

EN
T T

O
 TH

E 
SE

TB
AC

K

3'-
0"

feet
1 2 3 4 6 1ST FLOOR PLAN--REAR HOUSE  1/4" 1

REAR HOUSE
FIRST FLOOR

PLAN

A2.1c

1355 El Camin Real, Unit 527
Redwood City, CA, 94063

650-387-9272

736 Partridge Ave
Menlo Park

Owner
Maryam Sangelaji &

Ali Zadeh

ADDRESS

Zadeh & Sangelaji
 Residence
NEW SINGLE FAMILY

RESIDENCE+ATTACCHED ADU

SIGNED BY

DRAWN BY
Ardalan Djalali

Ardalan Djalali

APN: XXX

A2.1c1

All designs, drawings, and
specifications contained herein
are the exclusive property of
Ardalan Djalali. Unauthorized use
or reproduction in whole or in
part is strictly prohibited, and
legal action will be taken to
protect the intellectual property

rights of Ardalan Djalali.

RE
V

IS
IO

N

DATE DESCRIPTION 

SHEET TITLE

#

(N) WALL: EXTERIOR: 2x6 STUDS @16" O.C.; INTERIOR 2x4 STUDS
@16"O.C--SEE ELEVATIONS AND STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS FOR
EXTERIOR WALL MATERIAL ASSEMBLIES.  INSTALL 2 LAYERS OF
BUILDING PAPER (FOR STUCCO ONLY)/1 LAYER (MIN.) OF
WEATHER RESISTIVE BARRIER (TYVEK HOUSE WRAP OR EQ.) OVER
EXTERIOR WALLS SHEATHING PER CRC 703.2--INSTALL PER
MANUF. INSTRUCTIONS. PROVIDE 5/8" TYPE 'X' GYPSUM BOARD
EACH SIDE @ INTERIOR PARTITIONS.  PROVIDE CEMENT BOARD
OR TILE BACKER BOARD AT SHOWER/TUB LOCATIONS.   ALL
WALLS TO RECEIVE (N) PAINT FINISH.  ALL CEILINGS AT
TUB/SHOWERS TO BE M.R. BOARD

FLOOR PLAN LEGEND -

NOTE:
1. SEE 2/A0.1a FOR PLUMBING GENERAL NOTES
2. SEE 3/A0.1a FOR MECHANICAL GENERAL NOTES
3. SEE 4/A0.1a FOR ELECTRICAL GENERAL NOTES
4. SEE 5/A0.1a FOR PLAN AND INTERIOR GENERAL NOTES

FLOOR PLAN KEYNOTES -

12

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

A

B

C

D

E

F

EGRESSEGRESS

TE
M

P

TE
M

P

TEMP

TEMP

DOOR BETWEEN THE ADU
AND MAIN RESIDENCE TO
HAVE A DOUBLE LOCKING
MECHANISM

DOOR BETWEEN THE ADU
AND MAIN RESIDENCE TO
HAVE A DOUBLE LOCKING
MECHANISM

G

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

HQ&�WH
�RcSZST/,dSZSZV�OVHIHQ&�WHIHIP

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li
ArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArA lan lan lan lanlan lan lanan lan an lana DjalDjalDjalDjalDjaDjalDjalDjalDjalDjaDjalDjaa aaaaaaaaaaaa

dddSSSSSSZVSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS EEEEEEEEEEESSSSSSSSSSSSEEEEEEEESSSSGGGGGGSSSSSSSSSSGGGGGGGGSSSSSSSS EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEDDDGGGGGGGGNNN

2024.03.14
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

2024.06.05
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

A14



ki
ng

 - 
76

x8
0

ba
2

mbr

mba

w.i.c

queen - 60x80

br3

qu
ee

n 
- 6

0x
80

br2

2'
-6

"

1
A5.1

1
A5.1

2
A5.1

2
A5.1

2'-8"

2'-8"

2'-8"

2'-6"

2'-6"

2'-0"

3'-0"3'-0"

5'
-9

"

2'
-0

"
2'

-0
"

3'-6"3'-6"

2'-0"
2'-0"

2'-6"

3'-6"3'-6"

2'-0"

2'-0"

4'-0"

6'-0"

ki
ng

 - 
76

x8
0

g

ba
2

mbr

mba

w.i.c

queen - 60x80
q

br3

qu
ee

n 
- 6

0x
80

q

br2b 2

2'
-6

"
2

6
2

6

2'-8" 28 28

2'-8"2 82 8

2'-8"
2

8
2

8

2'6"
2'-6"
2'6"

2'-6"
2

6
2

6

2'-0"
2

0
2

0

5'
-9

"
5

9
5

9
5

9

3'-6"3 63 63 63'-6"3 63 63 6

3'-6"3 63 63 63'-6"3 63 63 6

2'-0"
2

0
2

0

4'-0"4 04 0

6'-0"6 06 0

10'-10"10'-9 1/2"

10
'-7

 1
/2

"
2'-

0"
7'-

0"
4'-

2 
1/

2"
9'-

2"

6'-5" 12'-0 1/2"

13
'-6

"
8'-

9"
2'-

1"
10

'-7
 1

/2
"

3'-6"3'-
6"

3'-
6"

11'-0"

3'-6"

feet
1 2 3 4 6 2ND FLOOR PLAN--REAR HOUSE  1/4" 1

REAR HOUSE
SECOND FLOOR

PLAN

A2.1d

1355 El Camin Real, Unit 527
Redwood City, CA, 94063

650-387-9272

736 Partridge Ave
Menlo Park

Owner
Maryam Sangelaji &

Ali Zadeh

ADDRESS

Zadeh & Sangelaji
 Residence
NEW SINGLE FAMILY

RESIDENCE+ATTACCHED ADU

SIGNED BY

DRAWN BY
Ardalan Djalali

Ardalan Djalali

APN: XXX

A2.1d

All designs, drawings, and
specifications contained herein
are the exclusive property of
Ardalan Djalali. Unauthorized use
or reproduction in whole or in
part is strictly prohibited, and
legal action will be taken to
protect the intellectual property

rights of Ardalan Djalali.

RE
V

IS
IO

N

DATE DESCRIPTION 

SHEET TITLE

#

(N) WALL: EXTERIOR: 2x6 STUDS @16" O.C.; INTERIOR 2x4 STUDS
@16"O.C--SEE ELEVATIONS AND STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS FOR
EXTERIOR WALL MATERIAL ASSEMBLIES.  INSTALL 2 LAYERS OF
BUILDING PAPER (FOR STUCCO ONLY)/1 LAYER (MIN.) OF
WEATHER RESISTIVE BARRIER (TYVEK HOUSE WRAP OR EQ.) OVER
EXTERIOR WALLS SHEATHING PER CRC 703.2--INSTALL PER
MANUF. INSTRUCTIONS. PROVIDE 5/8" TYPE 'X' GYPSUM BOARD
EACH SIDE @ INTERIOR PARTITIONS.  PROVIDE CEMENT BOARD
OR TILE BACKER BOARD AT SHOWER/TUB LOCATIONS.   ALL
WALLS TO RECEIVE (N) PAINT FINISH.  ALL CEILINGS AT
TUB/SHOWERS TO BE M.R. BOARD

FLOOR PLAN LEGEND -

NOTE:
1. SEE 2/A0.1a FOR PLUMBING GENERAL NOTES
2. SEE 3/A0.1a FOR MECHANICAL GENERAL NOTES
3. SEE 4/A0.1a FOR ELECTRICAL GENERAL NOTES
4. SEE 5/A0.1a FOR PLAN AND INTERIOR GENERAL NOTES

FLOOR PLAN KEYNOTES -

10

11

12

13

14

15 16

17

18

19

20

21
EGRESS

EGRESS

EGRESSTEMP

TE
M

P

TEM
P

FEATURE WALL

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

HQ&�WH
�RcSZST/,dSZSZV�OVHIHQ&�WHIHIP

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li
ArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArA lan lan lan lanlan lan lanan lan an lana DjalDjalDjalDjalDjaDjalDjalDjalDjalDjaDjalDjaa aaaaaaaaaaaa

dddSSSSSSZVSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS EEEEEEEEEEESSSSSSSSSSSSEEEEEEEESSSSGGGGGGSSSSSSSSSSGGGGGGGGSSSSSSSS EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEDDDGGGGGGGGNNN

2024.03.14
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

2024.06.05
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

A15



1
A5.0

1
A5.0

2
A5.0

2
A5.0

1'-0" EAVE ENCROACHMENT FROM ADU SETBACK

1'-0"

1'-0"

1'-
0"

1'-0"

1'-
0"

1'-
0"

1'-0"

1'-0"

1'-0"
1'-

0"

1'-0"

1'-
0"

1'-0"

1'-
0"

feet
1 2 3 4 6

FRONT HOUSE
LOWER

ROOF PLAN

A2.2a
LOWER ROOF PLAN 1/4" 1

1355 El Camin Real, Unit 527
Redwood City, CA, 94063

650-387-9272

736 Partridge Ave
Menlo Park

Owner
Maryam Sangelaji &

Ali Zadeh

ADDRESS

Zadeh & Sangelaji
 Residence
NEW SINGLE FAMILY

RESIDENCE+ATTACCHED ADU

SIGNED BY

DRAWN BY
Ardalan Djalali

Ardalan Djalali

APN: XXX

A2.2a2

All designs, drawings, and
specifications contained herein
are the exclusive property of
Ardalan Djalali. Unauthorized use
or reproduction in whole or in
part is strictly prohibited, and
legal action will be taken to
protect the intellectual property

rights of Ardalan Djalali.

RE
V

IS
IO

N

DATE DESCRIPTION 

SHEET TITLE

DENOTES GUTTER DRAIN (3" DIA.) AND DOWNSPOUT (2" X 3") 26 GA
ALUMINUM - PAINTED TO MATCH TRIM COLOR-- VERIFY SPEC. W/
OWNER.  INSTALL PER MFR. INSTRUCTIONS

ROOF PLAN LEGEND

DS

DENOTES DIRECTION OF SLOPE FROM HIGH TO LOW--ROOF SLOPE
APPROX., REFER TO ELEVATIONS FOR MAX HT AND VERTICAL CONTROL

LINE OF BLDG. BELOW

ASPHALT COMPOSITION SHINGLES o/ 1 LAYER 15# ROOF FELT (EXCEPT
FOR AT ROOF SLOPES BETWEEN 2-4:12, INSTALL 2 LAYERS) PER CRC
905.2.7--MIN. CLASS A --MANUF: CERTAINTEED; STYLE: PRESIDENTIAL
SHAKE TL; COLOR: AUTUMN BLEND; LIFETIME EXPECTANCY--VERIFY
FINAL SELECTION WITH OWNER PRIOR TO PLACING ORDER. INSTALL PER
MANUF. WARRANTY INSTRUCTIONS AND ICC-ES EVALUATION REPORT
#ESR-1389

RAIN CHAIN

RAIN CHAIN

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS DS

ALL ROOF SLOPE TO BE 4:12 TYP.

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

HQ&�WH
�RcSZST/,dSZSZV�OVHIHQ&�WHIHIP

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li
ArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArA lan lan lan lanlan lan lanan lan an lana DjalDjalDjalDjalDjaDjalDjalDjalDjalDjaDjalDjaa aaaaaaaaaaaa

dddSSSSSSZVSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS EEEEEEEEEEESSSSSSSSSSSSEEEEEEEESSSSGGGGGGSSSSSSSSSSGGGGGGGGSSSSSSSS EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEDDDGGGGGGGGNNN

2024.03.14
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

2024.06.05
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

A16



1
A5.0

1
A5.0

2
A5.0

2
A5.0

feet
1 2 3 4 6

FRONT HOUSE
UPPER

ROOF PLAN

A2.2b
UPPER ROOF PLAN 1/4" 1

1355 El Camin Real, Unit 527
Redwood City, CA, 94063

650-387-9272

736 Partridge Ave
Menlo Park

Owner
Maryam Sangelaji &

Ali Zadeh

ADDRESS

Zadeh & Sangelaji
 Residence
NEW SINGLE FAMILY

RESIDENCE+ATTACCHED ADU

SIGNED BY

DRAWN BY
Ardalan Djalali

Ardalan Djalali

APN: XXX

A2.2b2bbbbbbbbbb

All designs, drawings, and
specifications contained herein
are the exclusive property of
Ardalan Djalali. Unauthorized use
or reproduction in whole or in
part is strictly prohibited, and
legal action will be taken to
protect the intellectual property

rights of Ardalan Djalali.

RE
V

IS
IO

N

DATE DESCRIPTION 

SHEET TITLE

DENOTES GUTTER DRAIN (3" DIA.) AND DOWNSPOUT (2" X 3") 26 GA
ALUMINUM - PAINTED TO MATCH TRIM COLOR-- VERIFY SPEC. W/
OWNER.  INSTALL PER MFR. INSTRUCTIONS

ROOF PLAN LEGEND

DS

DENOTES DIRECTION OF SLOPE FROM HIGH TO LOW--ROOF SLOPE
APPROX., REFER TO ELEVATIONS FOR MAX HT AND VERTICAL CONTROL

LINE OF BLDG. BELOW

ASPHALT COMPOSITION SHINGLES o/ 1 LAYER 15# ROOF FELT (EXCEPT
FOR AT ROOF SLOPES BETWEEN 2-4:12, INSTALL 2 LAYERS) PER CRC
905.2.7--MIN. CLASS A --MANUF: CERTAINTEED; STYLE: PRESIDENTIAL
SHAKE TL; COLOR: AUTUMN BLEND; LIFETIME EXPECTANCY--VERIFY
FINAL SELECTION WITH OWNER PRIOR TO PLACING ORDER. INSTALL PER
MANUF. WARRANTY INSTRUCTIONS AND ICC-ES EVALUATION REPORT
#ESR-1389

RAIN CHAIN

DS
DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

ALL ROOF SLOPE TO BE 4:12 TYP.

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

HQ&�WH
�RcSZST/,dSZSZV�OVHIHQ&�WHIHIP

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li
ArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArA lan lan lan lanlan lan lanan lan an lana DjalDjalDjalDjalDjaDjalDjalDjalDjalDjaDjalDjaa aaaaaaaaaaaa

dddSSSSSSZVSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS EEEEEEEEEEESSSSSSSSSSSSEEEEEEEESSSSGGGGGGSSSSSSSSSSGGGGGGGGSSSSSSSS EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEDDDGGGGGGGGNNN

2024.03.14
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

2024.06.05
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

A17



1
A5.1

1
A5.1

2
A5.1

2
A5.1

10"EAVE ENCROACHMENT FROM ADU SETBACK

1'-4"

1'-
6 

1/
2"

1'-4"

1'-
4"

1'-
4"

1'-4"

1'-4"

1'-
4"

1'-
4"

1'-4"

2'-
8"

 R
O

O
F 

EN
FO

RC
EM

EN
T T

O
 TH

E 
RE

AR
 S

ET
BA

C
K

feet
1 2 3 4 6

REAR HOUSE
LOWER

ROOF PLAN

A2.2c
LOWER ROOF PLAN 1/4" 1

1355 El Camin Real, Unit 527
Redwood City, CA, 94063

650-387-9272

736 Partridge Ave
Menlo Park

Owner
Maryam Sangelaji &

Ali Zadeh

ADDRESS

Zadeh & Sangelaji
 Residence
NEW SINGLE FAMILY

RESIDENCE+ATTACCHED ADU

SIGNED BY

DRAWN BY
Ardalan Djalali

Ardalan Djalali

APN: XXX

A2.2c2

All designs, drawings, and
specifications contained herein
are the exclusive property of
Ardalan Djalali. Unauthorized use
or reproduction in whole or in
part is strictly prohibited, and
legal action will be taken to
protect the intellectual property

rights of Ardalan Djalali.

RE
V

IS
IO

N

DATE DESCRIPTION 

SHEET TITLE

DENOTES GUTTER DRAIN (3" DIA.) AND DOWNSPOUT (2" X 3") 26 GA
ALUMINUM - PAINTED TO MATCH TRIM COLOR-- VERIFY SPEC. W/
OWNER.  INSTALL PER MFR. INSTRUCTIONS

ROOF PLAN LEGEND

DS

DENOTES DIRECTION OF SLOPE FROM HIGH TO LOW--ROOF SLOPE
APPROX., REFER TO ELEVATIONS FOR MAX HT AND VERTICAL CONTROL

LINE OF BLDG. BELOW

ASPHALT COMPOSITION SHINGLES o/ 1 LAYER 15# ROOF FELT (EXCEPT
FOR AT ROOF SLOPES BETWEEN 2-4:12, INSTALL 2 LAYERS) PER CRC
905.2.7--MIN. CLASS A --MANUF: CERTAINTEED; STYLE: PRESIDENTIAL
SHAKE TL; COLOR: AUTUMN BLEND; LIFETIME EXPECTANCY--VERIFY
FINAL SELECTION WITH OWNER PRIOR TO PLACING ORDER. INSTALL PER
MANUF. WARRANTY INSTRUCTIONS AND ICC-ES EVALUATION REPORT
#ESR-1389

ALL ROOF SLOPE TO BE 3:12 TYP.

RAIN CHAIN

DS

DS

DS

DS DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

HQ&�WH
�RcSZST/,dSZSZV�OVHIHQ&�WHIHIP

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li
ArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArA lan lan lan lanlan lan lanan lan an lana DjalDjalDjalDjalDjaDjalDjalDjalDjalDjaDjalDjaa aaaaaaaaaaaa

dddSSSSSSZVSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS EEEEEEEEEEESSSSSSSSSSSSEEEEEEEESSSSGGGGGGSSSSSSSSSSGGGGGGGGSSSSSSSS EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEDDDGGGGGGGGNNN

2024.03.14
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

2024.06.05
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

A18



1
A5.1

1
A5.1

2
A5.1

2
A5.1

feet
1 2 3 4 6

REAR HOUSE
UPPER

ROOF PLAN

A2.2d
UPPER ROOF PLAN 1/4" 1

1355 El Camin Real, Unit 527
Redwood City, CA, 94063

650-387-9272

736 Partridge Ave
Menlo Park

Owner
Maryam Sangelaji &

Ali Zadeh

ADDRESS

Zadeh & Sangelaji
 Residence
NEW SINGLE FAMILY

RESIDENCE+ATTACCHED ADU

SIGNED BY

DRAWN BY
Ardalan Djalali

Ardalan Djalali

APN: XXX

A2.2d

All designs, drawings, and
specifications contained herein
are the exclusive property of
Ardalan Djalali. Unauthorized use
or reproduction in whole or in
part is strictly prohibited, and
legal action will be taken to
protect the intellectual property

rights of Ardalan Djalali.

RE
V

IS
IO

N

DATE DESCRIPTION 

SHEET TITLE

DENOTES GUTTER DRAIN (3" DIA.) AND DOWNSPOUT (2" X 3") 26 GA
ALUMINUM - PAINTED TO MATCH TRIM COLOR-- VERIFY SPEC. W/
OWNER.  INSTALL PER MFR. INSTRUCTIONS

ROOF PLAN LEGEND

DS

DENOTES DIRECTION OF SLOPE FROM HIGH TO LOW--ROOF SLOPE
APPROX., REFER TO ELEVATIONS FOR MAX HT AND VERTICAL CONTROL

LINE OF BLDG. BELOW

ASPHALT COMPOSITION SHINGLES o/ 1 LAYER 15# ROOF FELT (EXCEPT
FOR AT ROOF SLOPES BETWEEN 2-4:12, INSTALL 2 LAYERS) PER CRC
905.2.7--MIN. CLASS A --MANUF: CERTAINTEED; STYLE: PRESIDENTIAL
SHAKE TL; COLOR: AUTUMN BLEND; LIFETIME EXPECTANCY--VERIFY
FINAL SELECTION WITH OWNER PRIOR TO PLACING ORDER. INSTALL PER
MANUF. WARRANTY INSTRUCTIONS AND ICC-ES EVALUATION REPORT
#ESR-1389

ALL ROOF SLOPE TO BE 4:12 TYP.

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

HQ&�WH
�RcSZST/,dSZSZV�OVHIHQ&�WHIHIP

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li
ArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArA lan lan lan lanlan lan lanan lan an lana DjalDjalDjalDjalDjaDjalDjalDjalDjalDjaDjalDjaa aaaaaaaaaaaa

dddSSSSSSZVSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS EEEEEEEEEEESSSSSSSSSSSSEEEEEEEESSSSGGGGGGSSSSSSSSSSGGGGGGGGSSSSSSSS EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEDDDGGGGGGGGNNN

2024.03.14
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

2024.06.05
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

A19



2
A3.1

1
A3.32

A3.3

4
A3.3

3
A3.3

1'-4"

feet
1 2 3 4 6

DETACHED
GARAGE

ROOF PLAN

A2.2e
FRONT HOUSE--DETACHED GARAGE  ROOF PLAN 1/4" 1

1355 El Camin Real, Unit 527
Redwood City, CA, 94063

650-387-9272

736 Partridge Ave
Menlo Park

Owner
Maryam Sangelaji &

Ali Zadeh

ADDRESS

Zadeh & Sangelaji
 Residence
NEW SINGLE FAMILY

RESIDENCE+ATTACCHED ADU

SIGNED BY

DRAWN BY
Ardalan Djalali

Ardalan Djalali

APN: XXX

A2.2e2

All designs, drawings, and
specifications contained herein
are the exclusive property of
Ardalan Djalali. Unauthorized use
or reproduction in whole or in
part is strictly prohibited, and
legal action will be taken to
protect the intellectual property

rights of Ardalan Djalali.

RE
V

IS
IO

N

DATE DESCRIPTION 

SHEET TITLE

DENOTES GUTTER DRAIN (3" DIA.) AND DOWNSPOUT (2" X 3") 26 GA
ALUMINUM - PAINTED TO MATCH TRIM COLOR-- VERIFY SPEC. W/
OWNER.  INSTALL PER MFR. INSTRUCTIONS

ROOF PLAN LEGEND

DS

DENOTES DIRECTION OF SLOPE FROM HIGH TO LOW--ROOF SLOPE
APPROX., REFER TO ELEVATIONS FOR MAX HT AND VERTICAL CONTROL

LINE OF BLDG. BELOW

ASPHALT COMPOSITION SHINGLES o/ 1 LAYER 15# ROOF FELT (EXCEPT
FOR AT ROOF SLOPES BETWEEN 2-4:12, INSTALL 2 LAYERS) PER CRC
905.2.7--MIN. CLASS A --MANUF: CERTAINTEED; STYLE: PRESIDENTIAL
SHAKE TL; COLOR: AUTUMN BLEND; LIFETIME EXPECTANCY--VERIFY
FINAL SELECTION WITH OWNER PRIOR TO PLACING ORDER. INSTALL PER
MANUF. WARRANTY INSTRUCTIONS AND ICC-ES EVALUATION REPORT
#ESR-1389

ALL ROOF SLOPE TO BE 3:12 TYP.

DS

DS

DS

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

HQ&�WH
�RcSZST/,dSZSZV�OVHIHQ&�WHIHIP

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li
ArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArA lan lan lan lanlan lan lanan lan an lana DjalDjalDjalDjalDjaDjalDjalDjalDjalDjaDjalDjaa aaaaaaaaaaaa

dddSSSSSSZVSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS EEEEEEEEEEESSSSSSSSSSSSEEEEEEEESSSSGGGGGGSSSSSSSSSSGGGGGGGGSSSSSSSS EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEDDDGGGGGGGGNNN

2024.03.14
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

2024.06.05
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

A20



��  !"#!$%&'(!)*%#+!,('-! ./
)*01220!$'-3+!$4+!5678�

8 79�:/95./.

4##!0*;'<(;+!0=%1'(<;+!%(0
;>*?'@'?%-'2(;!?2(-%'(*0!A*=*'(
%=*!-A*!*B?#C;'D*!>=2>*=-3!2@

4=0%#%(!EF%#%#'G!,(%C-A2='H*0!C;*
2=!=*>=20C?-'2(!'(!1A2#*!2=!'(
>%=-!';!;-='?-#3!>=2A'I'-*0+!%(0
#*<%#!%?-'2(!1'##!I*!-%J*(!-2

>=2-*?-!-A*!'(-*##*?-C%#!>=2>*=-3
='<A-;!2@!4=0%#%(!EF%#%#'G

�� !"#$%$&'()!*+)
,)-./ !"#$01!2*!34567

89-)$
,#$:#;!<#-().#=&!>!

*.&!?#')@

*AABC<<

<DEFCA!GH

AB*I F!GH
*$'#.#-!A=#.#.&

*$'#.#-!A=#.#.&

*"FJKKK!

A*LC

<MCCL!LDLNC

?#')@!#-'!<#-().#=&!
B)O ')-P )

BC
Q
D<
D8
F

LI 8!FCI !<DFENC!R *, DNH
BC<DACF2CS*LL*2MCA!*AT

 

A*LC AC<2BD"LD8F

 

N8L!
BC2*"

*�V5
!� 3"'0&,)'. '/0 ,1 %+&

4� 3"5 '&,)'. '/0 ,1 %+&

]))%
Y 6 4�  

�� 3"$'0$)6 %7&'88&%7,6 )'. '/0 ,1 %+88$'0$2� 3"$'0$)6 %7&'88+%$,6 )'. '/0 ,1 %+)9:$%+,; �� 3":$%+,)6 %7&'88&%7,6 )'. '/0 ,1 %+)9$'0$;<� 3":$%+,)6 %7&'88+%$,6 )'. '/0 ,1 %+88:$%+,

7+1,) �)=0$0=')(',0*6 '(

<CC!EB*ADFE!*FA!AB*DF*EC!"N*F<!R8B!LMC!R DFD<M!EB*AC<XXLH"V

<CC!EB*ADFE!*FA!AB*DF*EC!"N*F<!R8B!LMC!R DFD<M!EB*AC<XXLH"V

SW X �V [Z
*A^*2CFL!

R DFD<M!EB*AC

SW X36V43Z
LV8V!BDAEC

SW X [V55Z
*A^*2CFL!

R DFD<M!EB*AC

SW X [V�7Z
*A^*2CFL!

R DFD<M!EB*AC

SW X �V�5Z
*A^*2CFL!

R DFD<M!EB*AC

SW X [V75Z
*A^*2CFL!

R DFD<M!EB*AC

SW X [V�5Z
*A^*2CFL!

R DFD<M!EB*AC

SW X [V�5Z
*A^*2CFL!

R DFD<M!EB*AC

SW X 3V55Z
*A^*2CFL!

R DFD<M!EB*AC

SW X �V [Z
*A^*2CFL!

R DFD<M!EB*AC

SW X �V�5Z
*A^*2CFL!

R DFD<M!!EB*AC

SW X [V75Z
*A^*2CFL!

R DFD<M!EB*AC

SW X [V55Z
*A^*2CFL!

R DFD<M!EB*AC

SW X 3V55Z
*A^*2CFL!

R DFD<M!EB*AC

SW X [V[7Z
*A^*2CFL!

R DFD<M!EB*AC

SW X [V�5Z
*A^*2CFL!

R DFD<M!EB*AC

SW X [V55Z
*A^*2CFL!

R DFD<M!EB*AC

SW X3�V��Z
LV8V!BDAEC

SW X3�V��Z
LV8V!BDAEC

SW X36V43Z
LV8V!BDAEC

SW X3�V��Z
LV8V!BDAECSW X36V43Z

LV8V!BDAEC

SW X3�V��Z
LV8V!BDAEC SW X36V43Z

LV8V!BDAEC

SW X�[V3[Z
LV8V!BDAEC

SW X�[V3[Z
LV8V!BDAEC

)6 1=6 '&,)#%1 +,)%+)+>=>)
?'+'0 ,6 ),6 ')&,$7*,7$' !@>!4A

. %5 '&,)#%1 +,)%+)+>=>)
?'+'0 ,6 ),6 ')&,$7*,7$' !@>�2A

0/'$0=')+>= !@>4BA

SW X [V65Z
*A^*2CFL!

R DFD<M!EB*AC

SW X [V55Z
*A^*2CFL!

R DFD<M!EB*AC

SW X [V67Z
*A^*2CFL!

R DFD<M!EB*AC

)6 1=6 '&,)#%1 +,)%+)+>=>)
?'+'0 ,6 ),6 ')&,$7*,7$' !@>�3A

. %5 '&,)#%1 +,)%+)+>=>)
?'+'0 ,6 ),6 ')&,$7*,7$' !!>4<A

0/'$0=')+>= !!>3!A

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

HQ&�WH
�RcSZST/,dSZSZV�OVHIHQ&�WHIHIP

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li
*$'#*$'#**$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#* .#-.#-.#-.#-.#-#-#-.#-.#-#-.#-#-.#- A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#...A=#.#.&#.#.&#.&#.&#.&#.#.&#.&#.&#.&#.&

dddSSSSSSZVSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS ���WWSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSIISSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS
DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDNNNNNNNNN

2024.03.14
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

2024.06.05
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

A21



��  !"#!$%&'(!)*%#+!,('-! ./
)*01220!$'-3+!$4+!5678�

8 79�:/95./.

4##!0*;'<(;+!0=%1'(<;+!%(0
;>*?'@'?%-'2(;!?2(-%'(*0!A*=*'(
%=*!-A*!*B?#C;'D*!>=2>*=-3!2@

4=0%#%(!EF%#%#'G!,(%C-A2='H*0!C;*
2=!=*>=20C?-'2(!'(!1A2#*!2=!'(
>%=-!';!;-='?-#3!>=2A'I'-*0+!%(0
#*<%#!%?-'2(!1'##!I*!-%J*(!-2

>=2-*?-!-A*!'(-*##*?-C%#!>=2>*=-3
='<A-;!2@!4=0%#%(!EF%#%#'G

�� !"#$%$&'()!*+)
,)-./ !"#$01!2*!34567

89-)$
,#$:#;!<#-().#=&!>!

*.&!?#')@

*AABC<<

<DEFCA!GH

AB*I F!GH
*$'#.#-!A=#.#.&

*$'#.#-!A=#.#.&

*"FJKKK!

A*LC

<MCCL!LDLNC

?#')@!#-'!<#-().#=&!
B)O ')-P )

BC
Q
D<
D8
F

LI 8!FCI !<DFENC!R *, DNH
BC<DACF2CS*LL*2MCA!*AT

 

A*LC AC<2BD"LD8F

 

TFDL!U
CVLCBD8B!
CNCQ*LD8F<

*�WU
�� !"#$%&'( ) %*+,- -(+%*') ( ,. ,/0 '1 %&(2$,0$ 3

�� !"#$%&'( ) %*+,- -&%$') ( ,. ,/0 '1 %&(2#$%&' 3

X))%
U 6 4�  --,. ,/0 '1 %&(. ,4 ,&5 ( 0&5 (6,7&%',+

Y!FT,GCB!8R !Z CHF8LC!GCN8I

U A*HNDEML!"N*FC!*<!ACR DFCA!GH![TBD<AD2LD8F
6 *<"M*NL!28,"!<MDFENC!B88R DFE\\<CC!B88R !"N*F!R8B!,8BC!DFR8
� "*DFLCA!<LCCN!LB8I CNCA!DEFDLD8F!BC<D<L*FL!2C,CFL!"N*<LCB!<H<LC, !]<,88LM!R DFD<M !̂\!�_`a!!!

"N*<LCB!8_!, CL*N!N*LM!8_!6!N*HCB<!EB*AC!bAb!8B!GCLLCB!GTDNADFE!"*"CB1!�!28*L!<H<LC, !I DLM!6 !
(#W!I CC"!<2BCCA!*L!I *NN!G*<C!*L!NC*<L!4a!*G8QC!EB*AC!8B!6a!*G8QC!M*BA<2*"C\\<CC!ACL*DN<!
cVV_VVd\\A8!F8L!T<C!aA8TGNC\B8NNa!DF<L*NN*LD8F!R8B!GTDNADFE!"*"CB

4 *AMCBCA!NDEMLI CDEML!<L8FC!QCFCCB!]eU7!NG<_<R \̂\,*FTR WJ!CNA8B*A8!<L8FCf!<LHNCJ!2*<*!
GN*F2*f!28N8BJ!NDEML!2BC*, !, DVCAf!DF<L*NN*LD8F!<LHNCJ!ABH<L*2Z !I *DF<28L!<DNN!8QCB!<LCCN!aNa!
*FENCJ!<F*""CA!CAECf!<DNN!28N8BJ!,*L2M!LMC!<L8FC\\999W).'/ $#'/ O%/ -)WP / ;\\T<C!"8NH,CB\
,8ADR DCA!<CLLDFE!,8BL*B!1!28N8BJ!N*LD2BCLC!,*L2M!LMC!<L8FC\\DF<L*NN!"CB!,*FTR W!
DF<LBT2LD8F<1!D22\C<!CQ*NT*LD8F!BC"8BL!C<B\U6U71!*FA!,Q,*!DF<L*NN*LD8F!ETDAC!R8B!
28,"ND*F2C!I DLM!*<L, !2U�̀ 5W!!28FL*2L!LCBC<*!Q*<gTC?!*L!G8B*N!<L8FC!EB8T"!]4U7\4U`\3��51!
L)$)O#WQ#Ohi)jkG/ $#.W P / ; !̂R 8B!R DCNA!BCQDCI !8R !N*LM!DF<L*NN*LD8F!"BD8B!L8!DF<L*NNDFE!<2B*L2M!
28*LW!!<C*N!QCFCCB!I DLM!<DN*FC!8B!<DN8V*FC!G*<CA!,*<8FBH!LBC*L,CFL!<T2M!*<!2B*R L<MDCNA!
"CB!,*FTR W!DF<LBT2LD8F<W!!

7 QCBD<L8FC!I *D<28L!<DNN!8QCB!<LCCN!aNa!*FENC!\\<D?CJ!U5af!<LHNCJ!Q<,�� f!28N8BJ!NDEML!2BC*, !
2N8<C!L8!LMC!CVLCBD8DB!"N*<LCB!R DFD<M!28N8B\\DF<L*NN!"CB!,*FTR W!DF<LBT2LD8F<!*FA!,Q,*!
DF<L*NN*LD8F!ETDAC!R8B!28,"ND*F2C!I DLM!*<L, !2U�̀ 5

 "*DFLCA!R DGCB!2C,CFL!LBD, \\6KU5!R *<2D*!I DLM!4a!<C*, NC<<!"*DFLCA!<MCCL!, CL*N!ETLLCB\\QCBDR H!
ETLLCB!"B8R DNC!I DLM!8I FCB!"BD8B!L8!R *GBD2*LD8F\\<CC!B88R !"N*F!R8B!,8BC!DFR8

� <L*DF!EB*AC!I 88A!E*B*EC!A88B!I DLM!LC,"CBCA!EN*?DFE!"D2LTBC!I DFA8I <\\<CC!A88B!
<2MCATNC!R 8B!,8BC!DFR8

` I DFA8I _A88B!8"CFDFE!I DLM!<D, TN*LCA!ADQDACA!NDLC<J!EBDA<!8F!LMC!DFLCBD8B!*FA!CVLCBD8B!8R !
LMC!EN*<<!*FA!*!<"*2CB!G*B!GCLI CCF!LMC!"*FC<!8R !EN*<<\\<CC!I DFA8I !*FA!A88B!<2MCATNC<!
R 8B!,8BC!DFR8\\LH"D2*N1!TWFW8W

3 *NT, DFT, !GB*Z C!<M*"C\\R DFD<M!L8!,*L2M!I DFA8I !R B*,C\\QCBDR H!<D?C!DF!R DCNA
U5 *NT, DFT, !*B2M!<M*"C\\R DFD<M!L8!,*L2M!I DFA8I !R B*,C\\QCBDR H!<D?C!DF!R DCNA
UU CVLCBD8B!NDEML1!DF<L*NN!"CB!,*FTR W!DF<LBT2LD8F<\\,*FTR WJ!2*L*NDF*!NDEMLf!<LHNCJ!<,*NN!

8TBA88B!I *NN!<28F2C!I  aMU�f!28N8BJ!GB8F?
U6 "DF!,8TFLCA!NCA!DNNT, DF*LCA!*AABC<<!<DEF*EC1!2NC*BNH!QD<DGNC!R B8, !*A[*2CFL!<LBCCL\\

MCDEMLJ!`a1!<LHNCJ!NT,*\FT,GCB<1!G*2Z NDL!NCA!*AABC<<!FT,GCB<f!R DFD<MJ!<L*DFNC<<!<LCCN!
999W;/ ')$-.&(@%O W P / ;\\!"B8QDAC!"M8L8<CF<8B!28FFC2LCA!NCA!G*2Z NDEMLDFE!k!C*2M!FT,GCB!

U� 2B*I N<"*2C!QCFL\\<CC!2B*I N<"*2C!QCFL!2*N2<!8F!*6WU!R 8B!,8BC!DFR8
U4 M*BA<2*"C\\<CC!<DLC!"N*F!*FA!R DFD<M!R N88B!"N*F!R8B!,8BC!DFR8
U7 "*DFLCA!AC28B*LDQC!28BGCN\\28N8B!L8!GC!,*L2M!LMC!R *<2D*
U AC28B*LDQC!LBT<<!*L!"8B2M!

S_\VVVWVb
]C _̂]F !̂EB*AC EB*AC!NDFC

"B8"CBLH!NDFC

N*FA!R DNN

l

U3
b\ 
a

!8
9!8

9

U3
b\ 
a

!8
9!8

9

7b\5a7b\5a

7b\5a7b\5a

U6�4  `3U5 UUU7

U6 �`U7 UU

<D
NN
!M
LW
!R
B8

,
!R
WR
W!�
b\5

<D
NN
!M
LW
!R
B8

,
!R
WR
W!�

b\5

U3
b\ 
a

!8
9

LH"W

"W
NW

"W
NW

"W
NW

"W
NW

LH"W LH"W LH"W LH"W

S_\ `W36b
U<L!R N88B!LW8W<W

S_\�̀ W36b
U<L!R N88B!!
2CDNDFE!MLW

S_\�3W36b
6FA!R N88B!

S_\̀ 3W53b
6FA!R N88B!

S_\36W43b
"B8"8<CA!
GTDNADFE!
MCDEML

S_\ �W75b
*QCB*EC!F*LTB*N!EB*AC

U6U4 77

�b
\5
a

"B
8
"8

<C
A
!G
TD
NA

DF
E
!M
LW
!6

�b
\̀
a

U5
b\5
a!R
DB
<L
!R
N8

8
B!
"N
*
LC
!M
LW

`b
\ 
a!6

F
A
!R
N8

8
B!
"N
*
LC
!M
LW

64
b\U
U!

�_
4a
!"
B8

"8
<C
A
!G
TD
NA

DF
E
!M
LW
!R
B8

,
!F
*
LT
B*

N!
E
B*

A
C

S_\ `W36b
U<L!R N88B!LW8W<W

S_\�̀ W36b
U<L!R N88B!!
2CDNDFE!MLW

S_\�3W36b
6FA!R N88B!

S_\̀ 3W53b
6FA!R N88B!

S_\36W43b
"B8"8<CA!
GTDNADFE!
MCDEML

S_\ �W75b
*QCB*EC!F*LTB*N!EB*AC

"B
8
"8

<C
A
!G
TD
NA

DF
E
!M
LW
!6

�b
\̀
a

U5
b\5
a!R
DB
<L
!R
N8

8
B!
"N
*
LC
!M
LW

`b
\ 
a!6

F
A
!R
N8

8
B!
"N
*
LC
!M
LW

64
b\U
U!

�_
4a
!"
B8

"8
<C
A
!G
TD
NA

DF
E
!M
LW
!R
B8

,
!F
*
LT
B*

N!
E
B*

A
C

Ub\5a

4b\5a

<NDACB <NDACB R DVCAR8NADFE R8NADFE R8NADFE

2*<CW 2*<CW "D2W 2*<CW

"D2W "D2W "D2W

2*<CW 2*<CW"D2W

2*<CW 2*<CW

2*<CW 2*<CW2*<CW 2*<CW

m!3b\UUa

mU5b\5a

mUUb\6a

U5
b\U
5a

2024.03.14
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

2024.06.05
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

HQ&�WH
�RcSZST/,dSZSZV�OVHIHQ&�WHIHIP

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li
*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$$$ .#-.#-#-.#-.#-#-#-.#-#-#-#-#-#- A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#A=#.A=# #.&#.#.#.#.#.&#.##.#.####

ddddddSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS �WWW�WSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSISSSSSSSSSSSSS
DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDAAAAAAADDDNNNNNFFFFFFFFNNNN

A22



��  !"#!$%&'(!)*%#+!,('-! ./
)*01220!$'-3+!$4+!5678�

8 79�:/95./.

4##!0*;'<(;+!0=%1'(<;+!%(0
;>*?'@'?%-'2(;!?2(-%'(*0!A*=*'(
%=*!-A*!*B?#C;'D*!>=2>*=-3!2@

4=0%#%(!EF%#%#'G!,(%C-A2='H*0!C;*
2=!=*>=20C?-'2(!'(!1A2#*!2=!'(
>%=-!';!;-='?-#3!>=2A'I'-*0+!%(0
#*<%#!%?-'2(!1'##!I*!-%J*(!-2

>=2-*?-!-A*!'(-*##*?-C%#!>=2>*=-3
='<A-;!2@!4=0%#%(!EF%#%#'G

�� !"#$%$&'()!*+)
,)-./ !"#$01!2*!34567

89-)$
,#$:#;!<#-().#=&!>!

*.&!?#')@

*AABC<<

<DEFCA!GH

AB*I F!GH
*$'#.#-!A=#.#.&

*$'#.#-!A=#.#.&

*"FJKKK!

A*LC

<MCCL!LDLNC

?#')@!#-'!<#-().#=&!
B)O ')-P )

BC
Q
D<
D8
F

LI 8!FCI !<DFENC!R *, DNH
BC<DACF2CS*LL*2MCA!*AT

 

A*LC AC<2BD"LD8F

 

*�W6
�� !"#$%&'( ) %*+,- (,0+'( ,. ,/0 '1 %&(2. ,#' 3

�� !"#$%&'( ) %*+,- (: ,+'( ,. ,/0 '1 %&(2$14 ') 3

X))%
U 6 4�  --,. ,/0 '1 %&(. ,4 ,&5 ( 0&5 (6,7&%',+

Y!FT,GCB!8R !Z CHF8LC!GCN8I

TFDL!U
CVLCBD8B!
CNCQ*LD8F<

U A*HNDEML!"N*FC!*<!ACR DFCA!GH![TBD<AD2LD8F
6 *<"M*NL!28,"!<MDFENC!B88R DFE\\<CC!B88R !"N*F!R8B!,8BC!DFR8
� "*DFLCA!<LCCN!LB8I CNCA!DEFDLD8F!BC<D<L*FL!2C,CFL!"N*<LCB!<H<LC, !]<,88LM!R DFD<M !̂\!�_`a!!!

"N*<LCB!8_!, CL*N!N*LM!8_!6!N*HCB<!EB*AC!bAb!8B!GCLLCB!GTDNADFE!"*"CB1!�!28*L!<H<LC, !I DLM!6 !
(#W!I CC"!<2BCCA!*L!I *NN!G*<C!*L!NC*<L!4a!*G8QC!EB*AC!8B!6a!*G8QC!M*BA<2*"C\\<CC!ACL*DN<!
cVV_VVd\\A8!F8L!T<C!aA8TGNC\B8NNa!DF<L*NN*LD8F!R8B!GTDNADFE!"*"CB

4 *AMCBCA!NDEMLI CDEML!<L8FC!QCFCCB!]eU7!NG<_<R \̂\,*FTR WJ!CNA8B*A8!<L8FCf!<LHNCJ!2*<*!
GN*F2*f!28N8BJ!NDEML!2BC*, !, DVCAf!DF<L*NN*LD8F!<LHNCJ!ABH<L*2Z !I *DF<28L!<DNN!8QCB!<LCCN!aNa!
*FENCJ!<F*""CA!CAECf!<DNN!28N8BJ!,*L2M!LMC!<L8FC\\999W).'/ $#'/ O%/ -)WP / ;\\T<C!"8NH,CB\
,8ADR DCA!<CLLDFE!,8BL*B!1!28N8BJ!N*LD2BCLC!,*L2M!LMC!<L8FC\\DF<L*NN!"CB!,*FTR W!
DF<LBT2LD8F<1!D22\C<!CQ*NT*LD8F!BC"8BL!C<B\U6U71!*FA!,Q,*!DF<L*NN*LD8F!ETDAC!R8B!
28,"ND*F2C!I DLM!*<L, !2U�̀ 5W!!28FL*2L!LCBC<*!Q*<gTC?!*L!G8B*N!<L8FC!EB8T"!]4U7\4U`\3��51!
L)$)O#WQ#Ohi)jkG/ $#.W P / ; !̂R 8B!R DCNA!BCQDCI !8R !N*LM!DF<L*NN*LD8F!"BD8B!L8!DF<L*NNDFE!<2B*L2M!
28*LW!!<C*N!QCFCCB!I DLM!<DN*FC!8B!<DN8V*FC!G*<CA!,*<8FBH!LBC*L,CFL!<T2M!*<!2B*R L<MDCNA!
"CB!,*FTR W!DF<LBT2LD8F<W!!

7 QCBD<L8FC!I *D<28L!<DNN!8QCB!<LCCN!aNa!*FENC!\\<D?CJ!U5af!<LHNCJ!Q<,�� f!28N8BJ!NDEML!2BC*, !
2N8<C!L8!LMC!CVLCBD8DB!"N*<LCB!R DFD<M!28N8B\\DF<L*NN!"CB!,*FTR W!DF<LBT2LD8F<!*FA!,Q,*!
DF<L*NN*LD8F!ETDAC!R8B!28,"ND*F2C!I DLM!*<L, !2U�̀ 5

 "*DFLCA!R DGCB!2C,CFL!LBD, \\6KU5!R *<2D*!I DLM!4a!<C*, NC<<!"*DFLCA!<MCCL!, CL*N!ETLLCB\\QCBDR H!
ETLLCB!"B8R DNC!I DLM!8I FCB!"BD8B!L8!R *GBD2*LD8F\\<CC!B88R !"N*F!R8B!,8BC!DFR8

� <L*DF!EB*AC!I 88A!E*B*EC!A88B!I DLM!LC,"CBCA!EN*?DFE!"D2LTBC!I DFA8I <\\<CC!A88B!
<2MCATNC!R 8B!,8BC!DFR8

` I DFA8I _A88B!8"CFDFE!I DLM!<D, TN*LCA!ADQDACA!NDLC<J!EBDA<!8F!LMC!DFLCBD8B!*FA!CVLCBD8B!8R !
LMC!EN*<<!*FA!*!<"*2CB!G*B!GCLI CCF!LMC!"*FC<!8R !EN*<<\\<CC!I DFA8I !*FA!A88B!<2MCATNC<!
R 8B!,8BC!DFR8\\LH"D2*N1!TWFW8W

3 *NT, DFT, !GB*Z C!<M*"C\\R DFD<M!L8!,*L2M!I DFA8I !R B*,C\\QCBDR H!<D?C!DF!R DCNA
U5 *NT, DFT, !*B2M!<M*"C\\R DFD<M!L8!,*L2M!I DFA8I !R B*,C\\QCBDR H!<D?C!DF!R DCNA
UU CVLCBD8B!NDEML1!DF<L*NN!"CB!,*FTR W!DF<LBT2LD8F<\\,*FTR WJ!2*L*NDF*!NDEMLf!<LHNCJ!<,*NN!

8TBA88B!I *NN!<28F2C!I  aMU�f!28N8BJ!GB8F?
U6 "DF!,8TFLCA!NCA!DNNT, DF*LCA!*AABC<<!<DEF*EC1!2NC*BNH!QD<DGNC!R B8, !*A[*2CFL!<LBCCL\\

MCDEMLJ!`a1!<LHNCJ!NT,*\FT,GCB<1!G*2Z NDL!NCA!*AABC<<!FT,GCB<f!R DFD<MJ!<L*DFNC<<!<LCCN!
999W;/ ')$-.&(@%O W P / ;\\!"B8QDAC!"M8L8<CF<8B!28FFC2LCA!NCA!G*2Z NDEMLDFE!k!C*2M!FT,GCB!

U� 2B*I N<"*2C!QCFL\\<CC!2B*I N<"*2C!QCFL!2*N2<!8F!*6WU!R 8B!,8BC!DFR8
U4 M*BA<2*"C\\<CC!<DLC!"N*F!*FA!R DFD<M!R N88B!"N*F!R8B!,8BC!DFR8
U7 "*DFLCA!AC28B*LDQC!28BGCN\\28N8B!L8!GC!,*L2M!LMC!R *<2D*
U AC28B*LDQC!LBT<<!*L!"8B2M!

S_\VVVWVb
]C _̂]F !̂EB*AC EB*AC!NDFC

"B8"CBLH!NDFC

N*FA!R DNN

l
6

6`
b\5
a!,

*
V!
GT

DN
A
DF
E
!M
CD
E
ML

!*
NN
8
I
CA

� UU`

6 �`UU

<D
NN
!M
LW
!R
B8

,
!R
WR
W!�
b\5

LH"W LH"W LH"W LH"W

LH"W LH"W LH"W

<D
NN
!M
LW
!R
B8

,
!R
WR
W!�

b\5

S_\ `W36b
U<L!R N88B!LW8W<W

S_\�̀ W36b
U<L!R N88B!!
2CDNDFE!MLW

S_\�3W36b
6FA!R N88B!

S_\̀ 3W53b
6FA!R N88B!

S_\36W43b
"B8"8<CA!
GTDNADFE!
MCDEML

S_\ �W75b
*QCB*EC!F*LTB*N!EB*AC

"B
8
"8

<C
A
!G
TD
NA

DF
E
!M
LW
!6

�b
\̀
a

U5
b\5
a!R
DB
<L
!R
N8

8
B!
"N
*
LC
!M
LW

`b
\ 
a!6

F
A
!R
N8

8
B!
"N
*
LC
!M
LW

64
b\U
U!

�_
4a
!"
B8

"8
<C
A
!G
TD
NA

DF
E
!M
LW
!R
B8

,
!F
*
LT
B*

N!
E
B*

A
C

4b
\�
a!<
DN
N!
MC

DE
ML

!R
B8

,
!N
*
F
A
DF
E

S_\ `W36b
U<L!R N88B!LW8W<W

S_\�̀ W36b
U<L!R N88B!!
2CDNDFE!MLW

S_\�3W36b
6FA!R N88B!

S_\̀ 3W53b
6FA!R N88B!

S_\36W43b
"B8"8<CA!
GTDNADFE!
MCDEML

S_\ �W75b
*QCB*EC!F*LTB*N!EB*AC

"B
8
"8

<C
A
!G
TD
NA

DF
E
!M
LW
!6

�b
\̀
a

U5
b\5
a!R
DB
<L
!R
N8

8
B!
"N
*
LC
!M
LW

`b
\ 
a!6

F
A
!R
N8

8
B!
"N
*
LC
!M
LW

64
b\U
U!

�_
4a
!"
B8

"8
<C
A
!G
TD
NA

DF
E
!M
LW
!R
B8

,
!F
*
LT
B*

N!
E
B*

A
C

�b
\5
a!<
DN
N!
MC

DE
ML

!R
B8

,
!6
F
A
!R
N8

8
B!
RW
RW

4b
\ 
a!<
DN
N!
MC

DE
ML

!R
B8

,
!6
F
A
!R
N8

8
B!
RW
RW

<D
NN
!M
LW
!R
B8

,
!R
WR
W!�

b\5

7b
\5
a

�b
\5
a

2*<CW 2*<CW 2*<CW "D2W 2*<CW 2*<CW 2*<CW

2*<CW2*<CW2*<CW2*<CW2*<CW2*<CW2*<CW "D2W

2*<CW 2*<CW

*I DFE

2*<CW 2*<CW 2*<CW "D2W 2*<CW

"D2W

*I DFE

2*<CW

2024.03.14
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

2024.06.05
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

HQ&�WH
�RcSZST/,dSZSZV�OVHIHQ&�WHIHIP

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

dddddSSSSSST/,dST/,dSd,dS,dSSSSdSSSSSST ,dSSSSSSSSSS....SSSSSS DDD...NNN

A23



��  !"#!$%&'(!)*%#+!,('-! ./
)*01220!$'-3+!$4+!5678�

8 79�:/95./.

4##!0*;'<(;+!0=%1'(<;+!%(0
;>*?'@'?%-'2(;!?2(-%'(*0!A*=*'(
%=*!-A*!*B?#C;'D*!>=2>*=-3!2@

4=0%#%(!EF%#%#'G!,(%C-A2='H*0!C;*
2=!=*>=20C?-'2(!'(!1A2#*!2=!'(
>%=-!';!;-='?-#3!>=2A'I'-*0+!%(0
#*<%#!%?-'2(!1'##!I*!-%J*(!-2

>=2-*?-!-A*!'(-*##*?-C%#!>=2>*=-3
='<A-;!2@!4=0%#%(!EF%#%#'G

�� !"#$%$&'()!*+)
,)-./ !"#$01!2*!34567

89-)$
,#$:#;!<#-().#=&!>!

*.&!?#')@

*AABC<<

<DEFCA!GH

AB*I F!GH
*$'#.#-!A=#.#.&

*$'#.#-!A=#.#.&

*"FJKKK!

A*LC

<MCCL!LDLNC

?#')@!#-'!<#-().#=&!
B)O ')-P )

BC
Q
D<
D8
F

LI 8!FCI !<DFENC!R *, DNH
BC<DACF2CS*LL*2MCA!*AT

 

A*LC AC<2BD"LD8F

 

*�W�

�� !"#$%&'( ) %*+,- -5 ,'0 ; ) ,5 ( 4 0$04 ,( #$%&'( ,. ,/0 '1 %&

X))%
U 6 4�  --,. ,/0 '1 %&(. ,4 ,&5 ( 0&5 (6,7&%',+

Y!FT,GCB!8R !Z CHF8LC!GCN8I

ACL*2MCA!
E*B*EC!

CNCQ*LD8F<!
*FA!<C2LD8F<

�� !"#$%&'( ) %*+,- -5 ,'0 ; ) ,5 ( 4 0$04 ,( $,0$( ,. ,/0 '1 %&

<� !"#$%&'( ) %*+,( --5 ,'0 ; ) ,5 ( 4 0$04 ,( $14 ) '( ,. ,/0 '1 %&!� !"#$%&'( ) %*+,( --(5 ,'0 ; ) ,5 ( 4 0$04 ,( . ,#'( ,. ,/0 '1 %&

8� !"5 ,'0 ; ) ,5 ( 4 0$04 ,( +,; '1 %&(�

U A*HNDEML!"N*FC!*<!ACR DFCA!GH![TBD<AD2LD8F
6 *<"M*NL!28,"!<MDFENC!B88R DFE\\<CC!B88R !"N*F!R8B!,8BC!DFR8
� "*DFLCA!<LCCN!LB8I CNCA!DEFDLD8F!BC<D<L*FL!2C,CFL!"N*<LCB!<H<LC, !]<,88LM!R DFD<M !̂\!�_`a!!!

"N*<LCB!8_!, CL*N!N*LM!8_!6!N*HCB<!EB*AC!bAb!8B!GCLLCB!GTDNADFE!"*"CB1!�!28*L!<H<LC, !I DLM!6 !
(#W!I CC"!<2BCCA!*L!I *NN!G*<C!*L!NC*<L!4a!*G8QC!EB*AC!8B!6a!*G8QC!M*BA<2*"C\\<CC!ACL*DN<!
cVV_VVd\\A8!F8L!T<C!aA8TGNC\B8NNa!DF<L*NN*LD8F!R8B!GTDNADFE!"*"CB

4 *AMCBCA!NDEMLI CDEML!<L8FC!QCFCCB!]eU7!NG<_<R \̂\,*FTR WJ!CNA8B*A8!<L8FCf!<LHNCJ!2*<*!
GN*F2*f!28N8BJ!NDEML!2BC*, !, DVCAf!DF<L*NN*LD8F!<LHNCJ!ABH<L*2Z !I *DF<28L!<DNN!8QCB!<LCCN!aNa!
*FENCJ!<F*""CA!CAECf!<DNN!28N8BJ!,*L2M!LMC!<L8FC\\999W).'/ $#'/ O%/ -)WP / ;\\T<C!"8NH,CB\
,8ADR DCA!<CLLDFE!,8BL*B!1!28N8BJ!N*LD2BCLC!,*L2M!LMC!<L8FC\\DF<L*NN!"CB!,*FTR W!
DF<LBT2LD8F<1!D22\C<!CQ*NT*LD8F!BC"8BL!C<B\U6U71!*FA!,Q,*!DF<L*NN*LD8F!ETDAC!R8B!
28,"ND*F2C!I DLM!*<L, !2U�̀ 5W!!28FL*2L!LCBC<*!Q*<gTC?!*L!G8B*N!<L8FC!EB8T"!]4U7\4U`\3��51!
L)$)O#WQ#Ohi)jkG/ $#.W P / ; !̂R 8B!R DCNA!BCQDCI !8R !N*LM!DF<L*NN*LD8F!"BD8B!L8!DF<L*NNDFE!<2B*L2M!
28*LW!!<C*N!QCFCCB!I DLM!<DN*FC!8B!<DN8V*FC!G*<CA!,*<8FBH!LBC*L,CFL!<T2M!*<!2B*R L<MDCNA!
"CB!,*FTR W!DF<LBT2LD8F<W!!

7 QCBD<L8FC!I *D<28L!<DNN!8QCB!<LCCN!aNa!*FENC!\\<D?CJ!U5af!<LHNCJ!Q<,�� f!28N8BJ!NDEML!2BC*, !
2N8<C!L8!LMC!CVLCBD8DB!"N*<LCB!R DFD<M!28N8B\\DF<L*NN!"CB!,*FTR W!DF<LBT2LD8F<!*FA!,Q,*!
DF<L*NN*LD8F!ETDAC!R8B!28,"ND*F2C!I DLM!*<L, !2U�̀ 5

 "*DFLCA!R DGCB!2C,CFL!LBD, \\6KU5!R *<2D*!I DLM!4a!<C*, NC<<!"*DFLCA!<MCCL!, CL*N!ETLLCB\\QCBDR H!
ETLLCB!"B8R DNC!I DLM!8I FCB!"BD8B!L8!R *GBD2*LD8F\\<CC!B88R !"N*F!R8B!,8BC!DFR8

� <L*DF!EB*AC!I 88A!E*B*EC!A88B!I DLM!LC,"CBCA!EN*?DFE!"D2LTBC!I DFA8I <\\<CC!A88B!
<2MCATNC!R 8B!,8BC!DFR8

` I DFA8I _A88B!8"CFDFE!I DLM!<D, TN*LCA!ADQDACA!NDLC<J!EBDA<!8F!LMC!DFLCBD8B!*FA!CVLCBD8B!8R !
LMC!EN*<<!*FA!*!<"*2CB!G*B!GCLI CCF!LMC!"*FC<!8R !EN*<<\\<CC!I DFA8I !*FA!A88B!<2MCATNC<!
R 8B!,8BC!DFR8\\LH"D2*N1!TWFW8W

3 *NT, DFT, !GB*Z C!<M*"C\\R DFD<M!L8!,*L2M!I DFA8I !R B*,C\\QCBDR H!<D?C!DF!R DCNA
U5 *NT, DFT, !*B2M!<M*"C\\R DFD<M!L8!,*L2M!I DFA8I !R B*,C\\QCBDR H!<D?C!DF!R DCNA
UU CVLCBD8B!NDEML1!DF<L*NN!"CB!,*FTR W!DF<LBT2LD8F<\\,*FTR WJ!2*L*NDF*!NDEMLf!<LHNCJ!<,*NN!

8TBA88B!I *NN!<28F2C!I  aMU�f!28N8BJ!GB8F?
U6 "DF!,8TFLCA!NCA!DNNT, DF*LCA!*AABC<<!<DEF*EC1!2NC*BNH!QD<DGNC!R B8, !*A[*2CFL!<LBCCL\\

MCDEMLJ!`a1!<LHNCJ!NT,*\FT,GCB<1!G*2Z NDL!NCA!*AABC<<!FT,GCB<f!R DFD<MJ!<L*DFNC<<!<LCCN!
999W;/ ')$-.&(@%O W P / ;\\!"B8QDAC!"M8L8<CF<8B!28FFC2LCA!NCA!G*2Z NDEMLDFE!k!C*2M!FT,GCB!

U� 2B*I N<"*2C!QCFL\\<CC!2B*I N<"*2C!QCFL!2*N2<!8F!*6WU!R 8B!,8BC!DFR8
U4 M*BA<2*"C\\<CC!<DLC!"N*F!*FA!R DFD<M!R N88B!"N*F!R8B!,8BC!DFR8
U7 "*DFLCA!AC28B*LDQC!28BGCN\\28N8B!L8!GC!,*L2M!LMC!R *<2D*
U AC28B*LDQC!LBT<<!*L!"8B2M!

S_\VVVWVb
]C _̂]F !̂EB*AC EB*AC!NDFC

"B8"CBLH!NDFC

N*FA!R DNN

l

`b
\ 
a U5
b\7
!�
_4
a

� �UU` UU6 

� 6  UU` 6�

E*B*EC

�b
\ 
a

U U

S_\ `W75b
E*B*EC!LW8W<W

S_\��W55b
E*B*EC!2CDNDFE!MLW

S_\�̀ W3`b
E*B*EC!GTDNADFE!MLW

S_\ `W75b
E*B*EC!LW8W<W

S_\��W55b
E*B*EC!2CDNDFE!MLW

S_\�̀ W3`b
E*B*EC!GTDNADFE!MLW

S_\ `W75b
E*B*EC!LW8W<W

S_\��W55b
E*B*EC!2CDNDFE!MLW

S_\�̀ W3`b
E*B*EC!GTDNADFE!MLW

!8
9

3b
\ 
a!R
B8

,
!F
*
LT
B*

N!
E
B*

A
C

2*<CW"D2W

2024.03.14
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

2024.06.05
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

HQ&�WH
�RcSZST/,dSZSZV�OVHIHQ&�WHIHIP

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

ddddSSSSSSSSSS SSSSS#######################SSSSS D########NN

A24



��  !"#!$%&'(!)*%#+!,('-! ./
)*01220!$'-3+!$4+!5678�

8 79�:/95./.

4##!0*;'<(;+!0=%1'(<;+!%(0
;>*?'@'?%-'2(;!?2(-%'(*0!A*=*'(
%=*!-A*!*B?#C;'D*!>=2>*=-3!2@

4=0%#%(!EF%#%#'G!,(%C-A2='H*0!C;*
2=!=*>=20C?-'2(!'(!1A2#*!2=!'(
>%=-!';!;-='?-#3!>=2A'I'-*0+!%(0
#*<%#!%?-'2(!1'##!I*!-%J*(!-2

>=2-*?-!-A*!'(-*##*?-C%#!>=2>*=-3
='<A-;!2@!4=0%#%(!EF%#%#'G

�� !"#$%$&'()!*+)
,)-./ !"#$01!2*!34567

89-)$
,#$:#;!<#-().#=&!>!

*.&!?#')@

*AABC<<

<DEFCA!GH

AB*I F!GH
*$'#.#-!A=#.#.&

*$'#.#-!A=#.#.&

*"FJKKK!

A*LC

<MCCL!LDLNC

?#')@!#-'!<#-().#=&!
B)O ')-P )

BC
Q
D<
D8
F

LI 8!FCI !<DFENC!R *, DNH
BC<DACF2CS*LL*2MCA!*AT

 

A*LC AC<2BD"LD8F

 

*�W4
�� !"$,0$( ) %*+,( -(+%*') ( ,. ,/0 '1 %&(2$,0$ 3

�� !"$,0$( ) %*+,- -(&%$') ( ,. ,/0 '1 %&(2#$%&' 3

X))%
U 6 4�  --,. ,/0 '1 %&(. ,4 ,&5 ( 0&5 (6,7&%',+

Y!FT,GCB!8R !Z CHF8LC!GCN8I

TFDL!6
CVLCBD8B!
CNCQ*LD8F<

U A*HNDEML!"N*FC!*<!ACR DFCA!GH![TBD<AD2LD8F
6 *<"M*NL!28,"!<MDFENC!B88R DFE\\<CC!B88R !"N*F!R8B!,8BC!DFR8
� "*DFLCA!<LCCN!LB8I CNCA!DEFDLD8F!BC<D<L*FL!2C,CFL!"N*<LCB!<H<LC, !]<,88LM!R DFD<M !̂\!�_`a!!!

"N*<LCB!8_!, CL*N!N*LM!8_!6!N*HCB<!EB*AC!bAb!8B!GCLLCB!GTDNADFE!"*"CB1!�!28*L!<H<LC, !I DLM!6 !
(#W!I CC"!<2BCCA!*L!I *NN!G*<C!*L!NC*<L!4a!*G8QC!EB*AC!8B!6a!*G8QC!M*BA<2*"C\\<CC!ACL*DN<!
cVV_VVd\\A8!F8L!T<C!aA8TGNC\B8NNa!DF<L*NN*LD8F!R8B!GTDNADFE!"*"CB

4 *AMCBCA!NDEMLI CDEML!<L8FC!QCFCCB!]eU7!NG<_<R \̂\,*FTR WJ!CNA8B*A8!<L8FCf!<LHNCJ!2*<*!
GN*F2*f!28N8BJ!NDEML!2BC*, !, DVCAf!DF<L*NN*LD8F!<LHNCJ!ABH<L*2Z !I *DF<28L!<DNN!8QCB!<LCCN!aNa!
*FENCJ!<F*""CA!CAECf!<DNN!28N8BJ!,*L2M!LMC!<L8FC\\999W).'/ $#'/ O%/ -)WP / ;\\T<C!"8NH,CB\
,8ADR DCA!<CLLDFE!,8BL*B!1!28N8BJ!N*LD2BCLC!,*L2M!LMC!<L8FC\\DF<L*NN!"CB!,*FTR W!
DF<LBT2LD8F<1!D22\C<!CQ*NT*LD8F!BC"8BL!C<B\U6U71!*FA!,Q,*!DF<L*NN*LD8F!ETDAC!R8B!
28,"ND*F2C!I DLM!*<L, !2U�̀ 5W!!28FL*2L!LCBC<*!Q*<gTC?!*L!G8B*N!<L8FC!EB8T"!]4U7\4U`\3��51!
L)$)O#WQ#Ohi)jkG/ $#.W P / ; !̂R 8B!R DCNA!BCQDCI !8R !N*LM!DF<L*NN*LD8F!"BD8B!L8!DF<L*NNDFE!<2B*L2M!
28*LW!!<C*N!QCFCCB!I DLM!<DN*FC!8B!<DN8V*FC!G*<CA!,*<8FBH!LBC*L,CFL!<T2M!*<!2B*R L<MDCNA!
"CB!,*FTR W!DF<LBT2LD8F<W!!

7 QCBD<L8FC!I *D<28L!<DNN!8QCB!<LCCN!aNa!*FENC!\\<D?CJ!U5af!<LHNCJ!Q<,�� f!28N8BJ!NDEML!2BC*, !
2N8<C!L8!LMC!CVLCBD8DB!"N*<LCB!R DFD<M!28N8B\\DF<L*NN!"CB!,*FTR W!DF<LBT2LD8F<!*FA!,Q,*!
DF<L*NN*LD8F!ETDAC!R8B!28,"ND*F2C!I DLM!*<L, !2U�̀ 5

 "*DFLCA!R DGCB!2C,CFL!LBD, \\6KU5!R *<2D*!I DLM!4a!<C*, NC<<!"*DFLCA!<MCCL!, CL*N!ETLLCB\\QCBDR H!
ETLLCB!"B8R DNC!I DLM!8I FCB!"BD8B!L8!R *GBD2*LD8F\\<CC!B88R !"N*F!R8B!,8BC!DFR8

� <L*DF!EB*AC!I 88A!E*B*EC!A88B!I DLM!LC,"CBCA!EN*?DFE!"D2LTBC!I DFA8I <\\<CC!A88B!
<2MCATNC!R 8B!,8BC!DFR8

` I DFA8I _A88B!8"CFDFE!I DLM!<D, TN*LCA!ADQDACA!NDLC<J!EBDA<!8F!LMC!DFLCBD8B!*FA!CVLCBD8B!8R !
LMC!EN*<<!*FA!*!<"*2CB!G*B!GCLI CCF!LMC!"*FC<!8R !EN*<<\\<CC!I DFA8I !*FA!A88B!<2MCATNC<!
R 8B!,8BC!DFR8\\LH"D2*N1!TWFW8W

3 *NT, DFT, !GB*Z C!<M*"C\\R DFD<M!L8!,*L2M!I DFA8I !R B*,C\\QCBDR H!<D?C!DF!R DCNA
U5 *NT, DFT, !*B2M!<M*"C\\R DFD<M!L8!,*L2M!I DFA8I !R B*,C\\QCBDR H!<D?C!DF!R DCNA
UU CVLCBD8B!NDEML1!DF<L*NN!"CB!,*FTR W!DF<LBT2LD8F<\\,*FTR WJ!2*L*NDF*!NDEMLf!<LHNCJ!<,*NN!

8TBA88B!I *NN!<28F2C!I  aMU�f!28N8BJ!GB8F?
U6 "DF!,8TFLCA!NCA!DNNT, DF*LCA!*AABC<<!<DEF*EC1!2NC*BNH!QD<DGNC!R B8, !*A[*2CFL!<LBCCL\\

MCDEMLJ!`a1!<LHNCJ!NT,*\FT,GCB<1!G*2Z NDL!NCA!*AABC<<!FT,GCB<f!R DFD<MJ!<L*DFNC<<!<LCCN!
999W;/ ')$-.&(@%O W P / ;\\!"B8QDAC!"M8L8<CF<8B!28FFC2LCA!NCA!G*2Z NDEMLDFE!k!C*2M!FT,GCB!

U� 2B*I N<"*2C!QCFL\\<CC!2B*I N<"*2C!QCFL!2*N2<!8F!*6WU!R 8B!,8BC!DFR8
U4 M*BA<2*"C\\<CC!<DLC!"N*F!*FA!R DFD<M!R N88B!"N*F!R8B!,8BC!DFR8
U7 "*DFLCA!AC28B*LDQC!28BGCN\\28N8B!L8!GC!,*L2M!LMC!R *<2D*
U AC28B*LDQC!LBT<<!*L!"8B2M!

S_\VVVWVb
]C _̂]F !̂EB*AC EB*AC!NDFC

"B8"CBLH!NDFC

N*FA!R DNN

l

7b\5a
7b\5a

!8
9!8

9

!8
9

!8
9

7b\5a7b\5a

U6 U7 �` �U UUU�

`U  6U7 � UU

U6

UU
b\ 
a

"W
NW

"W
NW

"W
NW

"W
NW

<D
NN
!M
LW
!R
B8

,
!R
WR
W!�

b\5

<D
NN
!M
LW
!R
B8

,
!R
WR
W!�
b\5

<D
NN
!M
LW
!R
B8

,
!R
WR
W!�

b\5

<D
NN
!M
LW
!R
B8

,
!R
WR
W!�

b\5

S_\ 3W �b
U<L!R N88B!LW8W<W

S_\�3W �b
U<L!R N88B!!
2CDNDFE!MLW

S_\̀ 5W �b
6FA!R N88B!

S_\̀ 3WU�b
6FA!R N88B!

S_\3�W��b
"B8"8<CA!
GTDNADFE!
MCDEML

6 
b\ 
a!"

B8
"8

<C
A
!G
TD
NA

DF
E
!M
LW
!R
B8

,
!F
*
LT
B*

N!
E
B*

A
C

S_\  W` b
*QCB*EC!F*LTB*N!EB*AC

"B
8
"8

<C
A
!G
TD
NA

DF
E
!M
LW
!6

�b
\3
a

U5
b\5
a!R
DB
<L
!R
N8

8
B!
"N
*
LC
!M
LW

`b
\ 
a!6

F
A
!R
N8

8
B!
"N
*
LC
!M
LW

7 UU

U3
b\ 
a

S_\ 3W �b
U<L!R N88B!LW8W<W

S_\�3W �b
U<L!R N88B!!
2CDNDFE!MLW

S_\̀ 5W �b
6FA!R N88B!

S_\̀ 3WU�b
6FA!R N88B!

S_\3�W��b
"B8"8<CA!
GTDNADFE!
MCDEML

6 
b\ 
a!"

B8
"8

<C
A
!G
TD
NA

DF
E
!M
LW
!R
B8

,
!F
*
LT
B*

N!
E
B*

A
C

S_\  W` b
*QCB*EC!F*LTB*N!EB*AC

"B
8
"8

<C
A
!G
TD
NA

DF
E
!M
LW
!6

�b
\3
a

U5
b\5
a!R
DB
<L
!R
N8

8
B!
"N
*
LC
!M
LW

`b
\ 
a!6

F
A
!R
N8

8
B!
"N
*
LC
!M
LW

U3
b\ 
a

Ub\4a

Ub\4a

2*<CW "D2W 2*<CW 2*<CW 2*<CW

2*<CW 2*<CW2*<CW2*<CW

2*<CW 2*<CW 2*<CW

2*<CW 2*<CW
R 8NADFE R8NADFE R8NADFE R8NADFE <NDACB <NDACB R DVCA

SIGNED BY

Ardalan Djalali

HQ&�WH
�RcSZST/,dSZSZV�OVHIHQ&�WHIHIP

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

ddddddd PSSSSSS ddS,dSSSSSSS SSSSAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAASSSSS################SSSSSS AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAADDD################NNN

2024.03.14
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

2024.06.05
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

A25



��  !"#!$%&'(!)*%#+!,('-! ./
)*01220!$'-3+!$4+!5678�

8 79�:/95./.

4##!0*;'<(;+!0=%1'(<;+!%(0
;>*?'@'?%-'2(;!?2(-%'(*0!A*=*'(
%=*!-A*!*B?#C;'D*!>=2>*=-3!2@

4=0%#%(!EF%#%#'G!,(%C-A2='H*0!C;*
2=!=*>=20C?-'2(!'(!1A2#*!2=!'(
>%=-!';!;-='?-#3!>=2A'I'-*0+!%(0
#*<%#!%?-'2(!1'##!I*!-%J*(!-2

>=2-*?-!-A*!'(-*##*?-C%#!>=2>*=-3
='<A-;!2@!4=0%#%(!EF%#%#'G

�� !"#$%$&'()!*+)
,)-./ !"#$01!2*!34567

89-)$
,#$:#;!<#-().#=&!>!

*.&!?#')@

*AABC<<

<DEFCA!GH

AB*I F!GH
*$'#.#-!A=#.#.&

*$'#.#-!A=#.#.&

*"FJKKK!

A*LC

<MCCL!LDLNC

?#')@!#-'!<#-().#=&!
B)O ')-P )

BC
Q
D<
D8
F

LI 8!FCI !<DFENC!R *, DNH
BC<DACF2CS*LL*2MCA!*AT

 

A*LC AC<2BD"LD8F

 

*�W7
�� !"$,0$( ) %*+,- (,0+'( ,. ,/0 '1 %&(2. ,#' 3

�� !"$,0$( ) %*+,( --(: ,+'( ,. 0 /0 '1 %&(2$14 ) ' 3

X))%
U 6 4�  --,. ,/0 '1 %&(. ,4 ,&5 ( 0&5 (6,7&%',+

Y!FT,GCB!8R !Z CHF8LC!GCN8I

TFDL!6
CVLCBD8B!
CNCQ*LD8F<

U A*HNDEML!"N*FC!*<!ACR DFCA!GH![TBD<AD2LD8F
6 *<"M*NL!28,"!<MDFENC!B88R DFE\\<CC!B88R !"N*F!R8B!,8BC!DFR8
� "*DFLCA!<LCCN!LB8I CNCA!DEFDLD8F!BC<D<L*FL!2C,CFL!"N*<LCB!<H<LC, !]<,88LM!R DFD<M !̂\!�_`a!!!

"N*<LCB!8_!, CL*N!N*LM!8_!6!N*HCB<!EB*AC!bAb!8B!GCLLCB!GTDNADFE!"*"CB1!�!28*L!<H<LC, !I DLM!6 !
(#W!I CC"!<2BCCA!*L!I *NN!G*<C!*L!NC*<L!4a!*G8QC!EB*AC!8B!6a!*G8QC!M*BA<2*"C\\<CC!ACL*DN<!
cVV_VVd\\A8!F8L!T<C!aA8TGNC\B8NNa!DF<L*NN*LD8F!R8B!GTDNADFE!"*"CB

4 *AMCBCA!NDEMLI CDEML!<L8FC!QCFCCB!]eU7!NG<_<R \̂\,*FTR WJ!CNA8B*A8!<L8FCf!<LHNCJ!2*<*!
GN*F2*f!28N8BJ!NDEML!2BC*, !, DVCAf!DF<L*NN*LD8F!<LHNCJ!ABH<L*2Z !I *DF<28L!<DNN!8QCB!<LCCN!aNa!
*FENCJ!<F*""CA!CAECf!<DNN!28N8BJ!,*L2M!LMC!<L8FC\\999W).'/ $#'/ O%/ -)WP / ;\\T<C!"8NH,CB\
,8ADR DCA!<CLLDFE!,8BL*B!1!28N8BJ!N*LD2BCLC!,*L2M!LMC!<L8FC\\DF<L*NN!"CB!,*FTR W!
DF<LBT2LD8F<1!D22\C<!CQ*NT*LD8F!BC"8BL!C<B\U6U71!*FA!,Q,*!DF<L*NN*LD8F!ETDAC!R8B!
28,"ND*F2C!I DLM!*<L, !2U�̀ 5W!!28FL*2L!LCBC<*!Q*<gTC?!*L!G8B*N!<L8FC!EB8T"!]4U7\4U`\3��51!
L)$)O#WQ#Ohi)jkG/ $#.W P / ; !̂R 8B!R DCNA!BCQDCI !8R !N*LM!DF<L*NN*LD8F!"BD8B!L8!DF<L*NNDFE!<2B*L2M!
28*LW!!<C*N!QCFCCB!I DLM!<DN*FC!8B!<DN8V*FC!G*<CA!,*<8FBH!LBC*L,CFL!<T2M!*<!2B*R L<MDCNA!
"CB!,*FTR W!DF<LBT2LD8F<W!!

7 QCBD<L8FC!I *D<28L!<DNN!8QCB!<LCCN!aNa!*FENC!\\<D?CJ!U5af!<LHNCJ!Q<,�� f!28N8BJ!NDEML!2BC*, !
2N8<C!L8!LMC!CVLCBD8DB!"N*<LCB!R DFD<M!28N8B\\DF<L*NN!"CB!,*FTR W!DF<LBT2LD8F<!*FA!,Q,*!
DF<L*NN*LD8F!ETDAC!R8B!28,"ND*F2C!I DLM!*<L, !2U�̀ 5

 "*DFLCA!R DGCB!2C,CFL!LBD, \\6KU5!R *<2D*!I DLM!4a!<C*, NC<<!"*DFLCA!<MCCL!, CL*N!ETLLCB\\QCBDR H!
ETLLCB!"B8R DNC!I DLM!8I FCB!"BD8B!L8!R *GBD2*LD8F\\<CC!B88R !"N*F!R8B!,8BC!DFR8

� <L*DF!EB*AC!I 88A!E*B*EC!A88B!I DLM!LC,"CBCA!EN*?DFE!"D2LTBC!I DFA8I <\\<CC!A88B!
<2MCATNC!R 8B!,8BC!DFR8

` I DFA8I _A88B!8"CFDFE!I DLM!<D, TN*LCA!ADQDACA!NDLC<J!EBDA<!8F!LMC!DFLCBD8B!*FA!CVLCBD8B!8R !
LMC!EN*<<!*FA!*!<"*2CB!G*B!GCLI CCF!LMC!"*FC<!8R !EN*<<\\<CC!I DFA8I !*FA!A88B!<2MCATNC<!
R 8B!,8BC!DFR8\\LH"D2*N1!TWFW8W

3 *NT, DFT, !GB*Z C!<M*"C\\R DFD<M!L8!,*L2M!I DFA8I !R B*,C\\QCBDR H!<D?C!DF!R DCNA
U5 *NT, DFT, !*B2M!<M*"C\\R DFD<M!L8!,*L2M!I DFA8I !R B*,C\\QCBDR H!<D?C!DF!R DCNA
UU CVLCBD8B!NDEML1!DF<L*NN!"CB!,*FTR W!DF<LBT2LD8F<\\,*FTR WJ!2*L*NDF*!NDEMLf!<LHNCJ!<,*NN!

8TBA88B!I *NN!<28F2C!I  aMU�f!28N8BJ!GB8F?
U6 "DF!,8TFLCA!NCA!DNNT, DF*LCA!*AABC<<!<DEF*EC1!2NC*BNH!QD<DGNC!R B8, !*A[*2CFL!<LBCCL\\

MCDEMLJ!`a1!<LHNCJ!NT,*\FT,GCB<1!G*2Z NDL!NCA!*AABC<<!FT,GCB<f!R DFD<MJ!<L*DFNC<<!<LCCN!
999W;/ ')$-.&(@%O W P / ;\\!"B8QDAC!"M8L8<CF<8B!28FFC2LCA!NCA!G*2Z NDEMLDFE!k!C*2M!FT,GCB!

U� 2B*I N<"*2C!QCFL\\<CC!2B*I N<"*2C!QCFL!2*N2<!8F!*6WU!R 8B!,8BC!DFR8
U4 M*BA<2*"C\\<CC!<DLC!"N*F!*FA!R DFD<M!R N88B!"N*F!R8B!,8BC!DFR8
U7 "*DFLCA!AC28B*LDQC!28BGCN\\28N8B!L8!GC!,*L2M!LMC!R *<2D*
U AC28B*LDQC!LBT<<!*L!"8B2M!

S_\VVVWVb
]C _̂]F !̂EB*AC EB*AC!NDFC

"B8"CBLH!NDFC

N*FA!R DNN

l

U � `UU

UU6 ` �

LH"WLH"WLH"WLH"WLH"W

LH"W LH"W LH"W LH"W

<D
NN
!M
LW
!R
B8

,
!R
WR
W!�

b\5

<D
NN
!M
LW
!R
B8

,
!R
WR
W!�
b\5

4b
\5
a

<D
NN
!M
LW
!R
B8

,
!R
WR
W!�

b\5

S_\ 3W �b
U<L!R N88B!LW8W<W

S_\�3W �b
U<L!R N88B!!
2CDNDFE!MLW

S_\̀ 5W �b
6FA!R N88B!

S_\̀ 3WU�b
6FA!R N88B!

S_\3�W��b
"B8"8<CA!
GTDNADFE!
MCDEML

6 
b\ 
a!"

B8
"8

<C
A
!G
TD
NA

DF
E
!M
LW
!R
B8

,
!F
*
LT
B*

N!
E
B*

A
C

S_\  W` b
*QCB*EC!F*LTB*N!EB*AC

"B
8
"8

<C
A
!G
TD
NA

DF
E
!M
LW
!6

�b
\3
a

U5
b\5
a!R
DB
<L
!R
N8

8
B!
"N
*
LC
!M
LW

`b
\ 
a!6

F
A
!R
N8

8
B!
"N
*
LC
!M
LW

3b
\U
!U
_6
a!I

DF
A
8
I
!<
DN
N!
MC

DE
ML

!R
B8

,
!N
*
F
A
DF
E

S_\ 3W �b
U<L!R N88B!LW8W<W

S_\�3W �b
U<L!R N88B!!
2CDNDFE!MLW

S_\̀ 5W �b
6FA!R N88B!

S_\̀ 3WU�b
6FA!R N88B!

S_\3�W��b
"B8"8<CA!
GTDNADFE!
MCDEML

6 
b\ 
a!"

B8
"8

<C
A
!G
TD
NA

DF
E
!M
LW
!R
B8

,
!F
*
LT
B*

N!
E
B*

A
C

S_\  W` b
*QCB*EC!F*LTB*N!EB*AC

"B
8
"8

<C
A
!G
TD
NA

DF
E
!M
LW
!6

�b
\3
a

U5
b\5
a!R
DB
<L
!R
N8

8
B!
"N
*
LC
!M
LW

`b
\ 
a!6

F
A
!R
N8

8
B!
"N
*
LC
!M
LW

7b
\6
!U
_6
a

7b
\6
!U
_6
a

*I DFE

2*<CW 2*<CW

*I DFE *I DFE

"D2W

2*<CW 2*<CW 2*<CW2*<CW2*<CW

2*<CW 2*<CW 2*<CW 2*<CW 2*<CW

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

HQ&�WH
�RcSZST/,dSZSZV�OVHIHQ&�WHIHIP

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

dd PSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS #######################SSSSSSSSSS$$'$$$$'$$'$' ################################DNN

2024.03.14
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

2024.06.05
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

A26



��  !"#!$%&'(!)*%#+!,('-! ./
)*01220!$'-3+!$4+!5678�

8 79�:/95./.

4##!0*;'<(;+!0=%1'(<;+!%(0
;>*?'@'?%-'2(;!?2(-%'(*0!A*=*'(
%=*!-A*!*B?#C;'D*!>=2>*=-3!2@

4=0%#%(!EF%#%#'G!,(%C-A2='H*0!C;*
2=!=*>=20C?-'2(!'(!1A2#*!2=!'(
>%=-!';!;-='?-#3!>=2A'I'-*0+!%(0
#*<%#!%?-'2(!1'##!I*!-%J*(!-2

>=2-*?-!-A*!'(-*##*?-C%#!>=2>*=-3
='<A-;!2@!4=0%#%(!EF%#%#'G

�� !"#$%$&'()!*+)
,)-./ !"#$01!2*!34567

89-)$
,#$:#;!<#-().#=&!>!

*.&!?#')@

*AABC<<

<DEFCA!GH

AB*I F!GH
*$'#.#-!A=#.#.&

*$'#.#-!A=#.#.&

*"FJKKK!

A*LC

<MCCL!LDLNC

?#')@!#-'!<#-().#=&!
B)O ')-P )

BC
Q
D<
D8
F

LI 8!FCI !<DFENC!R *, DNH
BC<DACF2CS*LL*2MCA!*AT

 

A*LC AC<2BD"LD8F

 

CULCBD8B!
"CB<"C2LDQC<

*�V 
�8:$%+,)6 %7&'8)#'$&#'*,1 /')'-,'$1 %$):$%+,)6 1 =6!8:$%+,)6 %7&'88)#'$&#'*,1 /')'-,'$1 %$)$'0$)6 1 =6

28:$%+,)6 %7&'88#'$&#'*,1 /')'-,'$1 %$):$%+,). ':,

�8:$%+,)6 %7&'88#'$&#'*,1 /')'-,'$1 %$):$%+,)$1 =6 ,

48:$%+,)6 %7&'88)#'$&#'*,1 /')'-,'$1 %$)$'0$). ':,

<8:$%+,)6 %7&'88#'$&#'*,1 /')'-,'$1 %$)$'0$)$1 =6 ,

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

HQ&�WH
�RcSZST/,dSZSZV�OVHIHQ&�WHIHIP

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li
*$'#*$'#**$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#* .#-.#-.#-.#-.#-#-#-.#-.#-#-.#-#-.#- A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#...A=#.#.&#.#.&#.&#.&#.&#.#.&#.&#.&#.&#.&

dddSSSSSSZVSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS ���WWSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSIISSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS
DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDNNNNNNNNN

2024.03.14
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

2024.06.05
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

A27



��  !"#!$%&'(!)*%#+!,('-! ./
)*01220!$'-3+!$4+!5678�

8 79�:/95./.

4##!0*;'<(;+!0=%1'(<;+!%(0
;>*?'@'?%-'2(;!?2(-%'(*0!A*=*'(
%=*!-A*!*B?#C;'D*!>=2>*=-3!2@

4=0%#%(!EF%#%#'G!,(%C-A2='H*0!C;*
2=!=*>=20C?-'2(!'(!1A2#*!2=!'(
>%=-!';!;-='?-#3!>=2A'I'-*0+!%(0
#*<%#!%?-'2(!1'##!I*!-%J*(!-2

>=2-*?-!-A*!'(-*##*?-C%#!>=2>*=-3
='<A-;!2@!4=0%#%(!EF%#%#'G

�� !"#$%$&'()!*+)
,)-./ !"#$01!2*!34567

89-)$
,#$:#;!<#-().#=&!>!

*.&!?#')@

*AABC<<

<DEFCA!GH

AB*I F!GH
*$'#.#-!A=#.#.&

*$'#.#-!A=#.#.&

*"FJKKK!

A*LC

<MCCL!LDLNC

?#')@!#-'!<#-().#=&!
B)O ')-P )

BC
Q
D<
D8
F

LI 8!FCI !<DFENC!R *, DNH
BC<DACF2CS*LL*2MCA!*AT

 

A*LC AC<2BD"LD8F

 

CULCBD8B!
"CB<"C2LDQC<

*�V�
�8$'0$)6 %7&'88)#'$&#'*,1 /')'-,'$1 %$):$%+,)6 1 =6!8$'0$)6 %7&'88)#'$&#'*,1 /')'-,'$1 %$)$'0$)6 1 =6

28$'0$)6 %7&'88#'$&#'*,1 /')'-,'$1 %$):$%+,). ':,

�8$'0$)6 7%&'88#'$&#'*,1 /')'-,'$1 %$):$%+,)$1 =6 ,

48$'0$)6 %7&'88#'$&#'*,1 /')'-,'$1 %$)$'0$). ':,

<8$'0$)6 %7&'88#'$&#'*,1 /')'-,'$1 %$)$'0$)$1 =6 ,

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

HQ&�WH
�RcSZST/,dSZSZV�OVHIHQ&�WHIHIP

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li
*$'#*$'#**$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#* .#-.#-.#-.#-.#-#-#-.#-.#-#-.#-#-.#- A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#...A=#.#.&#.#.&#.&#.&#.&#.#.&#.&#.&#.&#.&

dddSSSSSSZVSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS ���WWSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSIISSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS
DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDNNNNNNNNN

2024.03.14
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

2024.06.05
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

A28



��  !"#!$%&'(!)*%#+!,('-! ./
)*01220!$'-3+!$4+!5678�

8 79�:/95./.

4##!0*;'<(;+!0=%1'(<;+!%(0
;>*?'@'?%-'2(;!?2(-%'(*0!A*=*'(
%=*!-A*!*B?#C;'D*!>=2>*=-3!2@

4=0%#%(!EF%#%#'G!,(%C-A2='H*0!C;*
2=!=*>=20C?-'2(!'(!1A2#*!2=!'(
>%=-!';!;-='?-#3!>=2A'I'-*0+!%(0
#*<%#!%?-'2(!1'##!I*!-%J*(!-2

>=2-*?-!-A*!'(-*##*?-C%#!>=2>*=-3
='<A-;!2@!4=0%#%(!EF%#%#'G

�� !"#$%$&'()!*+)
,)-./ !"#$01!2*!34567

89-)$
,#$:#;!<#-().#=&!>!

*.&!?#')@

*AABC<<

<DEFCA!GH

AB*I F!GH
*$'#.#-!A=#.#.&

*$'#.#-!A=#.#.&

*"FJKKK!

A*LC

<MCCL!LDLNC

?#')@!#-'!<#-().#=&!
B)O ')-P )

BC
Q
D<
D8
F

LI 8!FCI !<DFENC!R *, DNH
BC<DACF2CS*LL*2MCA!*AT

 

A*LC AC<2BD"LD8F

 

CULCBD8B!
"CB<"C2LDQC<

*�V[
�8'+,1 $')#'$>). %,)/1 '5 ):$%+,)$1 =6 ,!8'+,1 $'). %,)#'$>)/1 '5 )$'0$). ':,

28'+,1 $'). %,)#'$>)/1 '5 ). ':,)&1 ('

�8'+,1 $'). %,)#'$>)/1 '5 )$1 =6 ,)&1 ('

48'+,1 $'). %,)#'$>)/1 '5 )$'0$)$1 =6 ,

<8'+,1 $'). %,)#$'>)/1 '5 ):$%+,). ':,

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

HQ&�WH
�RcSZST/,dSZSZV�OVHIHQ&�WHIHIP

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li
*$'#*$'#**$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#* .#-.#-.#-.#-.#-#-#-.#-.#-#-.#-#-.#- A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#...A=#.#.&#.#.&#.&#.&#.&#.#.&#.&#.&#.&#.&

dddSSSSSSZVSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS ���WWSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSIISSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS
DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDNNNNNNNNN

2024.03.14
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

2024.06.05
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

A29



��  !"#!$%&'(!)*%#+!,('-! ./
)*01220!$'-3+!$4+!5678�

8 79�:/95./.

4##!0*;'<(;+!0=%1'(<;+!%(0
;>*?'@'?%-'2(;!?2(-%'(*0!A*=*'(
%=*!-A*!*B?#C;'D*!>=2>*=-3!2@

4=0%#%(!EF%#%#'G!,(%C-A2='H*0!C;*
2=!=*>=20C?-'2(!'(!1A2#*!2=!'(
>%=-!';!;-='?-#3!>=2A'I'-*0+!%(0
#*<%#!%?-'2(!1'##!I*!-%J*(!-2

>=2-*?-!-A*!'(-*##*?-C%#!>=2>*=-3
='<A-;!2@!4=0%#%(!EF%#%#'G

�� !"#$%$&'()!*+)
,)-./ !"#$01!2*!34567

89-)$
,#$:#;!<#-().#=&!>!

*.&!?#')@

*AABC<<

<DEFCA!GH

AB*I F!GH
*$'#.#-!A=#.#.&

*$'#.#-!A=#.#.&

*"FJKKK!

A*LC

<MCCL!LDLNC

?#')@!#-'!<#-().#=&!
B)O ')-P )

BC
Q
D<
D8
F

LI 8!FCI !<DFENC!R *, DNH
BC<DACF2CS*LL*2MCA!*AT

 

A*LC AC<2BD"LD8F

 

,*LCBD*N
G8*BA

*�V3

NDEMLDFE
2*L*NDF*!YXNDEML!<,*NN
8TLA88B!I *NN!<28F2C

�55362NAG?
I  bMY�

28N8BJ!GB8F?C

&7$$%7+(1 +=)6 %7&')+7F?'$&
#1+)F%7+,'(). '()1 . . 7F1+0,'()0(($'&&

&1=+0=')3"). 7-'. . %
*%. %$G)?$%+H'

I I I >JKLLMKNOPNQ>RMS

'-,'$1 %$):'0 ,7$')5 0. .
'. (%$0(%)&,%+'

&,D. 'G )*0&0)?. 0+*0
*%. %$G)TUMNOJV)LKJJWXV)YNO)RMMU)QLYZJ

I I I >WUOMLYOMJXMNW>RMS

B88R DFE
"BC<DACFLD*N!<M*\C
<MDFENC!B88R DFE

28N8BJ!*TLT,F!GNCFA
999VP )$%#&-%))'VP / ;

QCBD<L8FC!I *D<28L!
<D?CJ!Y5b f!<LHNCJ!Q<,�� f!

28N8BJ!NDEML!2BC*, !2N8<C!
L8!LMC!CULCBD8DB!"N*<LCB!

R DFD<M!28N8B

'-,'$1 %$)&,7**%)5 0. . )*%. %$
'. 0&,%F'$1 *)F0&%+$DV)&,7**%)0+()?$1 *C)#01+,

?$0+(G )?'6 $)%$)'[71 /0. '+,
*%. %$G*0F#:1 $')0&6 88+ �2B8�

*%. %$):0(')#$%,'*,1 %+
I I I >TW\L>RMS

E*B*EC!A88B
2VMVDV!8QCB!MC*A!A88B<

6X<DACA!<LCCN!<*FAI D2MXX*22CFL<!
I 88AL8FC<!G*<C!I DLM!I 88A!EB*DF!

"8NH!LBD, !G8*BA<

CFLBH!A88B
28<T,C!,*AC!<8NDA!I 88A
I DLM!R DU!R TNN!NDLC!8F!<DAC
28N8BJ!A*B\!GB8I F

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

HQ&�WH
�RcSZST/,dSZSZV�OVHIHQ&�WHIHIP

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li
*$'#*$'#**$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#* .#-.#-.#-.#-.#-#-#-.#-.#-#-.#-#-.#- A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#...A=#.#.&#.#.&#.&#.&#.&#.#.&#.&#.&#.&#.&

dddSSSSSSZVSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS ���WWSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSIISSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS
DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDNNNNNNNNN

2024.03.14
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

2024.06.05
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

A30



1355 El Camin Real, Unit 527
Redwood City, CA, 94063

650-387-9272

736 Partridge Ave
Menlo Park

Owner
Maryam Sangelaji &

Ali Zadeh

ADDRESS

Zadeh & Sangelaji
 Residence
NEW SINGLE FAMILY

RESIDENCE+ATTACCHED ADU

SIGNED BY

DRAWN BY
Ardalan Djalali

Ardalan Djalali

APN: XXX

All designs, drawings, and
specifications contained herein
are the exclusive property of
Ardalan Djalali. Unauthorized use
or reproduction in whole or in
part is strictly prohibited, and
legal action will be taken to
protect the intellectual property

rights of Ardalan Djalali.

RE
V

IS
IO

N

DATE DESCRIPTION 

SHEET TITLE

WINDOW&DOOR

SCHEDULE

A4.0

REAR HOUSE -- DOOR SCHEDULE - 2 REAR HOUSE -- WINDOW SCHEDULE - 1

FRONT HOUSE-- DOOR SCHEDULE - 2 FRONT HOUSE-- WINDOW SCHEDULE - 1

2024.03.14
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

2024.06.05
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

HQ&�WH
�RcSZST/,dSZSZV�OVHIHQ&�WHIHIP

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

AAArdaAAAAAAA jDjalaDjaaDjajjjjjj alaaaaaajjjjjjaaaardallaanlananll Djjjjllllllll SSSSSlllllllllllllllSSSSSS DDDDDDDDDllNNNNllNNN

A31



��  !"#!$%&'(!)*%#+!,('-! ./
)*01220!$'-3+!$4+!5678�

8 79�:/95./.

4##!0*;'<(;+!0=%1'(<;+!%(0
;>*?'@'?%-'2(;!?2(-%'(*0!A*=*'(
%=*!-A*!*B?#C;'D*!>=2>*=-3!2@

4=0%#%(!EF%#%#'G!,(%C-A2='H*0!C;*
2=!=*>=20C?-'2(!'(!1A2#*!2=!'(
>%=-!';!;-='?-#3!>=2A'I'-*0+!%(0
#*<%#!%?-'2(!1'##!I*!-%J*(!-2

>=2-*?-!-A*!'(-*##*?-C%#!>=2>*=-3
='<A-;!2@!4=0%#%(!EF%#%#'G

�� !"#$%$&'()!*+)
,)-./ !"#$01!2*!34567

89-)$
,#$:#;!<#-().#=&!>!

*.&!?#')@

*AABC<<

<DEFCA!GH

AB*I F!GH
*$'#.#-!A=#.#.&

*$'#.#-!A=#.#.&

*"FJKKK!

A*LC

<MCCL!LDLNC

?#')@!#-'!<#-().#=&!
B)O ')-P )

BC
Q
D<
D8
F

LI 8!FCI !<DFENC!R *, DNH
BC<DACF2CS*LL*2MCA!*AT

 

A*LC AC<2BD"LD8F

 

*7V5
F8LC<J
YV <CC!6W *5VY#!R8B!"NT,GDFE!ECFCB*N!F8LC<
6V <CC!�W *5VY#!R8B!, C2M*FD2*N!ECFCB*N!F8LC<
�V <CC!�W *5VY#!R8B!CNC2LBD2*N!ECFCB*N!F8LC<
4V <CC!4W *5VY#!R8B!"N*F!*FA!DFLCBD8B!ECFCB*N!F8LC<
7V <CC!LDLNC!64!R 8B!DF<TN*LD8F!F8LC<

88&'*,1 %+). '='+()0+()C'D+%,'&2� <"&'*,1 %+)2]))%
Y 6 4�  

TFDL!Y
<C2LD8F<

�� <"&'*,1 %+)�]))%
Y 6 4�  

N*FA!R DNN

*AT!NDQDFE

"8
I
A
CB

!B
8
8
,

R 8HCB

GCAB88, !�

�Z
XY
Yb

GCAB88, !Y I VDV2 R *, DNHW \DL2MCF

N*TFABH G*LM!B88, !6 ,*<LCB
G*LM!B88, ! I VDV2

4Z
X�
b

SW X [V36Z
Y<L!R N88B!LV8V<V

SW X�[V36Z
Y<L!R N88B!!
2CDNDFE!MLV

SW X�3V36Z
6FA!R N88B!

SW X[3V53Z
6FA!R N88B!

SW X36V43Z
"B8"8<CA!
GTDNADFE!
MCDEML

SW X �V75Z
*QCB*EC!F*LTB*N!EB*AC

"B
8
"8

<C
A
!G
TD
NA

DF
E
!M
LV
!6

�Z
X[
b

Y5
ZX5
b!R
DB
<L
!R
N8

8
B!
"N
*
LC
!M
LV

[Z
X 
b!6

F
A
!R
N8

8
B!
"N
*
LC
!M
LV

64
ZXY
Y!

�W
4b
!"
B8

"8
<C
A
!G
TD
NA

DF
E
!M
LV
!R
B8

,
!F
*
LT
B*

N!
E
B*

A
C

�Z
X5
b

SW X [V36Z
Y<L!R N88B!LV8V<V

SW X�[V36Z
Y<L!R N88B!!
2CDNDFE!MLV

SW X�3V36Z
6FA!R N88B!

SW X[3V53Z
6FA!R N88B!

SW X36V43Z
"B8"8<CA!
GTDNADFE!
MCDEML

SW X �V75Z
*QCB*EC!F*LTB*N!EB*AC

"B
8
"8

<C
A
!G
TD
NA

DF
E
!M
LV
!6

�Z
X[
b

Y5
ZX5
b!R
DB
<L
!R
N8

8
B!
"N
*
LC
!M
LV

[Z
X 
b!6

F
A
!R
N8

8
B!
"N
*
LC
!M
LV

64
ZXY
Y!

�W
4b
!"
B8

"8
<C
A
!G
TD
NA

DF
E
!M
LV
!R
B8

,
!F
*
LT
B*

N!
E
B*

A
C

6Z
X�
!Y
W6
b

,
DF
!Y
[b
!2
B*

I
N<
"*

2
C

�Z
X 
b

,
DF
!Y
[b
!2
B*

I
N<
"*

2
C

7+1,)2)$1(=')

�Z
X�
!Y
W6
b

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

HQ&�WH
�RcSZST/,dSZSZV�OVHIHQ&�WHIHIP

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li
*$'#*$'#**$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#* .#-.#-.#-.#-.#-#-#-.#-.#-#-.#-#-.#- A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#...A=#.#.&#.#.&#.&#.&#.&#.#.&#.&#.&#.&#.&

dddSSSSSSZVSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS ���WWSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSIISSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS
DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDNNNNNNNNN

2024.03.14
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

2024.06.05
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

A32



��  !"#!$%&'(!)*%#+!,('-! ./
)*01220!$'-3+!$4+!5678�

8 79�:/95./.

4##!0*;'<(;+!0=%1'(<;+!%(0
;>*?'@'?%-'2(;!?2(-%'(*0!A*=*'(
%=*!-A*!*B?#C;'D*!>=2>*=-3!2@

4=0%#%(!EF%#%#'G!,(%C-A2='H*0!C;*
2=!=*>=20C?-'2(!'(!1A2#*!2=!'(
>%=-!';!;-='?-#3!>=2A'I'-*0+!%(0
#*<%#!%?-'2(!1'##!I*!-%J*(!-2

>=2-*?-!-A*!'(-*##*?-C%#!>=2>*=-3
='<A-;!2@!4=0%#%(!EF%#%#'G

�� !"#$%$&'()!*+)
,)-./ !"#$01!2*!34567

89-)$
,#$:#;!<#-().#=&!>!

*.&!?#')@

*AABC<<

<DEFCA!GH

AB*I F!GH
*$'#.#-!A=#.#.&

*$'#.#-!A=#.#.&

*"FJKKK!

A*LC

<MCCL!LDLNC

?#')@!#-'!<#-().#=&!
B)O ')-P )

BC
Q
D<
D8
F

LI 8!FCI !<DFENC!R *, DNH
BC<DACF2CS*LL*2MCA!*AT

 

A*LC AC<2BD"LD8F

 

88&'*,1 %+). '='+(&)0+()C'D+%,'&

F8LC<J
YV <CC!6W *5VY#!R8B!"NT,GDFE!ECFCB*N!F8LC<
6V <CC!�W *5VY#!R8B!, C2M*FD2*N!ECFCB*N!F8LC<
�V <CC!�W *5VY#!R8B!CNC2LBD2*N!ECFCB*N!F8LC<
4V <CC!4W *5VY#!R8B!"N*F!*FA!DFLCBD8B!ECFCB*N!F8LC<
7V <CC!LDLNC!64!R 8B!DF<TN*LD8F!F8LC<

*7VY
]))%

Y 6 4�  

N*FA!R DNN

TFDL!6
<C2LD8F<

�� <"&'*,1 %+)�

_ !FT,GCB!8R !\CHF8LC!GCN8Il

�� <"&'*,1 %+)�]))%
Y 6 4�  

6Z
X 
b

E*B*ECR8HCB

"8
I
A
CB

!B
8
8
,

G*
LM

!B
8
8
,
!Y

2N8<CL*AT!GCAB88, !Y

GCAB88, !�GCAB88, !6

R8HCB R *, DNHW \DL2MCF

GCAB88, !�

M*NNI *H

,*<LCB!GCAB88,

�Z
X7
!Y
W6
b

�Z
X 
b

SW X 3V �Z
Y<L!R N88B!LV8V<V

SW X�3V �Z
Y<L!R N88B!!
2CDNDFE!MLV

SW X[5V �Z
6FA!R N88B!

SW X[3VY�Z
6FA!R N88B!

SW X3�V��Z
"B8"8<CA!
GTDNADFE!
MCDEML

6 
ZX 
b!"

B8
"8

<C
A
!G
TD
NA

DF
E
!M
LV
!R
B8

,
!F
*
LT
B*

N!
E
B*

A
C

SW X  V[ Z
*QCB*EC!F*LTB*N!EB*AC

"B
8
"8

<C
A
!G
TD
NA

DF
E
!M
LV
!6

�Z
X3
b

Y5
ZX5
b!R
DB
<L
!R
N8

8
B!
"N
*
LC
!M
LV

[Z
X 
b!6

F
A
!R
N8

8
B!
"N
*
LC
!M
LV

SW X 3V �Z
Y<L!R N88B!LV8V<V

SW X�3V �Z
Y<L!R N88B!!
2CDNDFE!MLV

SW X[5V �Z
6FA!R N88B!

SW X[3VY�Z
6FA!R N88B!

SW X3�V��Z
"B8"8<CA!
GTDNADFE!
MCDEML

6 
ZX 
b!"

B8
"8

<C
A
!G
TD
NA

DF
E
!M
LV
!R
B8

,
!F
*
LT
B*

N!
E
B*

A
C

SW X  V[ Z
*QCB*EC!F*LTB*N!EB*AC

"B
8
"8

<C
A
!G
TD
NA

DF
E
!M
LV
!6

�Z
X3
b

Y5
ZX5
b!R
DB
<L
!R
N8

8
B!
"N
*
LC
!M
LV

[Z
X 
b!6

F
A
!R
N8

8
B!
"N
*
LC
!M
LV

,
DF
!Y
[b
!2
B*

I
N<
"*

2
C

,
DF
!Y
[b
!2
B*

I
N<
"*

2
CYZ
X 
b!*

G8
Q
C!
LM

C!
*
F
E
V

YY
ZX6
!Y
W6
b

YZ
X 
!Y
W6
b

Y5
ZX4
b

YZ
X 
b!*

G8
Q
C!
LM

C!
*
F
E
V

YZ
X 
b!*

G8
Q
C!
LM

C!
*
F
E
V

YY
ZX6
!Y
W6
b

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

HQ&�WH
�RcSZST/,dSZSZV�OVHIHQ&�WHIHIP

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li
*$'#*$'#**$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#*$'#* .#-.#-.#-.#-.#-#-#-.#-.#-#-.#-#-.#- A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#.A=#...A=#.#.&#.#.&#.&#.&#.&#.#.&#.&#.&#.&#.&

dddSSSSSSZVSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS ���WWSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSIISSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS
DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDNNNNNNNNN

2024.03.14
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

2024.06.05
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

A33



1355 El Camin Real, Unit 527
Redwood City, CA, 94063

650-387-9272

736 Partridge Ave
Menlo Park

Owner
Maryam Sangelaji &

Ali Zadeh

ADDRESS

Zadeh & Sangelaji
 Residence
NEW SINGLE FAMILY

RESIDENCE+ATTACCHED ADU

SIGNED BY

DRAWN BY
Ardalan Djalali

Ardalan Djalali

APN: XXX

All designs, drawings, and
specifications contained herein
are the exclusive property of
Ardalan Djalali. Unauthorized use
or reproduction in whole or in
part is strictly prohibited, and
legal action will be taken to
protect the intellectual property

rights of Ardalan Djalali.

RE
V

IS
IO

N

DATE DESCRIPTION 

SHEET TITLE

FIRE DEPARTMENT
COA

FI-1

2024.03.14
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

2024.06.05
PLANNING

RESUBMITTAL

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

HQ&�WH
�RcSZST/,dSZSZV�OVHIHQ&�WHIHIP

SIGNED BY

A d l Dj l li

ArdaArdaArdaArdaArdardaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdaArdalan ananananananananananaa DjalDjalDjalDjaDjalDjalDjalDjalDjalDjalDjaDjaDj aaaaaaaaaaaaArdaaaaalanaanaannn DDDDDDjjajaaajaaaArdaaaaaa anannnnnnnannan DDDDaa nnnnnnnnaa nnnnnnnaa nnnnn�W�WSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSISSSSSSSSSSSS
DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN

A34



T-1
APN: 071-412-370

CITY OF MENLO PARK
736 PARTRIDGE AVE.

MENLO PARK, CA 94025
TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY MAP

PRELIMINARY BOUNDARY AND

A35



 SMP 

GENERAL INFORMATION

AREA TABLE

TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP
TWO (2) CONDOMINIUM UNITS WITH ADU

736 PARTRIDGE AVE., MENLO PARK, CA 94025





APN: 071-412-370

•

•

•

A36



 SMP 

AA

BB

SECTION B-B

SECTION A-A

A37



 SMP 

X

PLAN

Y

X

Y

SECTION Y-YSECTION X-X

A38



C.3 STORMWATER CONTROL NOTES

POST-CONSTRUCTION STORMWATER CONTROLS

This project proposes the use of post-construction stormwater controls, also called Low Impact Development (LID)
techniques, or post-construction Best Management Practices (BMPs), They reduce the long-term impacts of
development on stormwater quality and creek channels by preserving and re-creating natural landscape features,
minimizing imperviousness, and then infiltrating, storing, detaining, evapotranspiring, and/or biotreating stormwater
runoff close to its source, or onsite.

1. SITE DESIGN MEASURES:

Site planning techniques that help reduce stormwater pollutants and increases in peak runoff flow and duration:

• Minimize land disturbance and preserve open space
• Minimize impervious surfaces by constructing driveways and parking areas with pervious interlocking

pavers
• Minimize impervious surfaces that are directly connected to the storm drain system by routing runoff to

landscaped areas
• Cluster structures and paved surfaces
• Use landscaping as a drainage feature

2. SOURCE CONTROL MEASURES:

Structural project features or operational "good housekeeping"�

•

•

•
•

•

•

 SMP 

PERVIOUS PAVER REQUIREMENTS
CONTRACTOR OR PERMITEE SHALL:

• PROVIDE CERTIFICATION FROM THE PAVER MANUFACTURER THAT
THE PAVERS MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE C3 STORMWATER
HANDBOOK FOR PERVIOUS PAVERS. THIS INCLUDES, BUT IS NOT
LIMITED TO, HAVING A MINIMUM SURFACE INFILTRATION RATE OF
100"/HR WHEN TESTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM C1701.

• ONLY CONTRACTORS HOLDING CERTIFICATION OF COMPLETION IN
THE INTERLOCKING CONCRETE PAVEMENT INSTITUTES PICP
INSTALLER TECHNICIAN COURSE SHALL BE USED TO INSTALL THE
PAVERS AND AT LEAST ONE FOREMAN WITH THIS CERTIFICATION
MUST BE ON THE JOBSITE AT ALL  TIMES DURING CONCRETE
PAVER INSTALLATION.

• PROTECT THE EXCAVATED AREA FOR PERVIOUS PAVERS FROM
EXCESSIVE COMPACTION DUE TO CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC AND
PROTECT THE FINISHED PAVEMENT FROM CONSTRUCTION
TRAFFIC.

TABLE 1
ROUTINE MAINTENANCE ACTIVITIES FOR PERVIOUS PAVEMENT

NO. MAINTENANCE TASK FREQUENCY OF TASK

1
CHECK FOR SEDIMENT AND DEBRIS ACCUMULATION. PREVENT SOIL FROM
WASHING OR BLOWING ONTO THE PAVEMENT. DO NOT STORE SAND, SOIL, MULCH
OR OTHER LANDSCAPING MATERIALS ON PERVIOUS PAVEMENT SURFACES.

TWO TO FOUR TIMES ANNUALLY

2
CONDUCT PREVENTATIVE SURFACE CLEANING, USING COMMERCIALLY AVAILABLE
REGENERATIVE AIR OR VACUUM SWEEPERS, TO REMOVE SEDIMENT AND DEBRIS. TWO TO FOUR TIMES ANNUALLY

3
INSPECT FOR ANY SIGNS OF PAVEMENT FAILURE. REPAIR ANY SURFACE
DEFORMATIONS OR BROKEN PAVERS. REPLACE MISSING JOINT FILLER IN PICP.

TWO TO FOUR TIMES ANNUALLY

4
CHECK FOR STANDING WATER ON THE PAVEMENT SURFACE WITHIN 30 MINUTES
AFTER A STORM EVENT.

TWO TO FOUR TIMES ANNUALLY

5
INSPECT UNDERDRAIN OUTLETS AND CLEANOUTS, PREFERABLY BEFORE THE WET
SEASON. REMOVE TRASH/DEBRIS.

TWO TO FOUR TIMES ANNUALLY

6 REMOVE SEDIMENT AND DEBRIS ACCUMULATION ON PERVIOUS PAVEMENT. TWO TO FOUR TIMES ANNUALLY

7
REMOVE WEEDS. MOW VEGETATION IN GRID PAVEMENTS (SUCH AS TURF BLOCK)
AS NEEDED.

AS NEEDED

8

PERFORM RESTORATIVE SURFACE CLEANING WITH A VACUUM SWEEPER, AND/OR
RECONSTRUCTION OF PART OF THE PERVIOUS SURFACE TO RESTORE SURFACE
PERMEABILITY AS NEEDED. REPLENISH AGGREGATE IN PICP JOINTS OR GRIDS AS
NEEDED AFTER RESTORATIVE SURFACE CLEANING.

AS NEEDED

9

POWER WASHING WITH SIMULTANEOUS VACUUMING ALSO CAN BE USED TO
RESTORE SURFACE INFILTRATION TO HIGHLY CLOGGED AREAS OF PERVIOUS
CONCRETE, POROUS ASPHALT OR PICP, BUT IS NOT RECOMMENDED FOR GRID
PAVEMENTS.

AS NEEDED

10 INSPECT PERVIOUS PAVING AREA USING THE ATTACHED INSPECTION CHECKLIST. QUARTERLY OR AS NEEDED

RESPONSIBLE PARTY FOR MAINTENANCE ACTIVITIES FOR PERVIOUS PAVEMENT: 
HOA (HOME OWNER'S ASSOCIATION) PER TABLE 1 BELOW

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE
INFORMATION:

I. PROPERTY INFORMATION:

II. RESPONSIBLE PARTY FOR MAINTENANCE:

PROJECT SITE INFORMATION:
1. SOILS TYPE: 

2. GROUND WATER DEPTH: 
3. NAME OF RECEIVING BODY: 

4. FLOOD ZONE: 

5. FLOOD ELEVATION (IF APPLICABLE): 

A39



ON-SITE IMPERVIOUS/ PERVIOUS AREA TABLE

 SMP 

OFF-SITE IMPERVIOUS/ PERVIOUS AREA TABLE

ON-SITE IMPERVIOUS/ PERVIOUS AREA TABLE

OFF-SITE IMPERVIOUS/ PERVIOUS AREA TABLE

TOTAL IMPERVIOUS/ PERVIOUS AREA TABLE

TOTAL IMPERVIOUS/ PERVIOUS AREA TABLE

EXISTING

PROPOSED

PROPOSED EXISTING

EXISTING

EXISTING

PROPOSED

PROPOSED

A40



 SMP 

A41



TREE B -36" BOX PISTACHIA CHINENSIS 'KEITH DAVIES'
PISTACHE TREE -DECIDUOUS (FRUITLESS)

TREE A -36" BOX LYONOTHAMNUS FLORIBUNDUS-
CATALINA IRONWOOD -EVERGREEN

TREE A -36" BOX LYONOTHAMNUS FLORIBUNDUS-
CATALINA IRONWOOD -(EVERGREEN TREE)

TREE C -36" BOX LAURUS 'SARATOGA' -
SARATOGA LAUREL (EVEGREEN TREE)

TREE C -36" BOX LAURUS 'SARATOGA' -
SARATOGA LAUREL (EVEGREEN TREE)

TREE A

TREE CTREE C

TREE C

TREE B

TREE A

TREE A -36" BOX LYONOTHAMNUS FLORIBUNDUS-
CATALINA IRONWOOD -EVERGREEN

TREE B -36" BOX PISTACHIA CHINENSIS 'KEITH DAVIES'
PISTACHE TREE -DECIDUOUS (FRUITLESS)

TREE C -36" BOX LAURUS 'SARATOGA' -
SARATOGA LAUREL (EVEGREEN TREE)

TREE REPLACEMENT PLAN
L-1

OF           SHEETS

JOB NO.

SHEET

CHECKED

DATE

SCALE

DRAWN
MY

MY

2/6/24

3/32"=1'-0"

xxx

TR
E

E
 R

E
P

LA
C

E
M

E
N

T 
P

LA
N

L
A

N
D

SC
A

PE
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
M

A
R

A
 Y

O
U

N
G

(6
50

) 
32

7-
26

44

73
6 

P
A

R
TR

ID
G

E
 A

V
E

N
U

E
M

E
N

LO
 P

A
R

K
, C

A
  9

40
25

Z
A

D
E

H
 &

 S
A

N
G

E
LA

JI
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
C

E

EXP 11/30/25

6/3/24 PARTRIDGE AVENUE

SCALE
3/32"=1'-0"

6/3/241 MY

1

1

A42



1355 El Camin Real, Unit 527
Redwood City, CA, 94063

650-387-9272

736 Partridge Ave
Menlo Park

Owner
Maryam Sangelaji &

Ali Zadeh

ADDRESS

Zadeh & Sangelaji
 Residence
NEW SINGLE FAMILY

RESIDENCE+ATTACCHED ADU

SIGNED BY

DRAWN BY
Ardalan Djalali

Ardalan Djalali

APN: XXX

All designs, drawings, and
specifications contained herein
are the exclusive property of
Ardalan Djalali. Unauthorized use
or reproduction in whole or in
part is strictly prohibited, and
legal action will be taken to
protect the intellectual property

rights of Ardalan Djalali.

RE
V

IS
IO

N

DATE DESCRIPTION 

SHEET TITLE

ARBORIST
REPORT

AR-1

A43



1355 El Camin Real, Unit 527
Redwood City, CA, 94063

650-387-9272

736 Partridge Ave
Menlo Park

Owner
Maryam Sangelaji &

Ali Zadeh

ADDRESS

Zadeh & Sangelaji
 Residence
NEW SINGLE FAMILY

RESIDENCE+ATTACCHED ADU

SIGNED BY

DRAWN BY
Ardalan Djalali

Ardalan Djalali

APN: XXX

All designs, drawings, and
specifications contained herein
are the exclusive property of
Ardalan Djalali. Unauthorized use
or reproduction in whole or in
part is strictly prohibited, and
legal action will be taken to
protect the intellectual property

rights of Ardalan Djalali.

RE
V

IS
IO

N

DATE DESCRIPTION 

SHEET TITLE

ARBORIST
REPORT

AR-2

A44



1355 El Camin Real, Unit 527
Redwood City, CA, 94063

650-387-9272

736 Partridge Ave
Menlo Park

Owner
Maryam Sangelaji &

Ali Zadeh

ADDRESS

Zadeh & Sangelaji
 Residence
NEW SINGLE FAMILY

RESIDENCE+ATTACCHED ADU

SIGNED BY

DRAWN BY
Ardalan Djalali

Ardalan Djalali

APN: XXX

All designs, drawings, and
specifications contained herein
are the exclusive property of
Ardalan Djalali. Unauthorized use
or reproduction in whole or in
part is strictly prohibited, and
legal action will be taken to
protect the intellectual property

rights of Ardalan Djalali.

RE
V

IS
IO

N

DATE DESCRIPTION 

SHEET TITLE

ARBORIST
REPORT

AR-3

A45



1355 El Camin Real, Unit 527
Redwood City, CA, 94063

650-387-9272

736 Partridge Ave
Menlo Park

Owner
Maryam Sangelaji &

Ali Zadeh

ADDRESS

Zadeh & Sangelaji
 Residence
NEW SINGLE FAMILY

RESIDENCE+ATTACCHED ADU

SIGNED BY

DRAWN BY
Ardalan Djalali

Ardalan Djalali

APN: XXX

All designs, drawings, and
specifications contained herein
are the exclusive property of
Ardalan Djalali. Unauthorized use
or reproduction in whole or in
part is strictly prohibited, and
legal action will be taken to
protect the intellectual property

rights of Ardalan Djalali.

RE
V

IS
IO

N

DATE DESCRIPTION 

SHEET TITLE

ARBORIST
REPORT

AR-4

A46



1355 El Camin Real, Unit 527
Redwood City, CA, 94063

650-387-9272

736 Partridge Ave
Menlo Park

Owner
Maryam Sangelaji &

Ali Zadeh

ADDRESS

Zadeh & Sangelaji
 Residence
NEW SINGLE FAMILY

RESIDENCE+ATTACCHED ADU

SIGNED BY

DRAWN BY
Ardalan Djalali

Ardalan Djalali

APN: XXX

All designs, drawings, and
specifications contained herein
are the exclusive property of
Ardalan Djalali. Unauthorized use
or reproduction in whole or in
part is strictly prohibited, and
legal action will be taken to
protect the intellectual property

rights of Ardalan Djalali.

RE
V

IS
IO

N

DATE DESCRIPTION 

SHEET TITLE

ARBORIST
REPORT

AR-5

A47



Page 1 of 2 

1355 El Camino Real, Unit 527 
Redwood City, CA 94063 

Ph: (650) 387-9272 
Email: ardalan@adarchitectes.com 

To: City of Menlo Park, Planning Department 

Subject: Proposal for Demolition of Existing Duplex and Construction of two single family 
residence at 736/734 Partridge Ave 

Dear Members of the City of Menlo Park Planning Department, 

I hope this letter finds you well. 
I am writing to present a project proposal for the demolition of an existing 2,112 square foot one-
story duplex and the subsequent construction of two thoughtfully designed single-family 
residences on a spacious 9,392 square foot lot located at 736/734 partridge Ave. The intent of 
this endeavor is to enhance the architectural landscape of our beloved neighborhood. 

The front residence, a charming two-story dwelling, will boast a generous living area of 
square feet, comprising 4 bedrooms and 3.5 bathrooms. In addition, a detached garage with 
an area of 217.8 square feet will grace the property. The total square footage of the front 
residence, including an attached ADU of 774.9 square feet and the detached garage, will 
amount to

Adjacent to its counterpart, the rear residence will stand as a two-story structure with a living 
area of  square feet, housing 3 bedrooms and 2.5 bathrooms. An attached garage of 

square feet will accompany this residence, along with an attached ADU spanning 
 square feet. The total square footage for the rear including an attached ADU and the 

attached garage will amount to 2,441.2 square feet. 

Presidential shingle roofing in an autumn blend hue will crown both structures, embodying a 
timeless aesthetic that not only complements the classic charm of our neighborhood but 
also satisfies our commitment to a cohesive design. The exterior, adorned in painted stucco, 
exudes an understated elegance, while strategically placed feature walls covered in a 
blend of blond russet and cool gray stone add a touch of sophistication to the overall 
design. This cohesive approach extends to our choice of dark bronze windows, seamlessly 
blending into the aesthetic, ensuring a harmonious and visually pleasing integration of all 
design elements. 

Our team has meticulously considered every detail to ensure that this project seamlessly integrates into 
the fabric of the neighborhood. The selected colors and materials aim to blend seamlessly with the 
charming two-story single-family houses that define our neighborhood's character.

Ardalan Djalali 

795.4
226.3

2,628.7 square feet.

1,636.0

EXHIBIT B

A48

16503
Text Box
1,419.5



Page 2 of 2  

We believe that this thoughtful approach will contribute to the enhancement of the local 
architectural aesthetic while providing residents with modern, comfortable homes that 
respect and celebrate the rich history of Allied Arts. 
 
We understand the importance of preserving the unique character of our neighborhood, 
and we are committed to working closely with the City of Menlo Park and its residents 
throughout every phase of this project. As a part of our commitment, we will provide 
comprehensive neighbor outreach about our project with our resubmittal to the planning 
department. This outreach will include informational sessions and an open line of 
communication to address any concerns or questions from the community. 

 
Thank you for considering our proposal. We look forward to the opportunity to contribute to 
the continued beauty and vitality of the Allied Arts neighborhood. If you have any questions 
or require additional information, please do not hesitate to contact us. 

 
 
 
Ardalan Djalali 

 
1355 El Camino Real, Unit 527, Redwood City, CA, 94063 
(650) 387 9272 
ardalan@adarchitectes.com 

A49



BO FIRESTONE TREES & GARDENS

BUSARA FIRESTONE, CERTIFIED ARBORIST #WE-8525A

2150 LACEY DR., MILPITAS, CA 95035

E:  BUSARA@BOFIRESTONE.COM  C: (408) 497-7158

WWW.BOFIRESTONE.COM

BO FIRESTONE TREES 

BUSARA FIRESTONE, CERTIFIED 

2150 LACEY DR., MILPIT

E:  BUSARA@BOFIRESTONE.CO

WWW.BOFIRESTO

A R B O R I S T  R E P O R T
T R E E  P R O T E C T I O N  P L A N

R E V I S E D  J A N U A R Y  3 1 ,  2 0 2 4

P R E P A R E D  F O R :  A L I  Z A D E H

S I T E  A D D R E S S :
7 3 6  P A R T R I D G E  A V E . • M E N L O  P A R K ,  C A  9 4 0 2 5

EXHIBIT C

A50



 

PREPARED BY:  BUSARA FIRESTONE 

ISA-CERTIFIED ARBORIST #WE-8525A 

WWW.BOFIRESTONE.COM 

 

A51



736 Partridge Ave. • Zadeh Residence • rev. 01/31/24 

ARBORIST REPORT 

Page i 
 

PREPARED BY:  BUSARA FIRESTONE 

ISA-CERTIFIED ARBORIST #WE-8525A 

WWW.BOFIRESTONE.COM 

Contents 
Introduction .................................................................................................................................... 1 

ARBORIST ASSIGNMENT .............................................................................................................. 1 

USES OF THIS REPORT ................................................................................................................. 1 

Limitations ................................................................................................................................... 2 

City Tree Protection Requirements ................................................................................................ 3 

Heritage Tree Definition .............................................................................................................. 3 

Construction-Related Tree Removals .......................................................................................... 3 

Violation Penalties ....................................................................................................................... 3 

Impacts on Protected Trees ............................................................................................................ 4 

SITE DESCRIPTION........................................................................................................................ 4 

TREE INVENTORY ......................................................................................................................... 4 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION ................................................................................................................ 5 

HOW CONSTRUCTION CAN DAMAGE TREES ............................................................................... 5 

Damage to Roots ..................................................................................................................... 5 

Mechanical Injury .................................................................................................................... 6 

IMPACTS TO HERITAGE TREES ..................................................................................................... 7 

SUMMARY ............................................................................................................................... 7 

TREE REMOVALS ..................................................................................................................... 7 

IMPACTS TO NEIGHBORING AND HERITAGE TREES ............................................................... 8 

Tree Protection Recommendations ................................................................................................ 9 

PRE-CONSTRUCTION ................................................................................................................... 9 

Establish Tree Protection Zones (TPZ) .................................................................................... 9 

Preventing Root Damage ...................................................................................................... 11 

Pruning Branches .................................................................................................................. 12 

Arborist Inspection ................................................................................................................ 12 

A52



736 Partridge Ave. • Zadeh Residence • rev. 01/31/24 

ARBORIST REPORT 

Page ii 
 

 

PREPARED BY:  BUSARA FIRESTONE 

ISA-CERTIFIED ARBORIST #WE-8525A 

WWW.BOFIRESTONE.COM 

DURING CONSTRUCTION ........................................................................................................... 12 

Special Tree Protection Measures – Tree #3H (oak) ............................................................ 12 

Root Pruning ......................................................................................................................... 13 

Irrigation................................................................................................................................ 14 

Project Arborist Supervision ................................................................................................. 14 

POST-CONSTRUCTION ............................................................................................................... 14 

Continued Tree Care ............................................................................................................. 14 

Post-Construction Monitoring .............................................................................................. 15 

City Arborist Inspection ........................................................................................................ 15 

Conclusion ..................................................................................................................................... 16 

Supporting Information ................................................................................................................ 17 

GLOSSARY .................................................................................................................................. 17 

BIBLIOGRAPHY ........................................................................................................................... 19 

    CERTIFICATE OF APPRAISAL.………………….………..…………………………………………………….….………….20 

    TRUNK WRAP SPECIFICATION……………………………………………………………………………………………….21 

    TREE PROTECTION FENCING SIGNAGE.…………………………………………………………………………………22 

    TREE INVENTORY (TABLE).…………………….………..…………………………………………………….….………….24 

    TREE PROTECTION PLAN MAP………………………………………………………………………………………………25 

 

 

A53



736 Partridge Ave. • Zadeh Residence • rev. 01/31/24 

ARBORIST REPORT 

Page 1 of 25 
 

 

PREPARED BY:  BUSARA FIRESTONE 

ISA-CERTIFIED ARBORIST #WE-8525A 

WWW.BOFIRESTONE.COM 

Introduction 
 

ARBORIST ASSIGNMENT 

On June 21st, 2023, at the request of the architect, my team visited 736 Partridge Dr. in the role 
of Project Arborist.  The purpose was to perform the assessments and data collections as 
necessary to create an industry-standard Tree Protection Report for their project permit.  It was 
my understanding that the existing structures and pavement were to be removed.  A new two-
story home with detached ADU would be built.  The site would undergo landscaping 
improvements, including a new driveway, new walkways, and new patios.  The assessments in 
this report were based on review of the following: 

• Boundary and Topographic Survey T-1 by SMP Engineers (dated 06/04/2023) 
• Site Plan A1.0a by Ardalan Djalali (dated 01/26/2024)  

My inventory included a total of five (5) trees over six inches (6” DBH).  There were three (3) 
trees of Heritage size: two (2) coast live oak (Quercus agrifolia) and one (1) orange (Citrus x 
sinensis) on the neighbor’s property.  Two (2) trees on the property were requested for 
removal.  All other neighboring trees were sufficiently distant from the work (>10x DBH).    

 

USES OF THIS REPORT 

According to City Ordinance, any person who conducts grading, excavation, demolition, or 
construction activity on a property is to do so in a manner that does not threaten the health or 
viability or cause the removal of any Heritage Tree.  Any heritage tree to be retained protected 
by the City’s Municipal Code will require replacement according to its appraised value if it is 
damaged beyond repair as a result of construction.  Any work performed within an area 10 
times the diameter of the tree (i.e., the tree protection zone) requires the submittal of a tree 
protection plan for approval by the City before issuance of any permit for grading or 
construction. 

A54



736 Partridge Ave. • Zadeh Residence • rev. 01/31/24 

ARBORIST REPORT 

Page 2 of 25 
 

 

PREPARED BY:  BUSARA FIRESTONE 

ISA-CERTIFIED ARBORIST #WE-8525A 

WWW.BOFIRESTONE.COM 

This report was written by Busara Firestone, Project Arborist, to serve as a resource for the 
property owner, designer, and builder.  As needed, I have provided instructions for retaining, 
protecting, and working around trees during construction, as well as information on City 
requirements. The owner, contractor and architect are responsible for knowing the information 
included in this arborist report and adhering to the conditions provided. 

 

Limitations 

Trees assessed were limited to the scope of work identified in the assignment.  I have estimated 
the trunk diameters of trees with barriers to access or visibility (such as those on neighboring 
parcels or behind debris).  Although general structure and health were assessed, formal Tree 
Risk Assessments were not conducted unless specified.  Disease diagnostic work was not 
conducted unless specified.  All assessments were the result of ground-based, visual 
inspections.  No excavation or aerial inspections were performed.  Recommendations beyond 
those related to the proposed construction were not within the scope of work.  

My tree impact and preservation assessments were based on information provided in the plans 
I have reviewed to date, and conversations with the involved parties.  I assumed that the 
guidelines and setbacks recommended in this report would be followed.  Assessments, 
conclusions, and opinions shared in this report are not a guarantee of any specific outcome.  If 
additional information (such as engineering or landscape plans) is provided for my review, 
these assessments would be subject to change. 

 

 

 

 

 

A55



736 Partridge Ave. • Zadeh Residence • rev. 01/31/24 

ARBORIST REPORT 

Page 3 of 25 
 

 

PREPARED BY:  BUSARA FIRESTONE 

ISA-CERTIFIED ARBORIST #WE-8525A 

WWW.BOFIRESTONE.COM 

City Tree Protection Requirements 
 

Heritage Tree Definition 

A “Heritage Tree” is a tree that has protected status by the City of Menlo Park.  The City can 
classify trees with Heritage status for their remarkable size, age, or unique value.  However, in 
general, native oaks of 10 inches or more, and any tree having a trunk with a diameter of 15 
inches or more has Heritage status (measured at 54 inches above natural grade, or at the 
branching point for multi-trunk trees).   

 

Construction-Related Tree Removals 

According to the City of Menlo Park, applicants are required to submit a site plan with the 
Heritage Tree Removal Application Permit even if they have submitted a site plan to the City for 
a planning or building permit. The site plan facilitates the review by the City Arborist.  

For removals of two or more trees, applicants shall be required to submit a planting plan 
indicating the species, size, and location of the proposed replacement trees on a site plan. 
Heritage Tree Permits related to Construction will also be charged for City-retained arborist 
expenses. 

 

Violation Penalties 

Any person who violates the tree protection ordinance, including property owners, occupants, 
tree companies and gardeners, could be held liable for violation of the ordinance. The ordinance 
prohibits removal or pruning of over one-fourth of the tree, vandalizing, mutilating, destruction 
and unbalancing of a heritage tree without a permit.  

If a violation occurs during construction, the City may issue a stop-work order suspending and 
prohibiting further activity on the property until a mitigation plan has been approved, including 

A56



736 Partridge Ave. • Zadeh Residence • rev. 01/31/24 

ARBORIST REPORT 

Page 4 of 25 
 

 

PREPARED BY:  BUSARA FIRESTONE 

ISA-CERTIFIED ARBORIST #WE-8525A 

WWW.BOFIRESTONE.COM 

protection measures for remaining trees on the property.  Damage to Heritage trees must be 
reported to the Project Arborist or City Arborist within six (6) hours of damage.   

After receiving notice or observing damage during a requested inspection, the Project 
Arborist will issue a report to the client.  This applies to all trees identified for preservation 
including neighboring trees.  Documentation will include a description of the issue (extent of 
wounding, canopy loss or root loss), reassessment of impacts to the tree, and recommended 
remediation. 

Civil penalties may be assessed against any person who commits, allows or maintains a violation 
of any provision of the ordinance.  The fine will be an amount not to exceed $5,000 per violation, 
or an amount equivalent to the replacement value of the tree, whichever is higher. 

 

Impacts on Protected Trees 
 

SITE DESCRIPTION 

The property at 736 Partridge Ave. was a narrow rectangular lot.  The topography was not 
notable.  There was a house with detached garage on-site with a driveway on the right-hand 
side.  The tree stock was a mix of natives (oaks), ornamentals, fruit trees, and small weedy 
shrubs.  

 

TREE INVENTORY 

This tree preservation plan includes an attached inventory of all trees on the property 
regardless of species, that were at least 12 feet tall and 6-inch DBH. 

This inventory also includes as necessary, any neighboring Heritage Trees with work proposed 
within 10 times their diameter (DBH).  Any street trees within the public right-of-way were also 
included, regardless of size, as required by the City.   

A57



736 Partridge Ave. • Zadeh Residence • rev. 01/31/24 

ARBORIST REPORT 

Page 5 of 25 
 

 

PREPARED BY:  BUSARA FIRESTONE 

ISA-CERTIFIED ARBORIST #WE-8525A 

WWW.BOFIRESTONE.COM 

The Inventory includes each tree’s number (as shown on the TPZ map), measurements, 
condition, level of impact (due to proximity to work), tolerance to construction, and overall 
suitability for retainment.  The inventory also includes the appraised value of each tree using 
the Trunk Formula Technique (10th Edition). 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

After review of proposed plan set, it was my understanding that the existing structures and 
pavement were to be removed.  A new two-story home with detached ADU would be built.  
The site would undergo landscaping improvements, including a new driveway, new walkways, 
and new patios.  The new driveway would require excavation of five inches (5”) into existing 
grade.  It is our understanding from conversations with the design team that the total depth of 
driveway materials is 11 inches.  This assumes six inches (6”) are above grade to replace the 
original asphalt.  Total excavation depth into existing grade would be five inches (5").  In 
response to comments, the driveway was also adjusted to create a 7.5-inch bump-out for the 
root flare of Tree #3H.  Please see attached Tree Protection Plan Map. 

 

HOW CONSTRUCTION CAN DAMAGE TREES 

Damage to Roots 

Where are the Roots? 

The most common types of injury to trees that occur during property improvements are related 
to root cutting or damage.  Tree roots extend farther out than people realize, and the majority 
are located within the upper 24 inches of soil.  The thickest roots are found close to the trunk, 
and taper and branch into ropey roots.  These ropey roots taper and branch into an intricate 
system of fine fibrous roots, which are connected to an even finer system of fungal filaments. 
This vast below-ground network is tasked with absorbing water and nutrients, as well as 
anchoring the tree in the ground, storage, and communication.   

A58



736 Partridge Ave. • Zadeh Residence • rev. 01/31/24 

ARBORIST REPORT 

Page 6 of 25 
 

 

PREPARED BY:  BUSARA FIRESTONE 

ISA-CERTIFIED ARBORIST #WE-8525A 

WWW.BOFIRESTONE.COM 

Damage from Excavation  

Any type of excavation will impact adjacent trees by severing roots and thus cutting off the 
attached network.  Severing large roots, or trenching across the root plate, destroys large 
networks.  Even work that appears to be far from a tree can impact the fibrous root system.  
Placing impervious surfaces over the ground, or installing below ground structures, such as a 
pool, or basement wall, will remove rooting area permanently from a site.   

Damage from Fill 

Adding fill can smother roots, making it difficult for them to access air and water.  The roots 
and other soil life need time to colonize the new upper layers of soil.   

Changes to Drainage and Available Water 

Changes to the hydrology of the site, caused for instance by new septic fields, changes to grade, 
and drainage systems, can also cause big changes in available water for trees.  Trees can die 
from lack of water or disease if their water supply dries up or gets much wetter than they are 
used to.   

Soil Compaction and Contamination 

In addition, compaction of soil, or contamination of soil with wash-water, paint, fuel, or other 
chemicals used in the building process, can cause damage to the rooting environment that can 
last many years.  Tree protection fencing creates a barrier to protect as many roots as possible 
from this damage, which can be caused by travelling vehicles, equipment storage, and other 
construction activities that may occur even outside the construction envelope. 

Mechanical Injury 

Injury from the impact of vehicles or equipment can occur to the root crown, trunk, and lower 
branches of a tree.  The bark protects a tree – creating a skin-like barrier from disease-causing 
organisms.  The stem tissues support the weight of the plant. They also conduct the flow of 
water, sugars, and other important compounds throughout the tree. When the bark and wood 
is injured, the structure and health of the tree is compromised. 

 

A59



736 Partridge Ave. • Zadeh Residence • rev. 01/31/24 

ARBORIST REPORT 

Page 7 of 25 
 

 

PREPARED BY:  BUSARA FIRESTONE 

ISA-CERTIFIED ARBORIST #WE-8525A 

WWW.BOFIRESTONE.COM 

IMPACTS TO HERITAGE TREES 

SUMMARY 

Three (3) Heritage Trees would be impacted by the project: two (2) coast live oak and one (1) 
orange.  One (1) magnolia (Magnolia grandiflora) Street tree would also be impacted.   Two (2) 
trees on the property were recommended for removal. 

My evaluation of the impacts of the proposed construction work for all affected trees was 
summarized in the Tree Inventory.  These included impacts of grading, excavation for utility 
installation, retaining walls, drainage or any other aspect of the project that could impact the 
service life of the tree.  Anticipated impacts to trees were summarized using a rating system of 
“severe,” “high,” “moderate,” “low,” or “very low.”  

General species tolerance to construction, and condition of the trees (health and structural 
integrity), was also noted on the Inventory.  These major factors, as well as tree age, soil 
characteristics, and species desirability, all factored into an individual tree’s suitability rating, as 
summarized on the Inventory.   Suitability of trees to be retained was rated as “high,” 
“moderate,” “low.”  Trees with low suitability would be appropriate candidates for removal.  
Please see Glossary for definitions of ratings.   

 

TREE REMOVALS 

Removal Justification for trees is as follows: 

• Tree #5 was not a Heritage Tree: 
o I recommended Tree #5 (crabapple, Malus sylvestris) for removal because it was 

within the footprint of the proposed patio.  It would not survive the project.  
 

• Tree #4H (26.5” coast live oak):  This tree was within the footprint of the proposed 
detached ADU.  We recommend a minimum setback of 15 feet from the ADU to 
preserve this tree.  It is our understanding that this is not feasible considering that the 
tree is well within the footprint of the planned ADU.  Therefore, removal of this tree 

A60



736 Partridge Ave. • Zadeh Residence • rev. 01/31/24 

ARBORIST REPORT 

Page 8 of 25 
 

 

PREPARED BY:  BUSARA FIRESTONE 

ISA-CERTIFIED ARBORIST #WE-8525A 

WWW.BOFIRESTONE.COM 

would be justified as per Menlo Park Administrative Guidelines section 13.24.050 
Clause a.5 “development.” 

 

Menlo Park Administrative Guidelines for Criterion 5: 
The following documentation may be required to support tree removal for economic 
development:  

o Schematic diagrams that demonstrate the feasibility/livability of alternative design(s) 
that preserve the tree, including utilizing zoning ordinance variances that would preserve 
the tree. 
 

o Documentation on the additional incremental construction cost attributable to an 
alternative that preserves the tree (i.e. construction cost of alternative design minus cost 
of original design) in relation to the appraised value of tree(s) and based on the most 
recent addition to the Guide for Plant Appraisal.  

The following guidance will be used to determine feasibility:  

o If the incremental cost of the tree preservation alternative is more than 140% of the 
appraised value of the tree, the cost will be presumed to be financially infeasible.  
 

o If the incremental cost of the tree preservation alternative is less than 110% of the 
appraised value of the tree, the cost will be presumed to be financially feasible.  

o If the incremental cost of the tree preservation alternative is between 110% and 140% of 
the appraised value of the tree, public works director or their designee will consider a 
range of factors, including the value of the improvements, the value of the tree, the 
location of the tree, the viability of replacement mitigation and other site conditions.  
 

o In calculating the incremental cost of the tree preservation alternative, only construction 
costs will be evaluated. No design fees or other soft costs will be considered.  

 

IMPACTS TO NEIGHBORING AND HERITAGE TREES 

• Tree #1 (3” magnolia, Street tree):  This street tree was approximately eight feet (8’) 
from any work and would not be expected to be impacted by the project (0% - 5% root 

A61



736 Partridge Ave. • Zadeh Residence • rev. 01/31/24 

ARBORIST REPORT 

Page 9 of 25 
 

 

PREPARED BY:  BUSARA FIRESTONE 

ISA-CERTIFIED ARBORIST #WE-8525A 

WWW.BOFIRESTONE.COM 

loss).  It would only need to be protected from material storage and movement 
throughout the site. 
 

• Tree #3H (41” neighboring coast live oak):  This tree, located on the property line, was 
in contact with the existing driveway to be removed, and within one foot (1’) of the 
proposed driveway.  Assuming special instructions are followed, estimated root loss is 
no more than 10%.  Please see “Special Tree Protection Measures” section of this 
report for guidelines on working within 6x DBH of this tree. 
 

• Tree #2H (16” neighboring orange):  This neighboring tree was approximately 9 feet (9’) 
from the existing and proposed driveway.  It would be anticipated to sustain 
“moderate” impacts from the proposed work (10% - 25% root loss). 
 

Tree Protection Recommendations 
 

PRE-CONSTRUCTION 

Establish Tree Protection Zones (TPZ) 

The Tree Protection Zone (TPZ) shall be a fenced-off area where work and material storage is 
not allowed.  They are established and inspected prior to the start of work.  This barrier 
protects the critical root zone and trunk from compaction, mechanical damage, and chemical 
spills.  The City requires that tree protection fencing be installed before any equipment comes 
on-site and inspected by the Project Arborist, who shall submit a verification letter to the City 
before issuance of permits.   

Tree protection fencing is required to remain in place throughout construction and may only 
be moved or removed with written authorization from the City Arborist.  The Project Arborist 
may authorize modification to the fencing when a copy of the written authorization is 
submitted to the City. 

A62



736 Partridge Ave. • Zadeh Residence • rev. 01/31/24 

ARBORIST REPORT 

Page 10 of 25 
 

 

PREPARED BY:  BUSARA FIRESTONE 

ISA-CERTIFIED ARBORIST #WE-8525A 

WWW.BOFIRESTONE.COM 

The following activities are prohibited inside the Tree Protection Zone.  DO NOT: 

• Place heavy machinery for excavation 
• Allow runoff or spillage of damaging materials 
• Store or stockpile materials, tools, or soil 
• Park or drive vehicles 
• Trench, dig, or otherwise excavate without first obtaining authorization from the City 

Arborist or Project Arborist 
• Change soil grade 
• Trench with a machine 
• Allow fires under and adjacent to trees 
• Discharge exhaust into foliage 
• Direct runoff towards trees 
• Cut, break, skin, or bruise roots, branches, or trunks without authorization from the City 

Arborist 
• Secure cable, chain, or rope to trees 
• Apply soil sterilant under pavement near existing trees 

 

Specific recommended protection for trees is as follows: 

• Tree #1 (3” magnolia, Street tree):  Establish standard TPZ fencing radius to five feet 
(5’), or to the greatest extent possible as limited by the street and sidewalk. 
 

• Tree #2H (16” neighboring orange):  Establish standard TPZ fencing radius to 15 feet, or 
to the greatest extent possible as limited by the driveway.  along the driveway.  Place 
fence posts into the ground along the existing hardscape. 
 

• Tree #3H (neighboring 41” oak):  I recommended TPZ Trunk Wrap as an alternative to 
protect this tree adjacent to the driveway where standard fencing would not be 
feasible.  Please see “Trunk Wrap Specifications” on the following page as well as 
attached diagram. 
 

A63



736 Partridge Ave. • Zadeh Residence • rev. 01/31/24 

ARBORIST REPORT 

Page 11 of 25 
 

 

PREPARED BY:  BUSARA FIRESTONE 

ISA-CERTIFIED ARBORIST #WE-8525A 

WWW.BOFIRESTONE.COM 

TPZ FENCING SPECIFICATIONS: 

1) Establish tree protection fencing radius by installing six (6)-foot tall chain link fencing 
mounted on eight (8)-foot tall, 1.5-inch diameter galvanized posts, driven 24 inches into 
the ground and spaced no more than 10 feet apart.  
 

2) Post signs on the fencing (in English and Spanish) printed on 11”x17” yellow-colored 
paper (signage attached at end of report) with Project Arborist’s contact information.  
Signage should be on each protection fence in a prominent location. 
 

3) Movable barriers of chain link fencing secured to cement blocks may be substituted for 
fixed fencing if the Project Arborist and City Arborist agree that the fencing will have to 
be moved to accommodate certain phases of construction. The builder may not move 
the fence without authorization from the Project Arborist or City Arborist. 

 

TRUNK WRAP SPECIFICATIONS: 

• Securely bind wooden slats at least 1-inch-thick around the trunk (preferably on a closed-
cell foam pad). Secure and wrap at least one layer of orange plastic construction fencing 
around the outside of the wooden slats for visibility;  

• DO NOT drive fasteners into the tree; 
• Install trunk protection immediately prior to work within the TPZ and remove protection 

from the tree(s) as soon as work moves outside the TPZ;  
• Protect major scaffold limbs as determined by the City Arborist or Project Arborist; and  
• If necessary, install wooden barriers at an angle so that the trunk flare and buttress 

roots are also protected.  
 
 

Preventing Root Damage 

Bare ground within the TPZ should have material applied over the ground to reduce soil 
compaction and retain soil moisture.  This may be done by applying a six to 12-inch layer of 
wood chip mulch to the area.  With this method, mulch in excess of four inches would have to 
be removed after work is completed.  As an alternative method that would not require mulch 

A64



736 Partridge Ave. • Zadeh Residence • rev. 01/31/24 

ARBORIST REPORT 

Page 12 of 25 
 

 

PREPARED BY:  BUSARA FIRESTONE 

ISA-CERTIFIED ARBORIST #WE-8525A 

WWW.BOFIRESTONE.COM 

removal, the contractor could place plywood (>3/4-inch-thick) or road mats over a four-inch 
layer of mulch.  Mulch should be spread manually so as not cause compaction or damage.   

 

Pruning Branches 

I recommend that trees be pruned only as necessary to provide minimum clearance for 
proposed structures and the passage of workers, vehicles, and machines, while maintaining a 
natural appearance.  Any large dead branches should be pruned out for the safety of people 
working on the site.   

Pruning should be specified in writing adhering to ANSI A300 Pruning Standards and performed 
according to Best Management Practices endorsed by the International Society of 
Arboriculture. Any pruning (trimming) of branches should be supervised by an ISA-certified 
arborist.   

Any property owner wanting to prune heritage tree more than one-fourth of the canopy 
and/or roots, must have permission from the City. 

 

Arborist Inspection 

The City requires that tree protection fencing be installed before any equipment comes on-
site and inspected by the Project Arborist, who shall submit a verification letter to the City 
before issuance of permits. Tree protection fencing to be inspected by City Arborist before 
demo and/or building permit issuance.   

 

DURING CONSTRUCTION 

Special Tree Protection Measures – Tree #3H (oak) 

1) Demolition of existing hardscape should be performed in a manner that avoids tearing 
roots:  Using the smallest effective machinery, break up pieces of the concrete and lift 

A65



736 Partridge Ave. • Zadeh Residence • rev. 01/31/24 

ARBORIST REPORT 

Page 13 of 25 
 

 

PREPARED BY:  BUSARA FIRESTONE 

ISA-CERTIFIED ARBORIST #WE-8525A 

WWW.BOFIRESTONE.COM 

pieces up and away from trees.  Cut roots embedded in paving rather than tearing them 
(see instructions on root cuts).   
 
 

2) Exploratory Trench – Construction of the Driveway (< 3X DBH) 
a. I recommend an exploratory trench to be dug by hand, before excavation begins, 

to expose roots along the tree-side of the driveway. Due to the proximity of the 
driveway to the tree, it is possible that large structural roots at the surface would 
make construction in this area unfeasible.  Therefore, I recommend an exploratory 
trench inspection be done before building.   During the planning phase is 
recommended to avoid last-minute plan changes.     
 

b. Excavation depth for installation of new pavement should be no more than five 
inches (5”) into existing soil grade within 20 feet of this tree.  Compaction of 
subgrade should be minimal. 
 

c. Builders may notice torn roots after digging or trenching.  If this happens, or if roots 
must be cut for any reason, please see section titled “Root Pruning.” 

 

Root Pruning 

As required by the City of Menlo Park: 
• To avoid injury to tree roots, only excavate carefully by hand, compressed air, or high-

pressure water within the dripline of trees. 
• When the Contractor encounters roots smaller than 2-inches, hand-trim the wall of the 

trench adjacent to the trees to make even, clean cuts through the roots.Cleanly cut all 
damaged and torn roots to reduce the incidence of decay. 

• Fill trenches within 24 hours.  When it is infeasible to fill trenches within 24 hours, shade 
the side of the trench adjacent to the trees with four layers of dampened, untreated 
burlap.  Wet burlap as frequently as necessary to maintain moisture.   

• When the Contractor encounters roots 2 inches or larger, report immediately to the 
Project Arborist.  The Project Arborist will decide whether the Contractor may cut roots 2 

A66



736 Partridge Ave. • Zadeh Residence • rev. 01/31/24 

ARBORIST REPORT 

Page 14 of 25 
 

 

PREPARED BY:  BUSARA FIRESTONE 

ISA-CERTIFIED ARBORIST #WE-8525A 

WWW.BOFIRESTONE.COM 

inches or larger.  If a root is retained, excavate by hand or with compressed air under the 
root.  Protect preserved roots with dampened burlap.  

Irrigation 

Water moderately and highly impacted trees during the construction phase.  As a rule of 
thumb, provide one to two inches per month.  Water slowly so that it penetrates 18 inches into 
the soil, to the depth of tree roots.  Do not water native oaks during the warm dry season (June 
– September) as this activates oak root fungus.  Instead, make sure that the soil is sufficiently 
insulated with mulch (where possible).  Remember that unsevered tree roots typically extend 
three to five times the distance of the canopy.   

 

Project Arborist Supervision 

I recommend the Project Arborist meet with the builder on-site:  

• Soon after excavation 
• During any root pruning 
• As requested by the property owner or builder to document tree condition and on-going 

compliance with tree protection plan (required every 4 weeks by the City).   

Any time development-related work is recommended to be supervised by a Project Arborist, 
a follow-up letter shall be provided, documenting the mitigation has been completed to 
specification.  

 

POST-CONSTRUCTION 

Ensure any mitigation measures to ensure long-term survival including but not limited to: 

Continued Tree Care 

Provide adequate and appropriate irrigation.  As a rule of thumb, provide 1- 2 inches of 
water per month.  Water slowly so that it penetrates 18 inches into the soil, to the depth of the 

A67



736 Partridge Ave. • Zadeh Residence • rev. 01/31/24 

ARBORIST REPORT 

Page 15 of 25 
 

 

PREPARED BY:  BUSARA FIRESTONE 

ISA-CERTIFIED ARBORIST #WE-8525A 

WWW.BOFIRESTONE.COM 

tree roots.  Native oaks usually should not be provided supplemental water during the warm, 
dry season (June – September) as this activates oak root fungus.  Therefore, native oaks should 
only be watered October – May when rain has been scarce.   

Mulch insulates the soil, reduces weeds, reduces compaction, and promotes myriad benefits 
to soil life and tree health.  Apply four inches of wood chips (or other mulch) to the surface of 
the soil around trees, extending at least to the dripline when possible.  Do not pile mulch 
against the trunk. 

Do not fertilize unless a specific nutrient deficiency has been identified and a specific plan 
prescribed by the project arborist (or a consulting arborist). 

 

Post-Construction Monitoring 

Monitor trees for changes in condition.  Check trees at least once per month for the first year 
post-construction.  Expert monitoring should be done at least every 6 months or if trees show 
signs of stress.  Signs of stress include unseasonably sparse canopy, leaf drop, early fall color, 
browning of needles, and shoot die-back.  Stressed trees are also more vulnerable to certain 
disease and pest infestations.  Call the Project Arborist, or a consulting arborist if these, or 
other concerning changes occur in tree health. 

 

City Arborist Inspection 

A final inspection by the City Arborist is required at the end of the project.  This is to be done 
before Tree Protection Fencing is taken down.  Replacement trees should be planted by this 
time as well. 

 

 

 

A68



736 Partridge Ave. • Zadeh Residence • rev. 01/31/24

ARBORIST REPORT

Page 16 of 25

PREPARED BY:  BUSARA FIRESTONE

ISA-CERTIFIED ARBORIST #WE-8525A 

WWW.BOFIRESTONE.COM

Conclusion

The home building project planned at 736 Partridge Ave. appeared to be a valuable upgrade to 
the property.  If any of the property owners, project team, or City reviewers have questions on 
this report, or require Project Arborist supervision or technical support, please do not hesitate 
to contact me at (408) 497-7158 or busara@bofirestone.com. 

Signed,

Busara (Bo) Firestone | ISA Certified Arborist WE-#8525A | ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist 
RCA #758 | ISA Qualified Tree Risk Assessor | ASCA Tree and Plant Appraisal Qualification | Member – 
American Society of Consulting Arborists | Wildlife-Trained Arborist

A69



736 Partridge Ave. • Zadeh Residence • rev. 01/31/24 

ARBORIST REPORT 

Page 17 of 25 
 

 

PREPARED BY:  BUSARA FIRESTONE 

ISA-CERTIFIED ARBORIST #WE-8525A 

WWW.BOFIRESTONE.COM 

Supporting Information 
 

GLOSSARY 
Terms appear in the order they appear from left to right on the inventory column headings.   

DBH / DSH:  Diameter at 4.5' above grade.   Trees which split into multiple stems at 4.5’ are 
measured at the narrowest point below 4.5’. 

Mathematic DBH / DSH:  diameter of multitrunked tree, mathematically derived from the 
combined area of all trunks. 

SPREAD:  Diameter of canopy between farthest branch tips 

TREE STATUS:  A “Heritage Tree” is a tree that has protected status by the City of Menlo Park.  The 
City can classify trees with Heritage status for their remarkable size, age, or unique value.  However, 
in general, native oaks of 10 inches or more, and any tree having a trunk with a diameter of 15 
inches or more has Heritage status (measured at 54 inches above natural grade, or at the branching 
point for multi-trunk trees).   

CONDITION-Ground based visual assessment of structural and physiological well-being:  

"Excellent" = 81 - 100%; Good health and structure with significant size, location or quality. 

"Good" = 61-80%; Normal vigor, full canopy, no observable significant structural defects, many 
years of service life remaining. 

"Fair" = 41-60%; Reduced vigor, significant structural defect(s), and/or other significant signs of 
stress 

"Poor" = 21- 40%; In potentially irreversible decline, structure and aesthetics severely 
compromised 

"Very Poor" = 6-20%; Nearly dead, or high risk of failure, negative contribution to the landscape  

"Dead/Unstable" = 0 - 5%; No live canopy/buds or failure imminent 

IDEAL TPZ RADIUS:  Recommended tree protection radius to ensure healthy, sound trees. Based on 
species tolerance, age, and size (total combined stem area) as per industry best practice standards. 

A70



736 Partridge Ave. • Zadeh Residence • rev. 01/31/24 

ARBORIST REPORT 

Page 18 of 25 
 

 

PREPARED BY:  BUSARA FIRESTONE 

ISA-CERTIFIED ARBORIST #WE-8525A 

WWW.BOFIRESTONE.COM 

Compromising the radius in a specific area may be acceptable as per arborist approval. 
Municipalities in our region simplify this nuanced process by using the distance to the dripline, 10X 
DBH, or 6X DBH as acceptable setbacks from construction. 

AGE:  Relative to tree lifespan; “Young” <1/3; “Mature" 1/3 - 2/3;  "Overmature" >2/3 

IMPACT:  Anticipated impact to an individual tree including…… 

SEVERE - In direct conflict, removal necessary if plans proceed (distance to root cuts/fill 
within 3X DBH or root loss of > 30% anticipated). 

HIGH – Work planned within 6X DBH and/or anticipated root loss of 20% – 30%.  Redesign 
to reduce impact should be explored and may be required by municipal reviewer.  
Retainment may be possible with monitoring or alternative building methods.  Health and 
structure may worsen even if conditions for retainment are met.  

MODERATE - Ideal TPZ encroached upon in limited areas.  No work or very limited work 
within 6X TPZ.  Anticipated root loss of 10% - 25%.  Special building guidelines may be 
provided by Project Arborist.  Although some symptoms of stress are possible, tree is not 
likely to decline due to construction related activities.  

LOW - Anticipated root loss of less than 10%.  Minor or no encroachment on ideal TPZ.  
Longevity uncompromised with standard protection. 

VERY LOW - Ideal TPZ well exceeded.  Potential impact only by ingress/egress.  Anticipated 
root loss of 0% - 5%.  Longevity uncompromised. 

NONE - No anticipated impact to roots, soil environment, or above-ground parts. 

TOLERANCE:  General species tolerance to construction (HIGH, MODERATE, or LOW) as given in 
Managing Trees During Construction, Second Edition, by International Society of Arboriculture   

SUITABILITY ASSESSMENT:  An individual tree's suitability for preservation considering impacts, 
condition, maturity, species tolerance, site characteristics, and species desirability. (HIGH, 
MODERATE, or LOW) 

APPRAISAL RESULT:  The reproduction cost of tree replacement as calculated by the Trunk Formula 
Technique.  

 

A71



736 Partridge Ave. • Zadeh Residence • rev. 01/31/24 

ARBORIST REPORT 

Page 19 of 25 

PREPARED BY:  BUSARA FIRESTONE 

ISA-CERTIFIED ARBORIST #WE-8525A 

WWW.BOFIRESTONE.COM 

BIBLIOGRAPHY 

Fite, Kelby, and E. Thomas Smiley.  Managing trees during construction, second edition. 

Champaign, IL:  International Society of Arboriculture, 2016.  Print. 

ISA.  Guide for Plant Appraisal, 10th edition, second printing.  Atlanta, GA: International Society 
of Arboriculture, 2019.  Print. 

ISA. Species Classification and Group Assignment, 2004 Western Chapter Regional Supplement. 

Western Chapter ISA. 

Smiley, E. Thomas, Nelda Matheny, and Sharon Lilly.  Best Management Practices:  Tree Risk 

Assessment:  International Society of Arboriculture, 2011.  Print. 

A72



pg.

BO FIRESTONE TREES & GARDENS

2150 LACEY DR., MILPITAS, CA 95035

E:  BUSARA@BOFIRESTONE.COM  C: (408) 497-7158

WWW.BOFIRESTONE.COM

  BUSARA FIRESTONE    KAITLYN MEYER     ON STAFF
#WE-8525B               #WE-14992A

CERTIFICATE OF APPRAISAL

I, Busara Rea Firestone, CERTIFY to the best of my knowledge and belief:

1. That the statements of fact contained in this plant appraisal are true and correct.

2. That the appraisal analysis, opinions, and conclusion are limited only by the reported assumption

and limiting conditions, and that they are my personal, unbiased professional analysis, opinions, and

conclusions.

3. That I have no present or prospective interest in the plants that are the subject of this appraisal, and

that I have no personal interest or bias with respect to the parties involved.

4. That my compensation is not contingent upon a predetermined value or direction in value that

favors the cause of the client, the amount of the value estimate, the attainment of a stipulated

result, or the occurrence of a subsequent event.

5. That my analysis, opinions, and conclusions are developed, and this appraisal has been prepared, in

conformity with the Guide for Plant Appraisal (10th edition, 2000) authored by the Council of Tree

and Landscape Appraisers.

6. That the methods found in this appraisal are based on a request to determine the value of the plants

considering reasonable factors of plant appraisal.

7. That my appraisal is based on the information known to me at this time.  If more information is

disclosed, I may have further opinions.

Signed,

Busara (Bo) Firestone

ISA Board-Certified Master Arborist #WE-8525B 

01/31/2024

A73



Created by Bo Firestone 2018 

TPZ II  – Alternative Method of Tree Protection 

May be used to protect trunk from damage during construction activities when standard TPZ fencing is 
not practical.  Install prior to construction activities.  Adjust to allow for diameter growth as needed. 

Step 1:  Wrap trunk with foam pad 
OR at least five layers of orange 
plastic fencing. 

Step 2:  Install dimensional lumber in 
a layer around trunk to create barrier. 
Angle to protect root flare. 

Step 3:  Secure planks with straps, 
chicken wire, or no less than four 
layers of orange plastic fencing. 

DO NOT DRIVE FASTENERS INTO TREE 

pg. 21

A74



WARNING TREE PROTECTION AREA

ONLY AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL MAY ENTER THIS AREA

No excavation, trenching, material storage, cleaning, equipment access, or dumping is allowed 
behind this fence. 

Do not remove or relocate this fence without approval from the project arborist. This fencing 
must remain in its approved location throughout demolition and construction. 

Project Arborist contact information:
Name:
Business:
Phone number:

BR )iUeVtRQe
BR )iUeVtRQe TUeeV 	 *DUdeQV

������������

pg. 22

A75



ADVERTENCIA: ÁREA DE PROTECCIÓN DE ÁRBOLES

SÓLO EL PERSONAL AUTORIZADO PUEDE INGRESAR A ESTA ÁREA

No se permite la excavación, zanjas, almacenamiento de materiales, limpieza, acceso de 
equipos, o vertido de residuos detrás de esta cerca.

No retire ni reubique esta cerca sin la aprobación del arborista del proyecto. Esta cerca debe 
permanecer en su ubicación aprobada durante todo el proceso de demolición y construcción.  

Información de contacto del arborista de este proyecto:

Nombre:
Empresa:
Número de teléfono:

BR )iUeVtRQe
BR )iUeVtRQe TUeeV 	 *DUdeQV

������������

pg. 23

A76



pg. 24

Zadeh Residence rev. 1/31/24

#
Heritage 

(H)
Common Name Botanical Name

Protected 
Status

DBH
(inches)

 math. 
DBH

(inches)

Height 
(feet)

Spread
(feet)

Condition
Health, Structure, Form 

notes
Age

Species 
Tolerance

6X DSH*
(feet)

Est. Root 
Loss**

TPZ mult. 
Factor

Ideal TPZ 
Radius (ft) 

Impact 
Level  ***

Suitability
Rating

Removal 
Status

Appraisal 
Result

1 Southern Magnolia Magnolia grandiflora STREET 3 3 15 10 GOOD (75%)
full green canopy, 

pleasing form, good 
vigor, ivy

YOUNG MODERATE 2 0% - 5% 8 2 VERY LOW HIGH PRESERVE $470

2 H Orange Citrus x sinensis HERITAGE est. 10, 
(2) 9

16 25 25 GOOD (75%)
full green canopy, 

pleasing form, good 
vigor, ivy

MATURE MODERATE 8 10% - 25% 12 16 MODERATE HIGH PRESERVE $10,600

3 H Coast Live Oak Quercus agrifolia HERITAGE 41 41 60 60 GOOD (75%)

full green canopy, 
pleasing form, good 
vigor, growing into 

pavement

OVERMATURE HIGH 21 <10% 12 41 LOW HIGH PRESERVE $26,100

4 H Coast Live Oak Quercus agrifolia HERITAGE 26.5 26.5 45 35 FAIR (50%)
30° lean, signs of insect 
damage on trunk, good 

vigor
MATURE HIGH 13 > 30% 8 18 SEVERE LOW REMOVE (X) $13,100

5 Crabapple Malus sylvestris (not heritage) 10 10 25 25 GOOD (75%) good vigor, full green 
canopy, pleasing form

MATURE MODERATE 5 > 30% 12 10 SEVERE LOW REMOVE (X) $4,930

KEY:

# Neighboring / City Street Tree

Removal Request

SEE GLOSSARY FOR DEFINITION OF TERMS

Appraisal calculations summary available apon request.

TREE INVENTORY - 736 Partridge Ave, Menlo Park, CA, 94025                     

TREE IMPACT ASSESSMENT

* 6X DBH is recongnized by tree care industry best practices as the distance from trunkface to a cut 
across the root plate that would result in a loss of approximately 25% of the root mass.  Cuts closer 
than this may result in tree decline or instability. 
**Based on approximate distance to excavation and extent of excavation (as shown on plans). 
**Impact level assumming all basic and special tree protection measures are followed.  

Prepared by Busara Firestone
ISA Certified Arborist #WE-8525AA77



G
M

HE
AT

PU
M

P
HE

AT
PU

M
P

HE
AT

PU
M

P
HE

AT
PU

M
P

4'-
0"

AD
U

RE
Q

UI
RE

D
RE

AR
SE

TB
A

16
'-1

1"
AD

U 
PR

O
PO

SE
D 

SE
TB

AC
K

5'-0" REQUIRED SIDE SETBACK
4'-0" ADU REQUIRED SIDE SETBACK

4'-6"ADU PROPOSED SIDE SETBACK

5'-0" MAIN RESIDENCE REQUIRED SIDE SETBACK

20
'-0

" R
EQ

UI
RE

D 
RE

AR
 M

AI
N 

RE
SID

EN
C

E 
SE

TB
AC

K
20

'-2
" P

RO
PO

SE
D 

M
AI

N 
RE

SID
EN

C
E 

RE
AR

 S
ET

BA
C

K

21
'-9

 1
/2

"
10

'-7
"

15
'-8

"

4'-0" ADU REQUIRED SIDE SETBACK

5'-0" MAIN RESIDENCE REQUIRED SIDE SETBACK

12'-6" DRIVE WAY

20
'-0

" R
EA

C
Q

UI
RE

D/
PR

O
PO

SE
D 

SE
TB

AC
K

3'-8" EAVE TO P.L.

3'-2" EAVE TO P.L.

3'-0" EAVE TO P.L.

25
'-0

" S
EC

O
ND

 F
LO

O
R 

SE
TB

AC
K

20
'-1

1"
 S

EC
O

ND
 F

LO
O

R 
RE

AR
 S

ET
BA

C
K

EM

12
.0

9f
t

111666

20
'-1

1

7 1/2"

10'-0"

G
M

EM

SITE PLAN 3/32" 1feet
2 4 8 121

(N) +/-68.92'
T.O.S. HOUSE (1)

(N) +/-68.90'
T.O.S. ADU

(N) +/-68.50'
T.O.S. GARAGE (1)

(N) +/-69.67'
T.O.S.ADU (2)

(N) +/-69.67'
T.O.S.HOUSE (2)

(N) +/-68.50'
T.O.S.GARAGE (2)

(N) +/-69.58'
T.O.S. PATIO

(N) +/-68.83'
T.O.S. PATIO

(N) +/-68.83'
T.O.S. PORCH

(N) +/-69.58'
T.O.S. PORCH

1

18 18

WM WM

3

1

5

6

7

9

9

9

9

11

11

11

13

14

9

15

15

15

15

15
15

11

16 15

17

17

2

22

2

7

1

3H

2H

1. EXISTING PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY--ANY CONSTRUCTION WITHIN THE CITY
RIGHT-OF-WAY MUST HAVE AN APPROVED "PERMIT FOR CONSTRUCTION IN
THE PUBLIC STREET" PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF THIS WORK. THE
PERFORMANCE OF THIS WORK IS NOT AUTHORIZED BY THE BUILDING PERMIT
ISSUANCE BUT SHOWN ON THE BUILDING PERMIT FOR INFORMATION ONLY

2. APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF NEIGHBORING STRUCTURE
3. (N) WATER METER--CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE (N) METER WITH LOCAL

WATER COMPANY IF REQUIRED BY INCREASED FIXTURE LOAD
4. (N) GAS METER LOCATION--INSTALL TWO 2" DIAMETER x 30" TALL STEEL PIPE

BOLLARDS EMBEDDED IN 2 FT DEEP CONCRETE FOOTINGS IF GAS METER IS
WITHIN 3 FEET OF DRIVEWAY

5. (N) ELECTRICAL METER LOCATION--CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE WITH
LOCAL ELECTRICAL COMPANY FOR UPGRADE (400 AMPS) TO (E) ELECTRICAL
SERVICE--INSTALL UFER GROUND CONNECTION PER CEC 250-52

6. (N) 4" SEWER LATERAL--CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY LOCATION IN
FIELD--PROVIDE CLEANOUT AT THE POINT OF CONNECTION BETWEEN THE
BUILDING SEWER AND THE MUNICIPAL LATERAL, USE AN APPROVED FITTING
TO BRING THE CLEANOUT RISER TO GRADE. WHERE SEWER CLEANOUTS ARE
TO BE CONNECTED TO EXISTING MUNICIPAL LATERALS, SUCH CONNECTIONS
SHALL BE ACCOMPLISHED BY USE OF AN APPROVED FITTING

7. (E) TREE(S) TO REMAIN- PROTECT AS REQUIRED DURING CONSTRUCTION - DO
NOT LEAVE MATERIALS OR EQUIPMENT IN ROOT AREAS FOR EXTENDED
PERIODS OF TIME. SEE ARBORIST REPORT (IF PROVIDED) FOR ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION

8. (E) TREE TO BE REMOVED--SEE ARBORIST REPORT
9. (N) SOFTSCAPE--PROVIDE DRIP IRRIGATION
10. (E) FENCE AND GATES TO BE REMOVED
11. (N) FENCE AND GATE--VERIFY FINAL DESIGN AND FINISH WITH--NEW FENCES

TO CONFORM TO JURISDICTION'S FENCE REGULATIONS
12. (E) DRIVEWAY TO BE REMOVED
13. (N) DRIVEWAY, PAVERS OVER 8" BASE ROCK AND 2" SAND PER GEOTECH

REPORT] -- VERIFY PAVER DESIGN WITH
14. (N) HARDSCAPE--SLOPE AWAY FROM HOUSE @ 2% MIN.
15. (N) 36" MIN. DEEP LEVEL LANDING PER CRC 311.3 W STEPS (MAX. 7.75" RISER)-

PROVIDE EQUAL RISERS IF MORE THAN 1 STEP
16. (N) PORCH OR TRELLIS COLUMNS
17. (N) HEATPUMP UNIT PAD(S)--PROVIDE ELECTRICAL TO THIS LOCATION AS

REQUIRED, VERIFY SIZE AND QUANTITY WITH HVAC CONTRACTOR. HEATPUMP
UNITS TO COMPLY WITH JURISDICTION'S NOISE ORDINANCE--SEE HVAC PLANS

18. (N) CURB CUT PER LOCAL JURISDICTION'S STANDARD DETAIL--SEE CIVIL PLANS
19. EXISTING BUILDING TO BE REMOVED
20. (E) WATER METER TO BE REMOVED/ UPGRADED
21. (E) ELECTRIC METER TO BE REMOVED
22. (E)GAS METER TO BE REMOVED
23. (E) HARDSCAPE TO BE REMOVED

SITE PLAN KEYNOTES  -

EXISTING BUILDING AREA

 SITE PLAN LEGEND  -

REQUIRED YARD SETBACK/EASEMENT

NOTES:
1. (E) WATER SUPPLY TO BE REPLACED FROM METER IN.
2. (E) SEWER LATERAL TO BE REPLACED FROM PROPERTY LINE IN.
3. SEE LS PLANS FOR ALL SITE CONCRETE AND HARDSCAPE

DETAILS--CO-ORDINATE WITH CIVL & GEOTECH. REQUIREMENTS

NEW BUILDING AREA

NEW DRIVEWAY

SPOT ELEVATION, SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS
FOR MORE INFOXX

+/-XX.XX'

PROPERTY LINE--SEE TOPO SURVEY FOR MORE INFO

1 TREE NUMBER--REFER TO ARBORIST REPORT FOR SPECIES
AND OTHER INFO

TREE PROTECTION FENCING--TREE PROTECTION
TO BE INSTALLED PRIOR TO START OF
CONSTRUCTION AND REMAIN IN PLACE TILL
COMPLETION--SEE ARBORIST REPORT FOR
ADDITIONAL INFO

NEW MAIN RESIDENCE

NEW ADU

NEW GARAGE

TREE TO BE RMOVED

NEW LANDSCAPE AREA--SEE LS AREA CALCS FOR MORE INFO

15

14

TYP.

TYP.

1

5

DATE:  
rev. 01/31/2024

TPZ ELEMENTS DRAWN: 
 B. FIRESTONE

ISA-CERTIFIED ARBORIST 
#WE-8525A

BASE MAP:  SITE PLAN A1.0a
by ARDALAN DJALALI

(01/26/2024)

ARBORIST REPORT 
pg. 25

TR
E
E
 P

R
O

TE
C

TI
O

N
 Z

O
N

E
 M

A
P

73
6

 P
A

R
TR

ID
G

E
 A

V
E
, M

E
N

LO
 P

A
R

K
, C

A

2H

3H

 1

  5

4H

NOTE: ALL TREES WERE PLACED BY PROJECT ARBORIST AND 
LOCATIONS ARE APPROXIMATE.  

TPZ MAP LEGEND:

TREE ON NEIGHBORS’  PROPERTY / 
CITY STREET TREE

TREE PROTECTION FENCING (SEE SPEC.)

TRUNK WRAP (SEE SPEC.)

  n TREE TO REMOVE

 n

Tree protection fencing requirements as required by the City of Menlo Park:

1) Establish tree protection fencing radius by installing six (6)-foot tall chain link fencing mounted on 
eight (8)-foot tall, 1.5-inch diameter galvanized posts, driven 24 inches into the ground and spaced no 
more than 10 feet apart. 

2) Post signs on the fencing (in English and Spanish) printed on 11”x17” yellow-colored paper (signage 
attached) with Project Arborist’s contact information.  Signage should be on each protection fence in a 
prominent location.

3) Movable barriers of chain link fencing secured to cement blocks may be substituted for fixed 
fencing if the Project Arborist and City Arborist agree that the fencing will have to be moved to ac-
commodate certain phases of construction. The builder may not move the fence without authorization 
from the Project Arborist or City Arborist.

4) Place a 6-inch layer of coarse mulch or woodchips covered with ¾-inch plywood or alternative 
within the TPZ over bare ground prior to construction activity.

A78



734-736 Partridge Avenue – ATT A Ex. D – Conditions of Approval

PAGE: 1 of 2 

LOCATION: 
734-736 Partridge
Avenue

PROJECT NUMBER: 
PLN2023-00046 

APPLICANT: 
Ali Zadeh 

OWNER: 
Ali Zadeh 

PROJECT CONDITIONS: 

1. The use permit shall be subject to the following standard conditions:

a. The applicant shall be required to apply for a building permit within one year from the date of
approval (by September 9, 2025) for the use permit to remain in effect.

b. Development of the project shall be substantially in conformance with the plans prepared by
Ardalan Djalali consisting of 43 plan sheets, dated received August 29, 2024 and approved by
the Planning Commission on September 9, 2024, except as modified by the conditions
contained herein, subject to review and approval of the Planning Division.

c. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall comply with all Sanitary District, Menlo
Park Fire Protection District, and utility companies’ regulations that are directly applicable to the
project.

d. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall comply with all requirements of the Building
Division, Engineering Division, and Transportation Division that are directly applicable to the
project.

e. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall submit a plan for any new utility
installations or upgrades for review and approval by the Planning, Engineering and Building
Divisions. All utility equipment that is installed outside of a building and that cannot be placed
underground shall be properly screened by landscaping. The plan shall show exact locations of
all meters, back flow prevention devices, transformers, junction boxes, relay boxes, and other
equipment boxes.

f. Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the applicant shall
submit plans indicating that the applicant shall remove and replace any damaged and
significantly worn sections of frontage improvements. The plans shall be submitted for review
and approval of the Engineering Division.

g. Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the applicant shall
submit a Grading and Drainage Plan for review and approval of the Engineering Division. The
Grading and Drainage Plan shall be approved prior to the issuance of grading, demolition or
building permits.

h. Heritage trees in the vicinity of the construction project shall be protected pursuant to the
Heritage Tree Ordinance and the arborist report prepared by Bo Firestone Trees & Gardens,
dated January 31, 2024.

i. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall pay all fees incurred through staff time
spent reviewing the application.

j. The applicant or permittee shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Menlo Park or
its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action, or proceeding against the City of
Menlo Park or its agents, officers, or employees to attack, set aside, void, or annul an approval
of the Planning Commission, City Council, Community Development Director, or any other
department, committee, or agency of the City concerning a development, variance, permit, or
land use approval which action is brought within the time period provided for in any applicable
statute; provided, however, that the applicant’s or permittee’s duty to so defend, indemnify, and
hold harmless shall be subject to the City’s promptly notifying the applicant or permittee of any
said claim, action, or proceeding and the City’s full cooperation in the applicant’s or permittee’s
defense of said claims, actions, or proceedings.

EXHIBIT D

A79



734-736 Partridge Avenue – ATT A Ex. D – Conditions of Approval 

PAGE: 2 of 2 

LOCATION:  
734-736 Partridge 
Avenue 

PROJECT NUMBER: 
PLN2023-00046 

APPLICANT:  
Ali Zadeh 

OWNER:  
Ali Zadeh 

PROJECT CONDITIONS: 

k. Notice of Fees Protest – The applicant may protest any fees, dedications, reservations, or other 
exactions imposed by the City as part of the approval or as a condition of approval of this 
development. Per California Government Code 66020, this 90-day protest period has begun as 
of the date of the approval of this application. 

2. The use permit shall be subject to the following project-specific conditions: 

a. Prior to the granting of the first occupancy for the project, the applicant shall plant one 24” box 
Persian ironwood street tree in the public right-of-way fronting the property, subject to review 
and approval by the Planning Division, Engineering Division, and City Arborist. 

b. Prior to the granting of the first occupancy for the project, the Applicant shall slurry seal the 
entire project frontage (curb to curb) to be reviewed and approved by the Engineering Division. 

 

 

 

 
 

A80



City of Menlo Park

734-736 PARTRIDGE AVENUE
Location Map

Date: 9/9/2024 Drawn By:4,000 CRT Checked By: CDS1: Sheet: 1Scale:

EXHIBIT B

B1



734-736 Partridge Avenue – Attachment C: Data Table

PROPOSED 
PROJECT 

EXISTING 
PROJECT 

ZONING 
ORDINANCE 

Lot area 9,392 sf 9,392 sf 7,000 sf min 
Lot width 50.1 ft 50.1  ft 65 ft min 
Lot depth 187.6 ft 187.6  ft 100 ft min 

Setbacks 
Front 20 ft 27.9 ft 20 ft min 
Rear 22.9 ft 73.1 ft 20 ft min 
Side (left) 9.7 ft 4.6 ft 10% of lot width, minimum 5 

feet Side (right) 5 ft 9.6 ft 
Building coverage1 3,802.1 

40.5 
sf 
% 

2,715 
28.9 

sf 
% 

3,287 
35 

sf max 
% max 

FAL (Floor Area Limit)1 5,069.9 sf 2,715 sf 3,756 sf max 
Square footage by floor 909.2 

726.8 
738.8 
680.7 
217.8 

226.3 

139.7 

774.9 
795.4 

sf/1st Unit 1 

sf/2nd Unit 1 
sf/1st Unit 2 
sf/2nd Unit 2 
sf/ detached 
garage 
sf/attached 
garage 
sf/covered 
porches 
sf/ADU Unit 1 
sf/ADU Unit 2 

2,310 
405 

sf/1st 
sf/garage 

Square footage of buildings 5,209.6 sf 2,715 sf 
Building height 24.9 

26.5 
ft/Unit 1 
ft/Unit 2 

12.5 ft 28 ft max 

Parking2 2 covered spaces 2 covered spaces 1 covered and 1 uncovered 
space per unit 

Note: Areas shown highlighted indicate a nonconforming or substandard situation 

Trees Heritage trees3 3 Non-Heritage trees4 2 New trees5 7 
Heritage trees 
proposed for 
removal 

1 Non-Heritage trees 
proposed for removal 

1 Total Number of 
trees  

10 

1. Each single family home is entitled to an ADU, each of which may exceed the maximum floor area limit and building coverage by up to
800 square feet.

2. The project is subject to AB 2097 and, and therefore no onsite parking is required.
3. Of these trees, one is on the subject property, one is a shared tree, and one is on a neighboring property.
4. Of these trees, one is on the subject property and one is in the city right-of-way.
5. Of these trees, six are on the subject property and one is in the city right-of-way.

EXHIBIT C

C1


	20240909 PC Agenda
	20240812 PC Draft Minutes
	F1_734-736 Partridge Ave staff report
	ATT A - Resolution
	Exhibit A - Project Plans
	Exhibit B - Project Description Letter
	Exhibit C - Arborist Report
	Exhibit D - COA

	ATT B - Location Map
	ATT C - Data Table - 734 Partridge




